
Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

Karen E. Hebert

Director
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY
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603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 7, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic Stability,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Children's
Trust, Inc. (VC# 218449), Concord, NH to revise the scope of work to expand the ongoing
support of Family Resource Centers across the state to achieve the "Family Resource Center of
Quality" designation of national standards, sustain kinship navigation and Community
Collaborations, facilitate coordination of Family Resource Centers and the Early Childhood
Regional System, and expand upon marketing for child care scholarship assistance by
increasing the price limitation by $2,854,760 from $7,724,887 to $10,579,647, with no change to
the completion date of June 30, 2024, effective July 1,2023, upon Governor and Council approval.
48.16% Federal Funds. 51.84% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30. 2021, item #41,
amended on October 13, 2021, item #20, on April 6, 2022, item #8, and most recently on January
18. 2023, item #19.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and Justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source and the Department is adding
additional funding and revising the scope of work. The Contractor Is uniquely qualified to provide
statewide support and effectively apply evidence-based standards and services to NH's network
of Family Resource Centers with the goal of strengthening families statewide.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to expand the infrastructure and support
for the statewide network of Family Resource Centers.

This request includes:

1. Family Resource Centers. Additional funds will support Family Resource Center
infrastructure. Family Resource Center of Quality designation efforts, and staff training.
Additional funds will support two (2) existing services at the Family Resource Centers:
the Kinship Navigation Program and Community Collaborations.

2. Kinship Navigation. Additional funds will sustain the management and implementation of
Kinship Navigation programs in Family Resource Centers through State Fiscal Year 2024.

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Services are focused on providing resource and economic connections and support to
kinship care families. There are currently 1,070 individuals receiving services through
the Kinship Navigation program statewide.

3. Community Collaborations. Additional funds will sustain cross-sector Community
Implementation Teams that connect families to the services they need to support self-
sufficiency and economic stability in targeted communities. Services are focused on
providing resource connections to families with young children and creating system-level

. changes designed to help reduce child maltreatment and the risk of children entering
foster care.

4. Expand the Contractor's scope of work to increase marketing and outreach and training
opportunities that supports access to resources for families, child care providers,
employers, and other stakeholders. This includes hosting and maintaining the consumer
education website, NH Connections, as a source of information dissemination. Marketing
and outreach efforts will increase stakeholder awareness and utilization of resource and
referral services, NH Child Care Scholarship program; initiatives for workforce, child care

■ supply, and quality improvement.

5 Expand the Contractor's scope of work to provide infrastructure and technical assistance
support to the seven Early Childhood Regional System leads. The Early Childhood
Regional System collaborates and coordinates across key early childhood regional
partners, including Family Resource Centers, family support programs, Community
Collaborations agencies and the Departments of Health and Human Services and
Education. The Contractor will support and provide ongoing capacity building,
coordination, communication, performance management, and evaluation.

Approximately 8.700 families will be supported through this amendment;
•  6,400 families will continued to be sen/ed annually through the Family Resource

Centers:

• Approximately 250 additional families will be served annually through Kinship
Navigation; and

• Approximately 200 additional families will be served annually through the work of
Community Collaborations targeted communities.

In addition to the families being served, approximately 75 additional community-based
agencies will be served annually with training.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Reviewing the process and outcome measures identified in the quarterly reports
submitted by the Contractor;

•  Meeting with the Contractor monthly to ensure compliance with contractual
r^uirements; and

•  Reviewing expenditures and conducting data quality assurance activities on a
monthly basis.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will be
unable to sustain the management and implementation of the sen/ices delivered to families
directly and that prevent child maltreatment, including Kinship Navigation; support for the Family
Resource Center infrastructure, staff training. Early Childhood Regional System support to
enhance coordination of early childhood systems, and Family Resource Center of Quality
designation efforts; and expand marketing and messaging about key family programs, including
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child care. These services contribute to the development of healthy families, which contribute to
the development of healthy communities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: ALN 93.670. FAIN 90CA1858; ALN 93.391, FAIN
NH750T000031: ALN 93.575, FAIN 2101NHCSC6 and 2101NHCDC6.

In the event that the Federal, Other Funds become no longer available, additional
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lck^. Weaver
Intenm Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Services'Mission is to Join communities and families
in prouiding opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-045^50010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, KINSHIP
100% General Funds

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 45001601 $325,000 $0 $325,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 45001601 $1,325,000 $0 $1,325,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 45001601 $325,000 $1,000,000 $1,325,000

Sub Total -

SI.975,000 $1,000,000 $2,975,000

05-95-045-450010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SEFtVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, KINSHIP
100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Ciass.Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 S199.800 $0 $199,800

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assist and Reii 45001602 $199,800 $0 $199,800

2024 074-500589 ( Grants for Pub Assist and Reii 45001602 $199,800 . $0 S199.800

Sub Total $599,400 $0 $599,400

05-095-090-9020-50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION. COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Arnount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc •  90050405 $831,618 $831,618

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc .  90050405' .  SI.035,469 SO $1,035,469

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc . 90050405 SO $0 $0

Sub Total $1,867,087 $0 $1,867,087

05-95-92-920510-33820000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. Bureau of Drua & Alcohol Svcs. Governor Commission Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 92058502 5100,000 $0 sioo.ooo

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc .  92058502 $100,000 $0 5100,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for,Proq Svc 92058502 so $100,000 $100,000

Sub Total $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPTOF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90070470 $35,000,00 $0.00 $35,000,00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90070470 $0,00 50.00 $0,00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for. Proq Svc 90070470 $0,00 5374.760,00 5374,760.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90070471 - 5380.000,00 5380,000.00

Sub Total $35,000.00 $754,760,00 5789,760.00

05-095-090-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH
DIVISION, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES . .

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc TBD $910,000 50 $910,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc TBD 51,840.000 50 $1,840,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc TBD $0 5100.000 $100,000

Sub Total 52.750.000 5100,000 •  $2,850,000

05-095-042-421110-24300000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, ARPA CHILD CARE STABILIZATION
100% Federal Funds

Nesv Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04
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State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount.

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc ' 42117774 S37.499 $0 S37.499

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42117774 $112,501 SO 5112,501

Sub Total $150,000 SO SI 50.000

05-095-042-421110-24290000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHIlD DEVELOPMENT, ARPA CHILD CARE CCDF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42117773 SO 5900,000 S900.000

Sub Total SO 5900,000 $900,000

05-95-42-421410-79060000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES, OJJDP

pAriAral FiinrlR

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 072-509073 Contracts for Proq Svc .  42140614 SO.OO 50.00 SO.OO

2023 072-509073 Contracts for Proq Svc 42140614 $74,200.00 $0.00 574,200.00

2024 072-509073 Contracts for Proq Svc 42140614 574,200.00 $0.00 $74,200.00

Sub Total 5148,400.00 $0.00 S148.400.00

1  nvArAllTntall S7.724.887l S2.854.760l $10,579,647

GF 51.84% 34.55%

FF 48.16% 65.45%

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality
Specialist contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30, 2021 (Item #41), as amended on October 13, 2021 (Item #20), on April 6, 2022 (Item #8),
and on January 18, 2023. (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified: ahd

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written, agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained

$10,579,647

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by replacing, in its entirety with Exhibit B, Amendment #4,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1 to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 17.6% New Hampshire Overdose Data to Action Program (NH 0D2A), as awarded
in January 2021, by the Centers For Disease Control And Prevention, Assistance
Listing Number 93.136, FAIN NU17CE924984. , . . .

1.2. 5.7% Kinship' Navigator Programs, as awarded in October 2020. by the
Administration for Children and Families, Assistance Listing Number 93.556, FAIN
20011NHPKIN and 2101NHPKIN.

1.3. 7.5% Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families, as awarded
in September 2018, by the Administration for Children and Families, Assistance
Listing Number 93.670, FAIN 90CA1858.

1.4. 26.9% Health Disparities Grant, as awarded in May 2021, by the Center for Disease
Control and Prevention, Assistance Listing Number 93.391, FAIN NH750T000031.

1.5. 1.4% ARPA Child Care Stabilization, as awarded in April 2021, by the Child Care
Development Block Grant, Assistance Listing Number 93.575, FAIN 2101NHCSC6.

1.6. 8.5% .ARPA Child Care CCDF, as awarded in April 2021. by the Child Care "
Development Block Grant, Assistance Listing Number 93.575, FAIN 2101NHCDC6.

1.7. 1.4% JJ Funds, as awarded in October 2018, by the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention, Assistance Listing Number 16.54, FAIN 2019-JX-FX-
0052.

1.8. 2.8% General Funds, Governor's Commission.

1.9. 28.2% General Funds.

4. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms, Section 3 to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurr^in the

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ̂
6/9/2023

SS-2Q22-DEHS-01 -NEWHA-01-A04 Page 1 of 4 Date.
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fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-23, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4.

5. Modify Exhibit C-19, Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-19,
Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SPY 2024, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-20, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SPY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-21, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SPY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-22, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SPY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-23, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SPY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated, by reference herein.

6s
New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

6/9/2023
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force.and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date \A/ritten below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/9/2023

Date

—OoeuSigr>#<J by:

Name: Karen Hebert

Title:
Division Director

6/9/2023

Date

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.
OoeuSlgn«d by:

f^f/^-'g'Wf'Psimnionds
.Title: Executive Director

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DoeoSlgned by;

6/9/2023 . (^t^rt,vivLo

Date Name; Guam no ^ ^
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2022-DEHS-01 -NEWHA-01-A04 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBITB

Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide services in this agreement to the statewide
network of Family Resource Centers (FRCs) in New Hampshire.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available Statewide via phone,
teleconferencing, and in-person meetings.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours must
mean Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., excluding state,
federal, and Contractor holidays.

1.4. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.5. Facilitation Organization and FRC Quality Designation

1.5.1. The Contractor must support each FRC with their self-assessment
to determine the level of readiness for each FRC to receive the

Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation in
accordance with National Family Support Network (NFSN)
Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening and Support
(Standards).

. 1.5.2. The Contractor must perform an individual assessment of any FRC
applying for FRC-Q designation to identify and document
deficiencies in meeting Standards and to assist each FRC
throughout the application process.

1.5^3. The Contractor must work with the Wellness and Primary
Prevention Council (WPPC) and Family Support NH (FSNH) to
provide support to FRCs in implementing and meeting the
Standards forthe purpose of acquiring an FRC-Q designation. The
Contractor must ensure support, which includes, but is not limited
to:

1.5.3.1. Providing.FRCs with information about the Standards
(https://www.nationalfamilysupportnetwork.org/
standards-of-quality).

1.5.3.2. Providing technical support to FRCs with the
implementation of Standards.

1.5.3.3. Providing technical support to FRCs with the
implementation of procedures to document practice of
Standards-.

6s
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Contractor Initials

6/9/2023
New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. ' Page 1 of 23 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Speciaiist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

1.5.3.4. Providing training and technical assistance to PRCs with
the development of a written plan to meet Standards.

1.5.3.5. Traveling to any PRC, requesting an in-person
consultation.

1.5.3.6. Assisting PRCs with completing the PRC-Q application.

1.5.3.7. Revieyving FRC-Q applications for accuracy.

1.5.3.8. Participating in the NPSN through a membership with
PSNH; and

1.5.3.9. Providing PRCs with information and trainings on
acquiring the PRC-Q designation.

1.5.4. The Contractor must collaborate with other PRC technical

assistance assets to assess the capacity of each PRC relative to
the core.and optional standards defined by the WPPC.

1.5.5. The Contractor must work with the Department and PRCs to
determine culturally appropriate process and outcome data
collection and analysis.

1.5.6. The Contractor must assist PRCs with increasing operational
efficiencies:

1.5.7. The Contractor must provide technical assistance for oversight as
well as implementation of a quality improvement process.

1.5:8. The Contractor must utilize a Community of Practice sharing model
that allows PRC administrators and leadership to establish and '
strengthen cooperation, collaboration, and informal mentoring
among PRCs.

1.5.9. The Contractor must educate policymakers, communities, and
community groups on PRC best practices.

1.5.10. The Contractor must ensure priority is given to PRCs providing
horrie services to:

1.5.10.1. Families for whom the Division for Children, Youth and
Families (DCYP) has issued a letter of concern;

1.5.10.2. Families with cases reported by DCYP as unfounded but
with reasonable concern; and

1.5.10.3. Recipients of Temporary Assistance to Needy Families
(TANP) program services.

6S
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01.A04 Contractor Initials

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. Page 2 of 23 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBITB

Amendment #4

1.5.11.. The Contractor must utilize the Family Support Data System
(FSDS), or other Quickbase applications as appropriate, for the
purposes of supporting quality improvement efforts, capable of
collecting data on, but not limited to, the following:

1.5;11.1. Identifying FRO locations statewide.

1.5.11.2. Identifying FRC-Q locations statewide.

■ 1.5.11.3. Identifying FRC-Q designation expiration dates.

1.5.11.4. Documenting trainings provided to FRCs through:

1.5.11.4.1. Title of each training;

1.5.11.4.2. Numberof training attendees; and

■  1.5.11.4.3. Learning objectives for each training.

,  1.5.11.5. Identifying which FRCs have completed the FRC-Q self-
assessment.

1.5.11.6. Identifying which FRCs have completed the FRC-Q
designation application;

1.5.11.7! Identifying FRCs with plans in place to become an FRC-

■  Q- .
.  1.5.11.8. Identifying individuals who have received Standards

certification.

1-.5.11.9. Documenting FRC and FRC-Q service outcomes.

1.5.11.10. Documenting FRC program and population priorities.

1.5.11.11. Identifying shared measurements among FRCs for
family outcomes.

1,5.12. The Contractor must ensure collection of data in the FSDS and;
support data quality, including, but not limited to, the following
demographics:

1.5.12.1. - Race.

1.5.12.2. Ethnicity.

1.5.12.3. Language.

1.5.12.4. Household,income.

1.5.12.5. Marital status.

1.5.12.6. Age of parents or caregivers.

■ 6s
SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Contractor Initials

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. Page 3 of 23 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT 8

Amendment #4

1.5.12.7. Sexual orientation and/or gender identity.

1.5.12.8. Town.

1.5.12.9. County.

1.5.12.10. Incarcerated parent.

1.5.12.11. Receipt of. public benefits, which includes, but is not
limited to:

1.5.12.11.1. Supplemental . Nutrition Assistance
Program (SNAP).

1.5.12.11.2. New Hampshire Child Care Scholarship.

1.5.12.11.3. Medicaid.

1.5.12.11.4. Social Security Disability Insurance
(SSDI).

1.5.12.11.5. Supplemental Security Income (SSI).

1.5.12.11.6. TANF.

1.5.12.11.7. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program
for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC).

1.5.13. The Contractor must provide upon request to the Department
summary reports, information, and individual participant outcomes
reporting.

1.5.14. The Contractor must coordinate data collection efforts for PRC

programs, which include, but are not limited to:

1.5.14.1. Comprehensive Family Support Services (CFSS).

1.5.14.2. NH Maternal, Infant, and. Early Childhood Home Visiting
(MIECHV).

,1.5.14.3.. Healthy Families America (HFA) Home Visiting.

,  1.5.14.4. Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve
Families (CCSPF).

1.5.14.5. Early Childhood Regional System.

1.5.15. The Contractor must provide Technical Assistance (TA) around
' data integrity and develop reports related to the data collection.

1.5.16. The Contractor must provide training to all new PRC staff who enter
data into the Quickbase platform.

^  :s
SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Contractor Initials

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. Page 4 of 23 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facliitatlon Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

1.5.17. The Contractor must ensure data integrity for the CFSS program
and Community Collaborations project and provide the necessary
reports monthly.

1.5.18. The Contractor must work with the Department to plan and align
'  , other data collection efforts for any other new programs

administered through PRCs.

1.5.19. The Contractor must provide quality improvement training and
resources to PRCs and PRC-Qs, which includes, but is not limited
to:

1.5.19.1. Collecting and.disseminating PRC-Q best practices and
evidence-based program models.

■ 1.5.19.2. Convening PRCs and FRC-Qs in a Community of
Practice sharing model.

1.5.19.3. Promoting collaboration through shared learning
.  . opportunities and training with PRCs and PRC-Qs

across state agencies in an effort to improve service
outcomes.

1.5.19.4. Increasing PRC administrative and operational
efficiencies.

1.5.19.5. , Providing technical assistance to ensure that each FRC-
Q has a clear non-profit business model!

1.5.20. The Contractor must provide funding to each PRC in year two (2) of
the contract for administrative needs to support the work of the
PRC, which includes, but is hot limited to: ■

1.5.20.1. Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer salaries.

1.5.20.2. Building repairs and maintenance.

1.5.21. The Contractor must ensure the,distribution of funds is based on a

formula with PRC-Q designation..

1.5.22. The Contractor may identify and assist PRCs and PRC-Qs in their
applications for additional funding opportunities for PRC and PRCQ
operations, programs, or quality improvement activities.

1.5.23. The Contractor must facilitate the PRC-Q designation review
process, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.5.23.1. Assembling PRC-Q designation review teams devised of
members of the WPPC.

6s
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Amendment#4

1.5.23.2. Proyiding reviewing teams with necessary site review
tools.

1.5.23.3. Coordinating PRC site reviews.

1.5.23.4. Recording, publishing, and reviewing team minutes.

1.5.23.5. Developing a form to gather review team meeting
feedback. '

1.5.23.6. Communicating results to PRC applicants.

1.5.24. The Contractor must attend all WPPC meetings.

1.5.25. The Contractor must attend all PSNH mpnthly meetings and
provide progress reports on the number of PRCs achieving FRC-Q
designation.

. \ v/T"^T.5.26. The Contractor must attend any NPSN meetings as identified by
the Department.

1.5.27. The Contractor must utilize project management best practices
throughout the contract term.

1.5.28. The Contractor must demonstrate implementation of a Community
of Practice sharing model among PRCs and PRC-Qs.

1.5.29. The Contractor must document specific trainings, guidance, and
supports for PRCs and PRC-Qs providing home visiting services.

.1.5.30., The Contractor must maintain the PSDS data collection system in
accordance with this Scope of Services.

1.5.31. The Contractor must demonstrate an increase in the number of

PRCs receiving the FRC-Q designation..

1.5.32. The Contractor must maintain the training process and continue to
develop the Kinship. Navigation position based on evaluation of the.
program and staff performance.

1.5.33. The Contractor must provide evidence of a sufficient number of
Navigators through subcontract to ensure Statewide coverage.,

1.5.34. The Contractor must support PRC-Q with the re-designation
process every three (3) years.

1.5.35. The Contractor rriust provide support to PRC^Q to develop a work
plan to increase best practice standards using the National
standards of quality for family strengthening and support, data
outcomes, client satisfactory surveys and other evaluation leoJs.

6s
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1.5.36. The Contractor, in collaboration with the Department, must design a
FSNH satisfaction survey to ensure the Facilitation Organization
meets the needs of the FRCs.

1.6. Kinship Navigators

1.6.1. The Contractor must fund and support positions for the purposes of
supporting kinship caregivers who are caring for kin. The
Contractor must ensure:

1.6.1.1. Navigators are utilized within FRCs and" FRC-Qs to
provide support to kinship caregivers who are caring for
kin as a result of a placement: and

1.6.1.2. Navigators connect with kinship caregivers, in-person or
by other electronic means, such as FaceTime and Zoom,
for purposes that include, but are not limited to:

1.6.1.2.1. Assessing kinship caregiver needs. ,

1.6.1.2.2. Providing outreach, engagement, and
community support services and
referrals.

1.6.1.2.3. Utilizing or creating peer support groups
for kinship caregivers.

1.6.2. The Contractor must provide training to Navigators to provide
consistency across Navigators through education and training,
consistent with:

.  1.6.2.1. DCYFjand

1.6.2.2. TANF.

1.6.3. The Contractor must maintain or increase Navigator positions and ,
kinship Navigator support in each year of this Agreement.

1.7. Community Health Workers

1.7.1. The Contractor must subcontract with the statewide network of

FRCs to fund positions establishing a workforce of Community
Health Workers (CHWs) to provide direct services to priority
populations impacted by COVID-19 and health disparities.

1.7.2. The Contractor must provide and support specialized training and
technical assistance as proposed by the Department to the newly
developed workforce of Community Health workers with topics
including, but not limited to: ■ (—

6s
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1.7.2.1. RoleofCHWs.

1.7.2.2. Community Health Workers and Public Health Networks.

1.7.2.3. Community Health Workers and comrhunity coalitions.

1.7.2.4. Local community and health resources.

1.7.3. The Contractor must support PRC Family Support staff and
Community Health Worker's with training and technical assistance
around data collection, cultural competency, and accessing state
and local community resources. Data will be collected in the Family
Support Data System (FSDS) or another application in Quickbase

: as appropriate. Trainings include, but are not limited to:

1.7.3.1. Becoming providers of NH Easy.

1.7.3.2. Bureau of Family Assistance overview training.

1.7.3.3. Cultural diversity and equity training.

1.7.3.4. Family Support Data System.

1.7.3!5. Concrete support and Retrospective Protective Factors
Survey-2 (PFS-2) to determine social determinants of
health needs and protective factors skills gained.

1.7.3.6. Assessing food insecurity.

1.7.4. The Contractor must allow and encourage CHWs to participate on
the NH CHW Coalition and the CHW Community of Practice.

1.7.5. The Contractor must allow and encourage CHW attendance at
Department-approved trainings through Area Health Education
Centers (AHECs) and North Country Health Consortium to meet
thirteen (13) competencies for CHWs.

1.7.6. The Contractor must ensure that Family Support Workers and
CHWs:

1.7.6.1. Provide case management and connections to
community services and referrals;

1.7.6.2.- Complete PFS-2 surveys or other Needs Assessments
and Protective Factors assessments;

1.7.6.3. Enter data into the FSDS;

1.7.6.4. Assist with maintaining and/or applying for social
services within their community:

6s
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1.7.6.5. Provide and distribute educational information about

COVID-19 vaccinations and Department general
guidance.for individual mitigation;

1.7.6.6. Identify and help to mitigate barriers in health care
access such as transportation, language, childcare,
etcetera; and

1.7.6.7. Connect clients vyith community-based, agencies and
supports through closed loop and/or warm hand-off
referrals for topics including, but not limited to:

1.7.6.7.1. Food insecurity.

1.7.6.7.2. Mental health supports.

1.7.6.7.3. Health care referrals.

1.7.6.7.4. Substance use disorder supports.

1.7.6.7.5. Educational supports and services.

1.7.6.7.6. Financial literacy.

1.7.6.7.7. Budgeting supports.

1.7.6.7.8. -COVID-19 testing, vaccination, and/or
immunization resources.

1.8. Community Collaborations

1.8.1., The Contractor must work with the Department's Comijj^uriity
Collaborations initiative to provide distribution of outreach materials,
training and education to the community about the services offered
through the Family Support programs and CHWs, which includes,
but is not limited to:

1.8.1.1. Printing outreach and education materials in additional
languages, such as Spanish, Nepalese, or other
languages to support FRC engagement with families.

1.8.1.2. Prioritizing and implementing strategies that provide
engagement and education of early childhood providers
about PRCs and the services provided.

1.8.1.3. Promoting Family Leadership membership within
Regional-Systems.

1.8.1.4. Prioritizing and implementing strategies that provide
engagement and education of incarcerate^parent
families on FRC services provided through pajti^ships

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Contractor Initials*^
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of activities with the Family Connections Center at the
New Hampshire Department of Corrections..

1.8.2. The Contractor must prioritize, fund, and subcontract with the three
(3) Community Collaborations agencies within the following Early
Childhood Regional Networks to support ongoing cross-sector
coordination to support families:

1.8.2.1. Region 4: Manchester.

1.8.2.2. Region 5: Central NH, Lakes; and

1:8.2.3. Region 7: North Country.

1.8.3. The Contractor must support the Community Collaborations and
other Early Childhood Regions with utilizing collective impact
practices including but not limited to Boundary Spanning
Leadership to promote cross-system collaboration and enhance
relationships between PRCs, FRC-Qs, schools. Early Childhood

,  Regional Systems, child welfare and family service agencies,
businesses, philanthrop^ic funders, and other organizations
providing family support and/or economic support services.

1.8.4. The Contractor must ensure that Community Collaborations Early
Childhood Regions have processes in place to evaluate, monitor;
establish, and measure within each region:

1.8.4.1. Direction: agreement on overall goals, aims, and
mission;

1.8.4.2. ' Alignment: organization and coordination of knowledge
and work; and

1.8.4.3; Commitment: shared responsibility for the group.

1.9. Early Childhood Regional System

1.9.1. The Contractor must subcontract with the seven (7) Early
Childhood Regional Systems to support the FRC-Q indicator of
community strengthening.

1.9.2. The Contractor must support the Early Childhood Regional System
to develop strong and healthy communities by working
collaboratively with various stakeholders, such as PRC's, by
establishing formal partnerships in order to address community
issues and priorities and enhance early childhood care and
education (ECCE). Formal partnerships include, but are not limited
to:

G—US
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1.9.2.1. Parent Leadership.

1.9.2.2. Family Resource Centers and home visiting programs.

-1.9.2.3. Community Health Centers and Health Providers.

1.9.2.4. Family Centered Early Supports and Services.

1.9.2.5. Regional Public Health Networks.

1.9.2.6. Nutrition Services agencies.

1.9.2.7. Head Start, Early Head Start, family or center-based
childcare.

1.9.2.8. Local educational agencies serving children birth to
eight, . including before-school and after-school
programs, and public and private schools.

1.9.2.9. Behavioral health system serving children and their
families.

1.9.2.10. Supports for children with disabilities and developmental
delays.

1.9.2.11. Economic assistance and employment support system.

1.9.2.12. . Child welfare.

1.9.2.13. Otherexternal community partners and/or public-private
partnerships as unique to each region (e.g.,
philanthropy, local government officials, Chamber of
Commerce, law enforcement officials, community
recreation, faith-based groups, housing services, and
local businesses).

1.9.3. The Contractor must establish and maintain.an infrastructure to

support the seven (7) Early Childhood Regional System netvi/orks.

1.9.4. The Contractor must support capacity building and key indicators
for Early Childhood Regional System to establish and maintain a
process to:

1.9.4.1. Ensure each of the seven (7) early childhood regions has
a lead agency identified to coordinate localized partner
collaboration, initiatives, needs assessments and
reporting;

1.9.4.2. Maxirnize awareness of community resources available
in the state, regionally, and nationally in order te-reduce
gaps and duplication, increase localized plai|n|l^ and
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coordination, in order to connect families with needed
services.

1.9.4.3. Enhance the quality of and increase access to ECCE
and community based family supports and expand the
use of evidence'based or evidence informed practices:

1.9.4.4.' Prioritize partnerships and members from PRCs, Home
Visiting programs, School, Regional Public Health
Networks, and Family Advisory Council membership to
enhance ECCE coordination;

1.9.4.5. Improve and strengthen state-regional communication
including sharing of community priorities and needs as
well as NH Department of Education (NHED) and DHHS
priorities and initiatives; and

1.9.4.6. Identify shared rheasures of success, as agreed upon by
the Department, which include, but are not limited to;

1.9.4.6.1. Data collection and strategy mapping.

1.9.4.6.2. Performance measures.

1.9.4.6.3. Needs and gaps assessments
conducted or utilized by regions.

1.9.4.6.4. Training opportunities, attendance, and
community partners.

1.9.4.6.5. Strategies and tools to measure success.

1.9.4.6.6. Technical assistance provided.

1.9.4.6.7- Quarterly reporting.

1.9.5. The Contractor must provide technical assistance for the Early
Childhood Regional System/Regional Leads, which includes, but is
not liniited to: • ^

1.9.5.1. . Ensuring bi-directional communication between the
Departments and the Regional Leads through quarterly
meetings.

' 1.9.5.2. Convening, coordinating,, and supporting monthly
meetings of Early Childhood Regional System.

1.9.5.3. Developing and monitoring performance measures and
capacity building activities.

fcs
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1.9.5.4. Providing training and coaching on collective impact
practices and models, which includes, but is not limited
to, Boundary Spanning Leadership.

1.10. Marketing and Public Awareness

•  1.10.1. The Contractor must market PRCs to raise public awareness, and
.  . to raise awareness among statewide and potential partners.'

1.10.2. The Contractor must ensure that public awareness activities align
and are coordinated with other statewide family support and
strengthening networks.

1.10.3.. The Contractor must ensure consistent marketing and branding of
PRCs and FRC-Qs by targeting specific audiences, including, but
not limited to;

"1.10.3.1. Community leaders and stakeholders.

1.10.3.2. Caregivers with young children.

1.10.3.3. Childcare centers and providers.

1.10.3.4. Family support agencies.

1.10.4. The Contractor must market and promote statewide awareness
among the public and potential partners of: .

1.10.4.1. Family Resource Centers (PRCs):

1.10.4.2. Child Care Development Fund scholarship;

1.10:4.3. Regional Early Childhood System; and

1.10.4.4. NH Connections website.

1.10.5. The Contractor.must manage the NH'Connections consumer
education website. Child.Care Aware of NH (nh-connections.org).
Management responsibilities must include, but are not limited to:

1.10.5.1. Promote the use of the NH Connections website among
stakeholders.

1.10.5.2. Host NH Connections website upon request.

1.10.5.3. Maintain.the NH Connections website to ensure, it is:

1.10.5.3.1. Navigable, with working links;

1.10.5.3.2. Current, including updating and
.  removing outdated information and data
on a daily or weekly basis asHT^feded;
and 6S

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Contractor Initials^

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. Page 13 of 23 Date-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9lCC3FB4-B36F-4E09-935B-FA1A3834bl58

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

1.1G.5.3.3. Compliant with federal requirements for
the consumer education website, as

detailed in the Office for Child Care

Guidelines.

1.10.5.4. Create a system for staff and contractors to
communicate needed changes and updates.

1.10.5.5. Support external partners and contractors to develop
informational pages as needed.

1-.10.'5.6. Track use, including visit frequency and navigation.

1.10.5.7. Provide a platform for ongoing feedback on site use
satisfaction.

1.10.6. The Contractor must increase public awareness of the quality
designation among childcare centers and/or providers through
content and/or collateral development and targeted messaging
and/or outreach.

1.10.7. The Contractor must provide marketing and public awareness to
ensure stakeholders, families, child care providers, social service
providers, local and state government officials and employees, and
erriployers are aware of, have access to, and utilize the child care
services, initiatives, training, technical assistance, and programs
provided by the Department, their contractors, and partners.
Marketing includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.7.1. A comprehensive marketing and branding guide for use
by staff and contractors delivering child care programs
aligned with Department guidelines.

■  1.10.7.2. Working with contractors to ensure a cohesive marketing
plan that aligns vyith Department requirements.

1.10.7.3. Designing and developing content for monthly and
quarterly updates for various initiatives, as requested by
the Department.

1.10.7.4. Creating a standardized template for PowerPoint
presentations, brochures, and additional resources, as
requested by the Department, that builds a recognizable
and consistent brand image.

1.10.7.5. Supporting the annual Celebration for Early Childhood
Professionals and the Celebration for Out-pfzS^:hool

6s
Time Professionals.
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1.10.8. The Contractor must promote use and understanding of New
Hampshire Connections Information System {NHCIS) through
development of training tools and tip sheets.

1.10.9. The Contractor must promote the use and understanding of the
newly developed Family Information Network accessible through
the NH Connections website and hosted in the NHCIS.

1.10.10. The Contractor must develop and irnplement a plan, in
collaboration with the Department, to promote the following
programs and initiatives to providers, families, employers. PRCs,
contractors, service providers, and other stakeholders through
promotional pieces, social media, instructional tools, and videos, as

.  appropriate:

1.10.10.1. Granite-Steps for Quality.

1.10.10.2. New Hampshire Child Care Scholarship Program.

.  1.10.10.3. Head Start and Early Head Start.

1.10.10.4. New Hampshire. Early Childhood and Out-of-School
Time Credentialing System.

1.10.10.5. Other initiatives and projects identified by the
Department.

1.11. Juvenile Justice Family Assessment

1.11.1. The Contractor must subcontract with the statewide network of

PRCs to provide a private meeting space at designated PRC
locations so that the Juvenile Probation Parole Officers (JPPQ) can
meet and work with the youth and family.

1.11.2. The Contractor must:

1.11.2.1. Coordinate a private meeting space that is in a
convenient location.for the youth and family and where,
the JPPO completing the assessments can engage with
youth and families in a collaborative environment that
provides privacy for the youth and family.

'1.11.2.2. Ensure the meetings are coordinated with the
Department.

1.11.2.3. Offer availability during all regular business hours and
have extended hours to meet the needs of the families.

,1.11.2.4. Offer access to the meeting space and r^sewation
system during evening hours..
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2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health

■  Information {Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance
with the attached. Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been
executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by-reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

Quarterly Reports

3.1. The Contractor must submit quarterly reports, or upon Department request, to
the Department and WPPC within fifteen (15) days following the end of the
reporting period, to ensure adequate and efficient.service delivery. Quarterly
reports include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. The number of FRC-Q designation applications received.

,3.1.2. The number.ofFRC and FRC-Q site reviews performed.

3.1.3. The number of FRCs receiving the FRC-Q designation.

3.1.4. Status updates on FRCs applying for the FRC-Q designation according
to the FRCs.individualized written plan.

3.1.5. A comprehensive training plan for each FRC-Q within ninety (90) days
of receipt of FRC-Q designation.

3.1.6. The number and topics of trainings provided to all FRCs and FRC-Qs.

3.1.7. The number of FRC and FRC-Q staff trained.

3.1.8. Progress made in developing shared family outcome measures.

3.1.9. The number of Navigator positions supported and/or funded.

3.1.10. The number of trainings delivered to Navigators.

3.2. The Contractor must submit a monthly Kinship Navigator enrollment report
within fifteen (15) days following the end of the reporting period, with a final
report due thirty (30) days following the coritract completion date.

3.3. The Contractor must submit quarterly reports to the Department witjiiij^^fteen
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(15) days following the end of the reporting period, to ensure adequate and
efficient service delivery. Quarterly reports include, but are not limited to:

3.3.1! The number of CHWs at each FRC, including any staffing changes and
identified funding sources to support CHW positions.

3.3.2. The number and type of trainings provided to both the Family Support
Staff and CHWs through COVID-19 Health Disparities funding.

3.3.3. The number of CHWs and FRCs enrolled as providers of NH EASY in
order to support individual connections to economic supports to
minimize COVID-19 impacts:

3.3.4. The number of improvements to data collection, quality, and reporting
capacity for recipients in relation to COVID-19 disparities and inequities,

, which includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.4.1. Workforce support for data collection and reporting to
ensure collection of/complete and representative data
(e.g., race, ethnicity, kinship, and incarceration).

3.3.4.2. Implemented strategies to educate CHW and FRC staff
on the importance of data to address disparities and

.  inequities.

3.3.4.3. ' Developed plans for data quality assurance and
improvement.

3.3.4.4. Number of cases by CHW and number of encounters per

CHW.

3.3.4.5. Number of COVID-19 encounters indicating mitigation
and prevention through referral of vaccination and
vaccine support by each FRC and by CHW, which
includes coordination of activities related to

administration of vaccines, but not the actual vaccine
administration.

3.3.4.6. Number of encounters to provide communication about
COVID-19 risk factors, mitigation, and prevention.

3.3.4.7. Number of other navigation and support services, to
address COVID-19 risk factors (e.g., employment,
economic, child care, health care).

3.4. The Contractor must use the NH Division of Public Health Services Equity
Review Toolkit prior to work plan development and/or implementation of
programming. This toolkit will provide guidance on ensuring equity,rtrRifbding
Race, Ethnicity and Linguistic (REAL) and Sexual Orientation and fender
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Identity (SOGI) data collection, as well as community engagement, as core
pieces of the work of the Department grant-based work.

3.5. The Contractor must submit quarterly Regional Leads data within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the reporting period, with a final report due thirty (30)
days following contract completion date, to ensure adequate and efficient
service delivery. Regional Leads quarterly reports must include, but are not
limited to:

3.5.1. Performance measures across all regions.

3.5.2. Evaluation strategies.

3.5.3. Technical assistance plan.

3.5.4. Training plan.

3.5.5. Project staffing assignments.

3.5.6. Partnerships engagedTo support the regional networks.

Annual Reporting

3.6. The Contractor must provide a comprehensive annual report by June 30''!' of
each year. The annual report must summarize:

3.6.1. Participation;

3.6.2. Outcomes;

3.6.3. Challenges:

3.6.4. Strengths; and

3.6.5. Identified needs for the upcoming fiscal year.

3.7. The Contractor must provide an annual satisfaction survey report to the
Department within thirty (30) days of the end of the calendar year.

4.. Performance Measures

4.1. Within sixty (60) days of contract and amendment approval, the Contractor must
submit an Early Childhood Regional System Work Plan that includes specific
activities and timeline, including, but not limited to:

4.1.1. Performance hneasures across all regions.

4.1.2. Strategies to evaluate.

4.1.3. Plan for technical assistance.

4.1.4. Plan for training.

4.1.5. Who is assigned to the project.

SS-2022.DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Contractor.lnitials
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 91CC3FB4.B36F-4E09-935B-FA1A3834D158

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

4.1.6. Other partnerships engaged to support the regional networks.

4.2. The Contractor must demonstrate an increase in the number of PRCs receiving
FRC-Q designation or re-designation by at least four (4), from an established
baseline as of the contract effe.ctive date. Annual baselines are as follows:

4.2.1. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2022.

4.2.2. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2023.

4.2.3. Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 2024.

4.3. The Contractor must provide a summary of PFS-2 surveys completed for the
CFSS program, the COVID Health Disparities and Community Collaborations
projects.

4.3.1. Surveys must show percentage of types of concrete needs identified for
the families served by race, ethnicity, and language, when available.

4.3.2. Surveys must show what percentage of protective factors have been
increased using the retrospective survey.

4.4. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance, contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.5. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, in the aggregate and de-identified, including client-level
demographic, performance, and service data, upon Department request.

4.6. The Contractor must collect and share data with the Department, in the
aggregate and de-identified, in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1.' Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services described
herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

'5.2.1.. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to
programs and/or services to individuals with limited English pijotoency;

OS
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind
or have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other,
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the .United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract must have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution,
or use.

5.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for.any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. ■ Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. the Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must corhply^^jth all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county, and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit must be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor must procure said
license or permit, and must at all tjmes comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants antfS^rees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities must comply(>Sith all

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Contractor Initials^-—
6/9/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

rules, orders, regulations, and requirements' of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws, and

■  regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
such eligibility determination must be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies, and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and must be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file must include all information necessary to support
an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with
all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the
Department may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder,
as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be
informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department
regulations. -

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents, and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,.records, and original

^^oushers,
ri^gtions.

evidence of costs, such as purchase requisitions and orders,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind con

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04 Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services, and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records.maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts, and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the
price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term Of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) must terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department must
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

6.3. Website and Social Media

6.3.1. The selected Vendor(s) must work with the Department's
Communication's Bureau to ensure that any social media or website
designed, created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
Department and NH Doll website and social media requirements and
policies.

6.3.2. The selected \/endor(s) agrees Protected Health Information (PHI),
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), or other Confidential
Information solicited either by social media or the website that is
maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unless
expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of PHI,
Pll, or other Confidential Information is subject to Exhibit K: Department
Information Security Requirements and Exhibit I: DHHS Business

. Associate Agreement and all applicable Department and federal law,
rules, and agreements. Unless specifically required by the Contr^gt and

al^^edia.unless clear notice is provided to.users of the website or soc
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EXHIBIT B

Amendment #4

the Contractor agrees that site visitation must not be tracked, disclosed
or used for website or social media analytics or marketing.

6.3.3. State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

6.3.3.1. All right, title and interest in the State WWW site,
including copyright to all Data and information, shall.,
remain with the State of New Hampshire. The State of
New Harnpshire shall also retaio all right, title and

.  interest in any user interfaces and computer instructions
embedded within the WWW pages. All WWW pages and
any other Data or information shall, where applicable,
display the State of New Hampshire's copyright.

6s
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Exhibit C-19, Budget Sheet, Amendment tt4, SFY 2024

• New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.-

Project Title: Facilitating Organization for Family Resource Centers • DCYF Kinship: add additional $1,000,000 to existing $325,000

Accounting String: 05-95-045-450010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, KINSHIP

Budget Period: SFY24: July 1, 2023 • June 30, 2024

Total Proqram Cost Funded by DHHS contract share

Line Item Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total '

1. Total Saiary/Waqes S 334,597.34 S $ 334.597.34 S 334.597.34 S S 334,597.34

2. Employee Benefits $ 83,649.34 $ $ 83.649.34 S  83,649.34 $ $  . 83.649.34

3. Consultants S 103,370.00 $ $ 103.370.00 S 103,370.00 $ $  103.370.00

4. Equipment: $ . s $ - S - $ $ •

Rental $  1.261.00 S  r -s 1,261.00 s 1,261.00 $ $ 1,261.00

Repair and Maintenance $ . s $ - s •  - $ $

Purchase/Depreciation S . s $ s s $

5. Supplies: $ S $ - s - s $ -

Educational $ 2,000.00 s s 2.000.00 s 2,000.00 s $  2,000.00

Lab ■ s .  . $ $ - s - s s -

Pharmacy $ s $ s s $

Medical $ - $ $ - s - s s -

Office $  2.925.00 $ $ 2,925.00 s 2,925.00 s $ 2.925.00

6, Travel $  1,713,00 $ $  1,713.00 s 1.7-13,00 s $  1,713.00

7, Occupancy $ . 12,139.00 $ S 12.139.00 s 12.139.00 $ $  12,139.00

8. Current Expenses S S $ s - S $ - -

Telephone $ 1,767.00 s s 1.767.00 s 1,767.00 S  . ■ S 1.767.00

Postaqe s 857.00 $ s 857.00 s 857.00 s $  857.00

Subscriptions s - s s s - s $

Audit and Leqal s s s • $ -  . $ $

Insurance $  230.00 s s 230.00 $ 230.00 $ S  230,00

Board Expenses $ - s s - $ - s $

9. Software s 92.716.00 s $  92,716.00 5 92.716,00 $ S 92.716.00

10. Marketinq/Communications s 56.702.58 s $  56,702.58 s 56,702.58 s $ 56,702,58

11. Staff Education and Training S  25.000.00 s S 25,000.00 $  25,000,00 $ s 25,000.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements s . s $ - 5 - $ $ -

Proqram Subcontracts $ s $ - 5 - s $

PRC Subcontracts s 485.619.00 s s 485,619.00 S 485,619.00 $ $ 485.619,00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): s - s - $ - $ -
$ $ -

Indirect As A Percent of Direct s 120.453.75 s 120,453.75 $  120,453.75 $ 120.453.75

TOTAL s 1,204,546.26 $ 120,453.75 $ 1,325,000.00 $ 1,204,546.26 S  . 120,453.75 s 1,325,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0% 10.0%

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04

Exhibit 0-19, Budget Sheet. Amendment #4, SFY 2024
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Exhibit C-20, Budget Sheet Amendment #4, SPY 2024

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust Inc.

Project Title: Facilitating Organization for Family Resource Centers • Governor Commission Funds: $100,000

Accounting String: 05-95-92-920510-33820000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,
Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Svcs, Governor Commission Funds

Budget Period: SFY24: July 1. 2023 - June 30, 2024

Total Program Cost Funded by DHHS.contract share

Line Item Direct 'Indirect ' ■ Total Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SaiaryAA/aqes S 8.288.19 S 8.288.19 S 8,288.19 S 8.288.19

2. Employee Beneftts $ 2,072.05 s 2.072.05 $ 2,072.05 $ 2.072.05

3. Consultants S  189:00 $ 189.00 $ 189.00 $ 189.00

4. Eouipment: $ - s - $ - $

Rental $  122.00 $ 122.00 S 122.00 $ 122.00

Repair and Maintenance $ . $ s $

Purchase/Depreciation $ $ s $

5. Supplies: $ • s $ . s .

Educational $  334.00 $  334.00 s 334.00 s 334,00

Lab ' - $ S - s $ .

Pharmacy S $ s $

Medical $ - s . s . $ -

Office $  112.00 $ • 112.00 s 112.00 s 112.00

6. Travel $  12.00 s 12.00 $ 12.00 S  12.00

7. Occupancy s 1.096.00 $ 1,096.00 S 1.096.00 s 1.096.00

8. Current Expenses . $ . $

Telephone $ 150,00 $  150.00 $ 150.00 $  150.00

Postage $ 68.00 $ 68.00 5 68.00 s 68.00

Subscriptions ' ' s . $ . $ s .

Audit and Legal s $ $ $

Insurance $ $

Board Expenses s . $ - S . $

9. Software S  ' 289.00 s 289.00 s 289.00 $  269.00

10. Marketing/Communications $ 11,135.19 S 11,135.19 s 11,135.19 $ 11,135.19

11. Staff Education and Training S • $ $ - S -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements S • $ $ $

Program Subcontracts $ 1,883.00 s 1,883.00 s 1,883.00 $ 1,883.00

PRC Subcontracts S  65,158.66 s 65,158.66 s .65,158.66 $  65,158.66

13. Other (specific details mandatory): S - $ . $ $

Indirect As A Percent of Direct S •  - $  9,090.91 $ 9,090.91 s - S  9,090.91 %  ■ 9,090.91

TOTAL $ 90,909.09 S  9,090.91 $ 100,000.00 s 90,909.09 $  9,090.91 $ 100,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0% 10.0%

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04

Exhibit C-20, Budget Sheet Amendment #4. SPY 2024 Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C»21, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SPY 2024

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

Project Title: Facilitating Organization for Family Resource Centers • Community Collaboration: $754,760

Accounting String: 05t95^90-90201 0-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
r  PUBLIC HEALTH Diy, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

Budget Period: SFY24: July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

Total Program Cost Funded by DHHS contract share

Direct Indirect Total . Direct Indirect "  Total

1. Total Salary/Waqes S 40.000.00 S  40.000.00 S 40.000.00 S 40.000.00

2. Employee Benefits $  10,000.00 S 10.000.00 $ 10.000.00 $ 10,000.00

3. Consultants s 155,000.00 $ 155.000.00 S  155.000.00 $ 155,000.00

4. Ecuipment: $  ' -
$ •

Rental s 400.00 $ 400.00 s 400.00 S  400.00

Repair ar>d Maintenance $ -
$ •

Purchase/Depreciation $ $

5. Supplies: $ $

Educational S s

Lab s s
-

Pharmacy s $ •

s - s -

Office S  600.00 $ 600.00 s 600.00 $ 600.00

6. Travel $ 150,00. $ 150.00 s 150.00 s 150.00

7. Occupartcy $ 1.326.00 s 1.326.00 s 1.326.00 S  1.326.00

8. Current Expenses $ . $ - s •
$

•

Telephone s 100.00 s 100.00 s 100.00 $ 100.00

Postage $ 125.00 s 125.00 s 125.00 $ 125.00

Subscriptions $ . s s ■
s •

Audit and Legal $ s s $

Insurance $ $  • • s s

Board Expenses s $ $ s
■

9, Software S ■ s ■ s - s -

10. Marketing/Communications $ 2,500.00 $ 2.500.00 s  2.500.00 S 2,500.00

11. Staff Education and Training $ . $ - s • $ •

12. Subcontracts/Agreements s 300.000.00 $ 300,000.00 s 300,000.00 s  . 300.000.00

FRC Subcontract s 196.400.00 s 196.400,00 s 196,400.00 s 196.400.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ ■
$

Indirect As A Percent of Direct $ $  48.159.00 $ •48,159.00 % S  48,159.00 $ 48,159.00

$ -
$ -

TOTAL $ 706,601.00 $  48,159.00 $ 754,760.00 % 706,601.00 $  48,159.00 $ 754,760.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 6.8% 6,8%

New Hampshire Children's Taist. Inc.
SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04

Exhibit 0-21. Budget Sheet. Amendment #4. SFY 2024
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Exhibit C-22 Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SFY 2024

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust, inc.'

Project Title: Facilitating Organization for Family Resource Centers • PH COVlD-19 Health Disparities: $100,000

Accounting String: 05-095-090-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:
PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION. BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE. PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

Budget Period: SFY24: July 1, 2023 ■ June 30, 2024 .

Line Item

Total Program Cost Funded by DHHS contract share

Direct indirect Total •• Direct Indirect
1. Total SalarvA/Vaoes

2. Empiovee Benefits

3. Consultants

4. Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

5. SuDOlies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

a. Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10; Marketing/Communications

11. Staff Education and Training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements

Program Subcontracts

FRC Subcontracts $  100.000.00 $  100,000,00 S  . 100.000.00 S  100.000.00
13. Other (specific details mandatory): S $

■

TOTAL S  100,000.00 $ S  100,000.00 $  100,000.00 S S  100,000.00 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A04
Exhibit C-22, Budget Sheet. Amendment IM, SFY 2024
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Exhibit C-23, Budget Sheet, Amendment #4, SFY 2024

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

Project Title: Facilitating Organization for Family Resource Centers - Child Development, ARPA Child Care CCDF: $900,000

Accounting String: 05-095-042-421110-24290000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: •
HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, ARPA CHILD CARE CCDF

Budget Period: SFY24; July 1, 2023 • June 30, 2024

-  • • - • • Total,Program Cost Funded by DHHS contract share

Line Item Direct Indirect •Total Direct Indirect • Total

1. Total SalarvAVaqes $  87.750,00 S 87.750.00 S 87.750,00 $ 87,750.00

2. Employee Benefits • $  21,937.50 $  21.937.50 $ 21,937.50 S 21,937.50

3. Consultants $ S S •  - S
-

4. Equipment: $ - s - s - s -

Rental $  75.00 $ 75.00 s 75.00 s 75.00

Repair and Maintenance S - $ - $ -

$

Purchase/Depreciation s $ s $

5. Supplies: $ $ s s

Educational s $ s $

Lab $ $ $ $

Pharmacy s $ s S

Medical $ . $ s -  • $
-

Office s 1,200.00 $ 1,200,00 s 1,200.00 s 1.200,00

6, Travel $ s ■ $ • s •

7. Occupancy s 975.00 s 975.00 S  975,00 s 975.00

8. Current Expenses $ . $ • $ • $
-

Telephone s 60,00 s 80.00 s 60.00 s 60.00

Postaqe s 45.00 s 45.00 $  45.00 s 45,00

Subscriptions s . $ S • s •

Audit and Leqal $ $ s $

Insurance $ $ s $

Board Expenses $ $ S $

9. Software $ . $ - s -
$ -

10. Marketinq/Communications $  392.177.50 $ 392.,177.50 s 392.177,50 $ 392,177.50

11. Staff Education and Traininq $ . $ - s - $
-

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ 350.000,00 $  350.000.00 s 350.000.00 $  350,000.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): • $ $ •

Indirect As A Percent of Direct $  45.780.00 s 45.780.00 S  45,780.00 s 45.780,00

TOTAL $ 854,220.00 S  45,780.00 $ 900,000.00 s 854,220.00 $  45,780.00 s 900,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 5.4% 5.4%

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.
SS-2022-DEH S-01-N EWH A-01-A04

Exhibit C-23. Budget Sheet. Amendment #4, SFY 2024 Contractor Initials
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Sccrctar>' of State of the State of New l-lampshire, do hercb\' certify that NEW IIAMPSMIRE CMILDREN'S,

TRUST, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Ecbruar)' 09. 2010.

1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary' of State's otllcc have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 625893

Certificate Number: 0005884671

0&

y
Bk

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOI-;

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afil.xcd

the Seal ofthe State of New Hampshire,

this 17th dav of October A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretarv ofState



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Jenn Cronin, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of DIrectors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 12,2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Cliff Slmmonds, Executive Director is duly authorized on behalf of New Hampshire Children's
Trust to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments
and further Is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any
amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect
the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the. corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

ADated: June 12,2023
Sig^njT^tif^lectedofficer
Name: Jenh Cronin

Title: New Hampshire Children's Trust
Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OOnrVYY)

03/28/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 MeadowbrookLane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford • . • - NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Eleanor Spinazzola
(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188

AowiESS' Eleanorspinazzolaigeslnsurance.net
INSURER{S| AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A: Twin City Fire Insuance Co 29459

INSURED

New Hampshire Children's Trusl

105b Loudon Road Suite 201

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B: Hartford Underwriters Insuranc 30104

INSURER C;

INSURER 0;

INSURER E :

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

TOOC
IWSD VWD

POLICY EFF
(MM/DO/YYYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EXP
(MM/OOfYYYYI LIMITS

INSft
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LWBILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

OAUACE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrencal

04SBAAC7049 05/09/2023 05/09/2024

MED EXP (Afly one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN\ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

□POLICY LOC

GENERALAGGREGATE

OTHER;

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

2.000,000

1,000,000

10.000

2.000,000

4.000,000

4.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accldenU

BODILY INJURY (Per perjon)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accWeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(PeraccidanU

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH (XCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRJETOWPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH]
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

04WECAD0ZWK 05/09/2023 05/09/2024 E,L- EACH ACCIDENT 100,000

E,L- DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 100,000

E,L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD101, Additional Remarha Schedule, may be attached If more apace la required)

Certificate holder is an additional insured (CGL) as required by a signed contract with the named insured. 30 day cancellation notice.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
®1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



DocuSign Envelope ID: 91CC3FB4-B36F-4E09-935B-FA1A3834D158

New Hampshire Children's Trust .

Mission Statement: The New Hampshire Children's Trust leads the drive to ensure safe, stable,
and nurturing relationships and environments for children by educating, advocating, and
collaborating.

Vision: We envision a New Hampshire where all children grow up free from abuse and neglect.
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New Hampshire chapter of 9\
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC.

Financial Statements

For the Year Ended- December 31, 2021

{With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon)
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Melanson

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.', which comprise

the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. as'df'D^FemBef:'31;:_2021, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for^the' year-then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the'United,St"ates of America.

/ /Basis for Opinion / y
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statem'ents section of our report. We are required to be independent
of New Hampshire Children's.^Trust, fine, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance v/ith the relevant ethical Irequitements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our auditopinion. ^ !
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, Irnplementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair.presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or<\error.-

Merrimack, New Hampshire

Andover, Massachusetts

Greenfield, Massachusetts

Ellsworth, Maine 800T28'2T2440 1 melansoncpas.com
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(£) Melanson
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New

Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the
date that the financial statements are issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial

likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements..

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error,'^and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures'lnclude examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in'the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that ale appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion^on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Children's Trust Inc.'sinternal control. Accor|dingly,^no siich opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accountingjestimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.-

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the

'  aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Children's trust, Inc.'sability to continue as a going coh^rn for a reasonable period of time.
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing ofHhe audit, significant audit findings, and certain
Internal control-related matters that we i"dentified.^during the audit.

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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Melanson

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.'s 2020 financial statements,
and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our
report dated June 15; 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 is consistent, in all material respects,
with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 27, 2022 on our consideration of New Hampshire Children's Trust Inc.'s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance \with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and agreements, and other matters, the purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of New
Hampshire Children's Trust Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance..
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering New Hampshire Children's Trust Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and cornpliance.

Merrimack, New Hampshire

October 27, 2022

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC.

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021

(with comparative totals as of December 31, 2020}

2021

ASSETS

Current Assets;

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Grants receivable

Loan receivable.

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Property and equipment, net

Beneficial interest held In trust

.  Security deposit

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

1,839,068

25,023

2,520

27,543

With Donor

Restrictions

$  1,454,083 S

500

372,093

10,302

2,090

145,689

1,841,236

1,841,236

2021

Total

45,689 S 1,499,772

500

100,000 100,000

372,093

-  . 10,302

2,090

1,984,757

25,023

1,841,236

2,520

1,868,779

2020

Total

S  639,010

22,875

247,022

10,302

1,914

921,123

38,942

1,602,751

2,520

1,644,213

S  1,866,611 $ 1,986,925 $ 3,853,536 $ 2,565,336

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Refundable advance

Contract liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

161,090

47,154

726,000

123,428

1,057,672

161,090

47,154

726,000

123,428

1,057,672

$  159,797

50,088

117,514

327,399

Net Assets;

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

Board-designated

With donor restrictions:

Time or purpose restricted

Beneficial interest held in trust

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

284,559

524,380

808,939

145,689

1,841,236

1,986,925

284,559

524,380

145,689

1,841,236

2,795,864

408,784

180,013

46,389

1,602,751

2,237,937

$  1,866,611 $ 1,986,925 $ 3,853,536 $ 2,565,336

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC.

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for the.year ended December 31, 2020}

2021

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Support:

Contributions

Grants

Designated endowment distributions

In-kind contributions

Revenue:

Service fees

Other income

Net Assets Released From Restrictions

Without Donor

Restrictions

S  279,144

2,004,852

48,420

8,704

1,507,037

66,050

With Donor

Restrictions

S  165,350

(66,050)

2021

Total

$  444,494

2,004,852

48,420

8,704 "

1,507,037

2020

Total

S  306.149

1,485,481

38,515

4,118

898,522

1,110

Total Support and Revenue 3,914,207 99,300 4,013,507 2,733,895

EXPENSES

Program Services:

Family strengthening and support

Community education and advocacy

2,962,280

" 340,578

- 2,962,280

340,578

2,142,944

192,277

Total Program Services 3,302,858 - 3,302,858 2,335,221

Supporting Services:

General and administrative

Fundraising

269,813

181,755

269,813 ■

181,755

136,649

74,463

Total Supporting Services 451,568 . 451,568 211,112

Total Expenses .3,754,426 * . 3,754,426 2,546,333

Change in Net Assets from Operations 159,781 99,300 259,081 187,562

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Loss on disposal of assets

Interest

Beneficial interest (See Note 6)

(10,380)

810

69,931 238,485

(10,380)

810

308,416

1,006

177,648

Total Non-operating Activities 60,361 238,485 29S,'846 178,654

Change in Net Assets 220,142 337,785 557,927 366,216

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 588,797 1,649,140 2,237,937 1,871,721

Net Assets, End of Year S  808,939 S  1,986,925 S  2,795,864 S  2,237,937

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OtILDREN'S TRUST, INC

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2020)

2021

Program Services Supportir^g Services

Family Community Total Total

Strengthening Education Program General ar»d Supporting 2021 2020

and Surwoh and Arfvnraov Services Administrative ' FurxJraisine Services Total Total

Personnel expense:

Salaries . S 548.400 S  108,538 S  656,938 5  139,380" S  124,594 5 263,974 S  920,912 5 729.614

Payroll taxes 43,200 9,222 52,422 8,826 9,254 18,080 70,502 53,954

Employee benefits 81.028 13,442 94,470 21,720 19,658 41,378 135,848 92,904

Subtotal personrtel expense 672,628 131,202 803,830 169,926 153,506 323,432 1,127,262 876,472

Awards - - 300 300 300 250

Board expenses - 105 105 105 1,464

Conferences hosted 17,492 17,492 • - 17,492 8,717

Dues and subscriptions 4,027 193 4,220 1,973 710 2,683 6,903 4,320

Depreciation - 3,539 -- 3,539 3,539 13,819

Educational supplies 10,112 239 10,351 • • 10,351 9.192

Equipment 3,818 1,085 4,903 1,097 871 1,968 6,871 6.808

Event space rental 184 184 • -
184

-

Facilitating organization pass thru costs - • - -
4,100

Grant distribution 1,733,717 1,500 1,735,217 • 700 700 1,735,917 1,152,220

Information techrwiogy 4,679 1,628 6,307 1,270 1,764 3,034 9,341 7,949

Irvkind services and donations:

Baby hats • • - -

Professional services -
8,704

-
8,704 8,704 4,118

Public service anrwurKemenls - - - - -

Supplies - - - -

Insurance - 2,325 • 2,325 2,325 2,120

Marketing/advertising 48,316 166,514 214,830 453 1,533 1,986 216,816 115,244

Mlsccllar>eous - 1,302 570 • 1,872 1,872 1,414

Occupancy 40,235 10,272 50,507 11,471 9,324 20.795 71,302 70,373

Office expense 13,589 8,320 21,909 8,940 8,270 17,210 39,119 93,255

Postage and mailing 2,698 1,011 3,709 297- 1,711 2,008 5,717 3,583

Printing and copying - 7,653 7,653 366 142 508 8,161 3,201

ProfesslotuI and contracted services 389,303 390 389,693 51,249 693 51,947 441,640 •  109,126

Professiortal development 9,696 216 9,912 3,372 261 3,633 13,545 44,033

Program supplies 5,629 9,173 14,802 - • 14,802 2,720

Refreshments • - - - - 1,472

Telephone aivf intense! 4,890 1,182 6,072 1,444 1,219 2,663 8,735 7,155

Travel 1,267 - 1,267 1,980 176 2,156 3,423 3,208

Total S  2,962,280 S  340,578 S  3,302,858 S  269,813 S  181,755 S 451,568 5  3,754,426 S 2,546,333

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows .

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2020)

Cashflows From Operating Activities;

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Change in beneficial interest

.(Increase) Decrease In:

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Grants receivable

Loan receivable * •

Prepaid expenses

Increase (Decrease) In:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Refundable advance

Contract liabilities

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchases of fixed assets

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

2021

$  557,927

3,539

10,380

(238,485)

22,375

(100,000)

(125,071)

(176)

1,293

(2,934)

726,000

5,914

860,762

860,762

639,010

$ ' 1,499,772

■ 2020

$  366,216

13,819

(122,142)

(20,578)

(70,412)

(101)

1,664

156,651

31,303

117,514

473,934

(34,018)

(34,018)

439,916

199,094

S  639,010

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterrients.

7
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NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S TRUST, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

1. Organization

Vision for New Hampshire - We envision a New Hampshire where all children grow up
free from abuse and neglect.

Mission - We lead the drive to ensure safe, stable, and nurturing relationships and

environments for children by educating, advocating, and collaborating.

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. (the Organization) is mandated as the Governor's

Designated Statewide Prevention Agency under Community-Based Child Abuse
Prevention (CBCAP) as the New Hampshire chapter of Prevent Child Abuse America

(PCAA), and as a member of the National Alliance of Children's Trust and Prevention

Funds (the Alliance). Founded in 1986 as the New Hampshire Children's Trust Fund, ia
quasi-governmental organization, the agency transitioned to New Hampshire Children's
Trust, Inc., a 5dl(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, in 2011.

The Organization impacts the lives of children and families through the following
programs:

•  Family Strengthening and Support - Investments in primary prevention are essential
to building a New Hampshire where children grow up free from abuse and neglect,
and where all families have access to comprehensive and responsive supports, so

they are healthy, learning and thriving now and in the future. The Organization
operationalizes this strategy by providing comprehensive supports and services to
mission-driven organizations. As New Hampshire's Family Resource Center
Facilitation Organization & Quality Specialist (FO), the Organization coordinates
resources and public awareness activities, and provides training and technical
assistance for the implementation of operational quality control standards for
Family Resource Centers (FRC) statewide to standardize practices and service

delivery, across programs. The Organization developed, implemented, and oversees
New Hampshire's Kinship Navigation Program, which provides formal supports and

services to kinship families statewide. Additionally, the Organization developed,

implemented, and manages New Hampshire's Family Support Data System (FSDS), a
common platform for agencies to track and report on program data and family
outcomes. Data derived from FSDS is used to inform actions and service delivery.

The Organization adheres to the Strengthening Families Framework and the

Essentials for Childhood Framework to create the context for healthy children and
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families through programs, policy, and social norms change with the ultimate goal
being increased opportunities for all New Hampshire children and families.

•  Community Education and Advocacy - This strategy focuses on the community and
society domains of public health social ecological framework. Informed by the latest
research, best practices and emerging best practices in child abuse and neglect
prevention, It provides education and support to elected officials; community, faith

and business leaders; parents; providers; and concerned citizens. It includes public
education and awareness campaigns such-as BE PREVENTION, Kinship Navigation,

Family Support NH, and creates pathways for" participant engagement through
activity books and other materials so children can thrive in safe, stable, and

nurturing environments.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in preparing and
presenting the accompanying financial statements.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted, in -the United States of
America (GAAP).

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2020, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months
or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes,

are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for services
and programs. The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Organization's management and adjusted as required
through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad debt expense). At December 31, 2021
and 2020, management believes all receivables to be fully collectable.
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Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are

recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be

collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present value
techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the

assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,

amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the Statement of

Activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions is based on historical

experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent

collections. Contributions are written off when deemed uncollectable. Management has
determined that no allowance is necessary.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a

right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been
substantially met. Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable

contracts and grants, which the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses and/or the
performance of certain requirements have been met or performed. The allowance for

uncollectible grants receivable is based on historical experience and a review of

subsequent collections. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $2,500 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at
fair value at the date of donation. If donated. Depreciation Is computed using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 7
years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser

of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise

disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss

is included in the Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not
improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever

events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be

recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and

eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to
the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of

asset impairment in 2021 or 2020.

Beneficial Interest Held in Trust

The Organization is the beneficiary of an agency endowment fund held at the New

Hampshire Charitable Foundation. The beneficial interest in the trust Is reported at its
fair value, which is estimated as the fair value of the underlying trust assets.

Distributions of income from the trust assets are to be used to plan and initiate
programs to prevent child abuse and neglect. The value of the beneficial interest in the
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trust is adjusted annually for the change in its estimated fair value. Those changes in
value are reported as changes in net assets with donor restrictions. The assets in the
trust will never be distributed to the Organization.

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor {or certain
grantor) imposed restrictions. The Board has designated, from net assets without donor
restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are ternporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual In nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash,, securities or other assets, an
unconditional promise to give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received.
Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier, and a right of return^ are hot recognized until the conditions on which they
depend have been substantially met.

A portion of revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and grants, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable
qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when we have
incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts
received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances
in the Statement of Financial Position. Grant revenue from contributions that were

initially conditional, which became unconditional with restrictions during the reporting
period, and for which those restrictions were met during the reporting period, is
reported as net assets without donor restrictions.

Revenue derived from providing program services is recognized as the services are
provided. Program service fees paid in advance are deferred to the period to which they
relate. Payment for trainings and conferences is required before the service is provided
and is recorded as a contract liability until the performance obligation is met. Due to the

nature and timing of "the performance and/or transfer of services, certain contract
liabilities at December 31 of each year are recognized in the following year.
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Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration,
and fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not
reflect the value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition

criteria prescribed by GAAP. GAAP allows recognition of contributed services only if
(a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or (b) the services would have

been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and are
provided by individuals possessing those skills. Donated professional services are
recorded at the respective fair value of the services received. Contributed goods are

recorded at fair value at the date of donation and as expenses when placed in service or

distributed. Donated use of facilities is reported as a contribution and as an expense at

the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the use of
the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one year, the amount is
reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give at the date of the gift,
and the expense is reported over the term of use.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the Organization's various programs and activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. The Statement of

Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.
Certain categories of expenses are attributed to more than one program or supporting
function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services, benefited on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied.
Expenses that relate solely to the functional categories are directly charged, however,
there are certain expenses that are allocated. Expenses that are allocated include
utilities, repairs and maintenance, depreciation, certain Insurances, interest, salaries

and wages, benefits, and payroll taxes, which are allocated based on time and effort
estimates.

Measure of Operations

The Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets, including changes in net
assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities consist of those
Items attributable to the Organization's ongoing programs and services. Non-operating
activities are limited to resources outside of those programs and services and are

comprised of non-recurring gains and losses on sales and dispositions, interest, and
changes in the beneficial Interest held in trust.

Income Taxes

The Organization has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt
from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section SOl(a) as an

organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for charitable contribution
deductions, and has been determined not to be a private foundation. The Organization

Is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990)
with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject to Income tax on net Income that is
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derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. In 2021 and

2020, the Organization was not subject to unrelated business income tax and did not file

an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.-

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash and money market accounts with

financial institutions believed to be creditworthy. The Organization carefully manages its
bank accounts and monitors deposits to ensure insurance limits are not exceeded. To

date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated,

with receivables is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates.

Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the.

measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is,

directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to
determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions

market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are
inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best
information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

•. Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that are accessible at the'measurement date.

•  Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar

assets or liabilities In markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

•  Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are
developed using the best information available in the circumstances.
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In some cases, the Inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might
be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair
value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level Input that is significant to the entire measurement.
Assessing the. significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires
judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization
of an asset or liability within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the
asset or liability and does not necessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality,
risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In September 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and
Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to
improve transparency In the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also knovyn as
gifts-ln-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial
assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and equipment; the use of fixed
assets or utilities; materials and supplies, such as food, clothing, or pharmaceuticals;
Intangible assets; and recognized contributed services. The ASU requires a not-for-profit
organization to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the
Statement of Activities, apart from contributions of cash or other financial assets. It also
requires certain disclosures for each category of contributed nonfinancial assets
recognized. The amendments in this ASU should be applied on a retrospective basis and
will be effective for the Organization for the year ending December 31, 2022. .Early
adoption is permitted. The Organization Is currently in the process of evaluating the
impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The ASU requires all leases with
lease terms more than 12 months to be capitalized as a right of use asset and lease
liability, on the Statement of Financial Position at the date of lease commencement.

Leases will be classified as either finance jeases or operating leases. This distinction will
be relevant for the pattern of expense recognition in the Statement of Activities. This
ASU will be effective for the Organization for the year ending December 31, 2022. The
Organization Is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU
on the financial statements.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (Including trade receivables) measured
at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected.
Thus, the Statement of Activities will reflect the measurement of credit losses for newly
recognized financial assets, as well as the expected increases or decreases of expected
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credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU will be effective for the

Organization for the year ending December 31, 2023. The Organization is currently In

the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial
statements.

3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other

restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the Statement of Financial Position
date, are comprised of the following at December 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Financial assets'at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Grants receivable

Loan receivable

Beneficial interest held in trust

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Board-designated reserve

Net assets with donor restrictions:
-f

Beneficial interest held in trust

Total financial assets available within one year

Additional liquidity resources:

Bank line of credit

Total financial assets and liquidity resources

available within one year

$  1,499,772 $ 639,010

500

100,000-

372,093

10,302

1,841,236

3,823,903

(524,380)

300,000

22,875

247,022

10,302

1,602,751

2,521,960

(180,013)

(l,84i;236) (1,602,751)

1,458,287 739,196

300,000

$  1,758,287 $ 1,039,196

Time and purpose restricted net assets, included in net assets with donor restrictions,

are expected to be met in less than one year and, therefore, are available for spending.

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet it operating heeds and
other contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its

available funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next year, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates

collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-

restricted resources.
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4. Loan Receivable

In 2016, the Organization entered Into a one-year, unsecured $10,000 loan agreement
with the New Hampshire Community Loan Fund (the Fund). The Organization has
renewed the loan agreement annually and the loan has a current maturity date of
June 30, 2022. Interest is compounded annually at a rate of 1% per annum. The Fund is
a nonprofit voluntary corporation that provides services to lower income households
and disadvantaged people in the form of housing, educational resources, and financing
for community based development projects. The Organization believes the Fund directly
Implements the Center for the Study of Social Policy's Strengthening Families' Protective
Factors by providing concrete supports to these families in times of need and increasing

their social connections. Through the Fund's financial support of other community
organizations, it also helps indirectly with the implementation of the Strengthening
Families Framework last two Protective Factors: Parental Resilience, Knowledge of

Parenting and Child Development, and Social and Emotional Competence of Children.

As discussed in Note 2, the Organization is required to report its fair value
measurements in one of three levels, which are based on the ability to observe in the

marketplace the inputs to the Organization'S;valuation techniques. Level 3 is for assets
measured using inputs that are unobservable, and Is used in situations for which there is
little, if any, market activity for the asset. Using Level 3 valuation technique, the
estimated fair value of the loan receivable at December 31, 2021 and 2020 has been

determined to be $10,302 and $10,302, respectively.

5. Property and Equipment .

Property and equipment is comprised of the following at December 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment $ 36,127 $ 71,413

Less accumulated depreciation (11,104) (32,471)

Total $ 25,023 $ 38,942

Depreciation expense totaled $3,539 and $13,819 for the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

6. Beneficial lnterest Held in Trust

The Organization is the beneficiary of an agency endowment fund created by New
Hampshire RSA 169-C:39-c and held at the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (the
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Foundation). Pursuant to the terrhs of the resolution establishing this fund, property
contributed to the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate fund
specifically for the benefit of the Organization. A second agency endowment fund, the
Lucy Fowlkes Breed Legacy Fund, was created in 2010. In accordance with its spending
policy, the Foundation makes distributions from these funds to the Organization.

The beneficial .interest held in trust is reported at its fair valued which is estimated as the
fair value of the underlying trust assets. As discussed in Note 2, because there are no
observable market transactions for assets similar to the beneficial interest held in trust,

the valuation technique used by. the Organization is a Level 3 fair value measure.

Lucy Fowlkes

General Breed Legacy

Endowment Fund Total

Beneficial interest held In trust, beginning of year $ 1,585,858 $ 16,893 S 1,602,751

Investment return 314,651 3,351 318,002

Amount distributed to the Organization (69,194) (737) (69,931)

Foundation fees (9,481) (105) (9,586)

Beneficial interest held in trust, end of year $ _^^821^83^ S 19,402 $ ̂^^841^23^

*" •

The change in the fair value of the beneficial interest held in trust .is recognized in net
assets with donor restrictions in the Statement of Activities.

7. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at December.31, 2021 and 2020 consist primarily of accrued salaries and
accrued earned time.

8. Contract Liabilities

Upon receipt of a prepayment for services, the Organization recognizes a contract
liability in, the amount of the prepayment for its performance obligation to transfer
goods and services in the future. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization has
recorded contract liabilities of $123,428 and $117,514, respectively. These amounts will
be recognized as revenue when the Organization transfers goods and services and,
therefore, satisfies its performance obligations.
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Contract liabilities activity was as follows for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020:

2021 2020

Beginning balance $ 117,514 $
Activity, net 5,914 117,514

Ending balance $ 123,428 $ 117,514

.9. Line of Credit

The Organization has a line of credit with a bank that is secured by all assets of the
Organization. In May 2020, maximum borrowing on the line was increased from $50,000
to $300,000. The line is payable on demand, with regular monthly payments of all
accrued unpaid interest. Interest is variable based upon changes in an independent
index, which is the highest Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, and is calculated using a rate
of 1.5% over the index. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balance on this line of
credit was $0. The line was not utilized in 2021 or 2020.

10. Net Assets

Board-Designated Net Assets

Board-designated net assets have been established to 1) meet the Organization's
"operational demands given its uneven annual cash flow cycle; 2) be prepared for
managing uncertainties associated with federal funding; and 3) be positioned to take
advantage of opportunities for new initiatives and program expansion. Board policy
states that any interim use of these funds, when used to assist with the Organization's
cash flow, should be replaced within sixty days. The balance of board-designated net
assets at December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $524,380 and $180,013, respectively.
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Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following at December 31, 2021

and 2020:

2021 2020

Subject to the passage of time:

Operating support - future years S  100,000 $

Subject to expenditure for a specified purpose:
Strengthening Families Framework 45,000 37,800

Sumrhit sponsorships -  • 5,900

Other 689 2,689

145,689 46,389

Perpetual in nature:

Beneficial interest held in trust 1,841,236 1,602,751

Total $  1,986,925 S 1,649,140

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the

restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by
the donors as follows for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:

Strengthening Families Framework $ 37,800 $ 97,300
Summit sponsorships 22,250 4,500

New Hampshire Family Now podcasts - 7,000

My Voice Matters - 3,000

Other 6,000 1,000

Total ' ' $ 66,050 $ 112,800

11. Grants and Conditional Contributions

The Organization was awarded federal Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention
(CBCAPj grants from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. These funds
are from the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act Title II program and are

allocated to states on a per child formula. Since 1996, the Governor of New Hampshire has
designated New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. as the State Lead Agency eligible to
apply for and receive these funds. The CBCAP funds are used to strengthen and improve
prevention programs and activities. Whereas CBCAP is a cost-reimbursable grant,
$368,778 and $368,063 have not been recognized at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, because qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.
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In June 2019, the Organization was awarded a grant with the State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services to provide Family Resource Center (PRC)
facilitation and organization services in an amount not to exceed $1,004,646 and with a
completion date of June 30, 2021. In December 2019, the grant was amended to

increase the funding to $3,021,874, retroactive to October 1, 2019 with no change to
the completion date. Under this grant, the Organization provides coordination, support,
training, and technical assistance for the implementation of operational and quality
control standards for all PRC's statewide in order to increase the number of PRC's

receiving the Family Resource Center of Quality (PRC-Q) designation and standardize
PRC and PRC-Q delivery of services. The Organization also provides support to kinship
caregivers who are caring for family members because of the placement by the Division
of Children, Youth and Families (DCYP). In July 2021, the Organization was awarded a
second grant in an amount not to exceed $2,533,600 and with a completion date of
June 30, 2023. Whereas these are cost-reimbursable grants, $2,084,904 and $1,296,731
have not been recognized at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, because
qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.

Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent audit under the Office of
Management and Budget's Uniform Grant Guidance, and review by grantor agencies.
The review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the

grant or reductions of future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's
management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, contributions of approximately $0 and $20,000,
respectively, have not been recognized in the accompanying Statement of Activities
because the conditions on which they depend have not yet been met.

12. Donated Professional Services and Materials

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial number of
volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of time and services in
the Organization's program operations and in its fundraising campaigns. The following
donated services and goods met the criteria for recognition in these financial'
statements for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 based upon GAAP:

Description/purpose 2021 2020

Baby to Baby supplies ^ $ 5,200 $
Legal consultation - 3,343

Board retreat meeting space 2,346

Subscription fees 1,158 775

Total $ ■ 8,704 $ 4,118

20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 91CC3FB4-B36F-4E09-935B.FA1A3834D158

13. Retirement Plan

The Organization participates in a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section
403{b} of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan covers full-time employees of the
Organization who have worked at least 1,000 hours during the 12-month period
immediately following the date of hire. Employees may make contributions to the plan
up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions made
to the plan by the Organization for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

totaled $43,696 and $22,728, respectively.

14. Designated Funds with New Hampshire Charitable Foundation

The Organization is the beneficiary of three designated funds held at the New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation (the Foundation). Under these agreements, amounts
that are donor designated for this purpose are transferred permanently to the
Foundation. In accordance with FASB ASC 958-605-25, amounts received for the

endowment fund are not recorded as income and are not included as assets in these

financial statements. Rather, the contributions are recorded as assets and as income of

the Foundation. The fair market value of these endowment funds was as follows at

December 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

GPCF Child Abuse Fund $ 383,897 $ 334,25.4

Lou and Lutza Smith Endowment Fund ■ 534,450 465,339

Lou and Lutza Smith Administrative Endowment Fund 356,222 310,158

Total $ 1,274,569 $ 1,109,751

,  In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from the
funds to the Organization to offset its supporting services expenses. Total distributions
received were $48,420 and $38,515 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

15. Operating Leases

In August 2016, the Organization renewed the lease on its office space for a five-year

period. As part of the agreement, the Organization Is also required to pay monthly
estimated real estate taxes based on its proportionate share of the leased office space.
In July 2019, the Organization amended the lease agreement, which included moving its
office space to a larger suite, but at the same location, and extending the term until
December 2022. In July 2020, the Organization amended its office space lease
agreement to occupy additional office space. Rent expense, which is included in
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occupancy in the Statement of Functional Expenses, totaled $64,337 and $55,470 for

the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments as of December, 31,

2021:

Year Amount

■ 2022 $ 66,333 .

Total future minimum rental payments $ 66,333

In July 2022, the Organization entered into a five-year non-cancellable lease for new
office space at a new location, commencing on October 1, 2022.

In 2018, the Organization entered into a 48-month non-cancellable lease agreement for

office equipment, scheduled to expire in 2022. In July 2020, the Organization amended

the lease agreement to include the cost of additional office equipment, increasing the

fixed monthly rental payments from $394 to $518.

16. Concentration of Risk

A material part of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon government sources,
the loss of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, federal grants and contracts accounted for
87.2% and 86.7%, respectively, of total operating revenues.

17. Agency Agreement with New Hampshire Division for Children, Youth, and Families

The Organization acts as an agent on behalf of the New Hampshire Division for Children,

Youth, and Families (DCYF), where the Organization purchases goods or pays for services
when authorized and requested by DCYF. These requests are referred to as "flex fund"

requests and DCYF reimburses the Organization for the purchases or payments. DCYF

■ determines the families that are eligible to receive the goods or services. Whereas the
Organization is acting in a fiscal agent capacity, the activity under this agreement is not

recorded as revenues and expenses, in accordance with GAAP. Total activity in 2021 and

2020 amounted to $14,493 and $45,851, respectively.

18. Commitments and Contingencies

COVID-19

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States of America has resulted in economic

uncertainties, the disruption is expected to be temporary, but there is considerable
uncertainty around the duration and scope. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on
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the Organization's operational and financial performance will depend on certain
developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on those
served, funders, employees, and vendors all of which are uncertain and cannot be

predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the Organization's
•  financial condition or results of operations is uncertain; however, to date the

Organization has been able to operate at 100% capacity.

19. Subsequent Events

-  Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 27, 2022, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

■r
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CUFF SIMMONDS

MISSION STATEMENT

My mission as a nonprofit professional is to increase the impact of an organization and the effectiveness of
their staff, programs and key stakeholders. I seek a leadership position that requires my extensive nonprofit
management experience, communications skills, leadership ability and passion for the nonprofit sector to forge
effective strategies for meeting organizational goals and objectives.

QUALIFICATIONS SUMMARY

•  Innovative team leader and motivator with strong management skills and over 25 years experience
spanning the environmental, nonprofit and business sectors.
•  Highly accomplished Executive Director with 12 years experience successfully directing two premier
nonprofit organizations in New England.
•  Proven track record building relationships in the community and creatively accomplishing goals
through fundraising initiatives, program management and outreach.
•  Raised over $12 million for charitable organizations to date through personal solicitation, capital
campaigns and grant development.

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Concord, NH 2019 - present
Executive Director

"• Responsible for overseeing the administration, programs and strategic plan of the organization, while
being the face of the NHCT working closely with the Board of Directors, government officials, community
partners and the public.
•  Work to increase and promote the visibility and the engagement of the Trust with local, state and
national partners, donors and volunteers. Other duties include fundraising, marketing and community
outreach.

Agassiz Village, Lexington, MA 2010-2019
Executive Director

•  Currently, leading the reorganization, financial growth and stabilization of this 75 year old residential
summer camp for underserved youth in the greater Boston area.
•  Successfully overcame $50,000 deficit while creating a $190,000 budget surplus and doubling program
participation in less than two years.'
•  Leading an extensive strategic planning process in conjunction with Harvard Business School to
develop a long-range plan for growth.
•  Cultivating key partnerships and strategic alliances with other Boston area nonprofit organizations to
expand resources and increase mission delivery.

Beaver Brook Association, Hollis, NH 2000-2010
Executive Director

www.beaverbrook.org
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(Beauer Brook Association is a nonprofit, environmental education and land stewardship organization with a mission to promote an
understanding of interrelationships in the natural world and to encourage conservation of natural resources through education and
land stewardship.)

•  Led the successful reorganization and expansion of operations, prograrriming and funds development
doubling program participation, donor base and revenues in three years.
«  Implemented Board governance protocols and operational procedures to improve efficiencies and
minimize expenses. Restructuring education programs led to a 325% increase in revenues with a minimal
increase in expenses.
•  Spearheaded the development and execution of the organization's first capital campaign—reaching a
goal of $1.7 million. Led effort to place conser\'ation easements on organization's holdings using funds from the
campaign.
•  Increased volunteer base from 50 to 200 volunteers through program development and outreach
initiatives. Created the Eco-Team volunteer program that expanded our corporate volunteer corps and
increased corporate support.
•. Built a successful grant writing program and cultivated corporate sponsorships and gifts.
•  Managed administrative staff of eight and more than 30 seasonal educators and presenters.

Environmental Resources Management, Ewing, NJ 1994-1999
Community Relations Manager

•  Counseled major corporate clients from the utilities, pharmaceutical, petrochemical,
telecommunications and manufacturing industries on community relations outreach strategies. Managed more
than $500,000 in project budgets.
•  Developed and implemented comprehensive strategic communications plans for the successful
completion of client projects, including hazardous waste clean up, eco-restoration and facilities siting.
•  Plan implementation included organizing community action panels and public meetings, developing
communications materials and orchestrating consensus building among.community and governmental leaders.

Dynamac Corporation, Philadelphia, PA 1992-1994
Community Relations Specialist

•  Managed community and media relations for more than 24 United States Emaronmental Protection
Agency (US EPA) hazardous waste sites under the Superfund law.
•  Developed communications strategies and plans to aid in the successful clean up of contaminated sites,
including the second-most contaminated site in the US.
•  Organized public meetings and developed and distributed communications materials in support of US
EPA's technical plans and investigations. Demonstrated a strong proficiency in disseminating technical data
and jargon for public consumption.

Walter E. Fernald School, Waltham, MA 1988-1992
Director of Communications and Volunteer Services
(The oldest publiclyfunded facilityfor adults with mental retardation in the western hemisphere, dating back to 1848.)

•  Managed all internal and external communications for a facility with 2,300 employees arid 700
residents, including media relations, special events and communications and marketing materials.
•  ■ Developed and.maintained an extensive volunteer services program, resulting in growth from 50 to
1,000 volunteers in less than three years.
•  Successfully developed media crisis management protocols to improve the reputation of the facility and
gain support of key stakeholders, donors and families.

United Way of Stamford, Stamford, CT 1987-1988
Communications Associate and Photographer

o  Developed, wrote and designed newsletters, campaign updates and brochures
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•  Assisted in planning and implementing special events

EDUCATION

Antioch College, Institute for Nonprofit Management Leadership Training
Duquesne University, B.A., Public Relations
New England College, Minor, Environmental Science

RECOGNITION

Honored by the Nashua River Watershed Association as one of the "Forty on our Fortieth" award recipients
Souhegan Valley Chamber of Commerce Business of the Year Award - Beaver Brook Association
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Rebecca S. Berk, M.Ed,

PROFILE

Highly skilled and versatile nonprofit executive with broad experience in education, family support,
management, data analysis, data-based strategic planning, grant writing, and program development.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

July 2020-preseniNew Hampshire Children's Trust, Concord-
Impact and evaluation Director

Encourages a consistent culture of evaluation and Continuous Quality Improvement (CQl)
among staff and partners.
Works with staff and partners to establish evaluation needs, including identifying success metrics
and key performance indicators (KPls).
Develops and deploys evaluative tools to assess the effectiveness of new and ongoing,
organizational and slate-wide projects.
Uses data to provide actionable insights about how Family Resource Centers and others are
interacting with the community to expand participation in services and programs.
Supervises and directs the creation of interactive, easy to understand visualizations and
dashboards that drive action and communicate the impact of NHCT and PRC work.

In partnership with the Communications team, writes data summaries, final reports, and other
pieces of writing, intended for lay audiences. Advises and, when asked, takes a lead role on
evaluation for various organizational projects, including the strategic plan.
Works in partnership with staff in developing and using logic models and theories of change for
major programmatic initiatives.

Oversees the process of training and providing technical assistance to staff in 16 Family
Resource Centers and state level partners on the effective use of a common data platform
Monitors data completion and accuracy, ensures data validity, generates reports for CQl and
outcomes review.

Oversees ongoing design, customization, and improvement of data collection systems and tools,
including QuickBase, FormStack, and others as appropriate, always in pursuit of further
streamlining and coordinating the collection of data.
Manages regular reporting schedule and ongoing system monitoring for the collection and
dissemination of data, dashboards and reports to NHCT staff, directors, key stakeholders, and
Family Resource Centers.
Manages work with external evaluators.
Supervises and supports the Data and Organizational Performance Manager.

Page 1 of 3
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Future In Sight, Concord Juiy 2018-June 2020
Director of Education Services

•  Led and supported a dynamic department of itinerant, specialized teachers to serve blind and
. visually impaired students statewide in New Hampshire public schools, including budget,
caseload management, and data for continuous quality improvement

♦. Restructured business model to support 18% growth in personnel and service provision
•  Coordinated the development of NH state guidelines on the education of students who are blind

or visually impaired; NH is now one of only six states with such guidelines
• Managed cutting-edge research on the alignment of student evaluations, recommendations for

student support, and the final provisions in the lEP
•  Initiated Parent Support Network for parents of students with visual impairments

Breakthrough Manchester, Manchester March 2014-July 2018
Executive Director

•  Restructured this 25-year old initiative for low-income, first generation and racially/ethnically
diverse students from a three-year enrichment program to a.six-year college access program

•  Executed a complex program shift over three years and negotiated a partnership agreement with
Southern NH University to extend programming through high school for Breakthrough students

•  Increased fundraising by 89% over a four-year period and grew the donor base by 44% in the
same time frame, diversified and enhanced funding streams and sources

•  Revamped 8-day Training Institute for Teaching Fellows in lesson planning, classroom
management, teamwork, conflict resolution and working with diverse student populations

•  Redesigned website and communications strategy to increase donor and stakeholder engagement,
including a 62% increase in Facebook followers

NH Chitdren's Trust, Inc., Concord . 2010-2014
Quality Improvement Director

'• Co-authored two successful federal proposals ($1.4 million each) with NH Department of Health
and Human Services to develop a coordinated home visiting system in the state

•  Built capacity of 11 NH community agencies, through training and technical assistance, to
implement Healthy Families America (HFA), an evidence-based model of home visiting for low
income, diverse women, and.families

•  Developed protocols and tools to support effective collection and use of qualitative and '
quantitative data, including sophisticated spreadsheets for longitudinal collection and trend
analysis of data

•  Trained NFl Children's Trust staff and board members in the use of logic models, performance
metrics and dashboards for organizational and program monitoring

•  Revamped staff work plans to align with new strategic direction for organization
•  Directed the development of a web-based statewide referral system to connect families to

appropriate family support programs

Southeastern Regional Education Service Center (SERESC), Bedford 2004-2010
Associate Director, NH Center for Effective Behavioral Interventions and Supports

•  Directed internal and external program communication and coordination of statewide positive
behavior interventions and support (PBIS) initiative

•  Established.and maintained positive relationships with staff in 140 implementing schools, 19
contracted consultants and four program staff

Page 2 of 3
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•  Employed Iriangulation of qualitative and quantitative data from multiple sources to evaluate
student discipline data, outcome measures and school systems change indicators

•  Contributed to successful federal grant proposals to integrate school and mental health for NH
children

•  Developed comprehensive project communications, including website, e-newsletters, webinar
workshops, online event management and on-line data collection protocols

•  Coordinated program staff restructuring to align with changing initiatives
•  Co-author, "Creating Home-School Partnerships" Teaching Exceptional Children July 2008

EDUCATION

Swarthmore College; B.A. in Biology
Antioch University New England, M.Ed, in Administration, Supervision & Management

REFERENCES

Available on request

Page 3 of 3
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NATHAN J. FINK
Advocate, Educator, Optimist

EXPERIENCE

Director of Advancement

New Hampshire Children's Trust [
jSJ Sept 2018 - ongoing 9 Concord, NH
• Leading Communications, Marketing, and Development for New Ham'pshire

Children's Trust, the Governor's designated statewide community-based child

abuse prevention agency, NH's chapter of Prevent Child Abuse America, and a

member of the National Alliance of Children's Trust & Prevention Funds.

Community Relations & Grants Coordinator ^
The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

gg Oct 2015-Aug 2018 9 Manchester, NH

. • Developed an extensive grant portfolio worth over $5 million in

.  private, state, and federal appeals.

• Leadership Team Member and agency representative at various high profile

charitable events, forums, and educational presentations.

.He'ad copywflter, speechwrlier, and content generator, contributing editor of

the website re-design team, MHCGM's Narrative Bank and blog writer.

I J

MOST PROUD OF

p I ^ f- H 1Presence of mindx
j  I had to make more time for my sons j

@ The dynamic PR team.^ ^
we've assembled at the NHCT.

,

r\ ^ J^ My sincere belief i i f

that talent Is a function of curiosity ^ L,

STRENGTHS

Oration, Diplomacy,.Cultural
Sensitivity, Planning & Logistics,
Writing/Editing, Persistence

Visiting Assistant Professor

DePaul University

I Sep 2011.-June 2015 9 Chicago. IL •

Executed full 3/3/3 course load (quarter system) of self-designed,

department approved curriculum.

Member of various committees exploring the NYT pilot program, DePaul's

Student Showcase, and Fulbright Scholarship preparation.

Multiple student organization adviser and general enlistee manager.

Frequent regional and national educational conference presenter.

Co-Creator, GM, & Head of Sales

Outdoor Oudet, LLC

O'Aug-2004 • May 2007 9 oshkosh. Wi
I  !"i^o-Creator, designer, and manager of 3 commerce websites,
employing 10+ employees in a 15,000 square foot facility.

• Propelled net sales to $350,000+ in peak months.

• Branded and marketed sites on various online platforms (social media),

while compiling, analyzing, and reporting financial data'.

•  Integral In the purchasing of wholesale product and subsequent logistical

distribution.

LANGUAGES

English
OOOQO

Native

Spanish
ooomm

Advanced

EDUCATION

MFA, Writing
University of New CPA

Hampshire 4.00 / 4.00

^.Sep 2009-May 2011

BA, English
CPA

University of Wisconsin 3.86 / 4.00

63 Sep 2001 - May 2004
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NICHOLAS RISC

Experience

Accounis Poyable Clerk ■ July 2009 - February 20)0

Porlnership for Successful Living ■ 45 High Street, Noshuo, NH 03060 .

Responsible for: processing invoices, doily bonk deposits, coding invoices, reception coveroge.
internal Medicoid audits, tracking cosh balances, and mailing payments.

Accounts Receivable Clerk • March 2010 - August 2010 .
Portnership for Successful Living •' 45 High Street. Noshuo. NH 03060

Responsible for: doily bonk deposits, processing poyments. client occounts, gronts receivoble,,
security deposits, collections, evictions, trocking poyments. ond providing reports to monogement.

Senior Staff Accountant ■ August 2010- January 2017
Portnership for Successful Living • 45 High Street, Noshuo, NH 03060

Responsible for: general ledger octivity for Portnership for Successful Living, bonk reconciliotions,
bolonce sheet reconciliotions, journol entries, poyroll processing, gront drov^downs, budgets, cosh
tronsfers, tracking copitol expenditures, trock construction projects, mointoin fixed ossets, oversee
occounts poyoble/occounts receivoble, ond month end closings.

Financial ,Speciali.st • Jonuory 2017-November 2020
Portnership for Successful Living • 77 Northeostern Blvd. Noshuo, NH 03063

Responsible for: Mointoining generol ledger, mointoin fixed ossets, bonk reconciliotions, monthly
reporting, reviev^ing finonciols. journol entries, gront drowdowns. controct procurement, reconcile
occounts poyoble/occounts receivoble. providing finonciol projections ond budgets to upper
monogement. ond month end closings.

Accountant/Controller • November2020-Jonuory2022
New Hampshire Children's Trust ■ 10 Ferry Street Suite 307, Concord, NH 03301
Responsible for preparing occounts poyoble ond occounts receivoble invoices, month end
closing, reconcile bonk stotements, prepore ond submit budgets for controcts. gront complionce,
ond finonciol reporting to executive director ond bbord. Also responsible for focilitoting oudit ond
monitoring budgets with progroms monogers, mointoining fixed assets, ond ony other projects
ossocioted with finance ond occounting.

l3irc;ctor of Finance ■ Jonuory2022-Current

Responsible for preporing occounts poyoble ond occounts receivoble invoices, month end
closing, reconcile bonk stotements, journal entries; gront invoicing, prepore ond submit budgets for
controcts, gront complionce, finonciol projections, ond finonciol reporting to executive director
ond boord. Also responsible for focilitoting oudit ond monitoring budgets with progroms monogers,
mointoining fixed ossets. ond ony other projects ossocioted with finonce ond occounting.
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1
Skills

■  Proficient in non-profit occounting-softwore MIP. Microsoft Office opplicotions, writing,
communicotion, end technology. Fomilior with QuickBooks.

Education

Raymond High School ■ 2004

Southern New Hampshire University

2013 ■ AS Business Administration 2016 • BS Business Administration

■  Completed associates degree in business administration with highest honors. Member of Phi
Theto Kappa, Alpha Sigma Lambda, and Delta Mu Delta honor societies, completed bachelor
degree Mogna Cum Laude.

References- Furnished upon request

-  Nicholas Rise Page 2 ■ . - . ' j
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salar>' % Paid from -

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Cliff Simmonds Executive Director $160,968 67% $107,848

Becky Berk Senior Program Director
(Interim)

$96,523 95% $91,709

Nathan Fink Director of Advancement $101,350 65% $65,877

Nicholas Rise Director of Finance $101,350 69% $69,931
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

department of health and human services

DlVISIOl^ OFECOmMIC & HOVSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-80(1.852-3345 ExL 9474

Fa*: 603-271-4230 TDD Ac«e$s: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhj.nh.gov

Q

laieria ComtalMioner

Karco E. lltberl

Dirtcior

December 29. 2022

Hi3 Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councit

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
F^EQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter Into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with New
Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. (VC #218449), Concord, NH for the ongoing support o' Pamly
Resource Centers (PRCs) across the state to receive the "Family Resource Center of Quality
(FRC-Q) designation to achieve national standards, assist youth and families involv^ with the
Juvenile Justice system, further support the Kinship Navigator Program, P^vide training to
community-based providers of family support services, and to continue addressing health
disparities across the state by exercising a contract renewal o^ion by
limLtion by $2,991,422 from $4,733,465 to $7,724,887, and extending,the completion date
from June 30. 2023 to June 30, 2024, effective upon Governor andCouncil approval. 52.36%
Federal Funds. 47.64% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Councif oh June 30. rtem
#41, amended on October 13. 2021, item #20, and most recently amended on Apni 6. 2022,
Item #8.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024, upon 'he availability and^conbnued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authonty to adjust bud^t
items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal yeans fhrough the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contrador is uniquely
qualified to provide statewide support to PRCs because the Contractor has ^ork r^
effectively applying evidence-based standards and services to kinship families with the goal of
strengthening families statewide.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to provide linfrastructure
■and 'Support for the statewide network of FRCs, including the Kinship Nawgation Program,commanity-based and the Community Health Workers (CHW) staffing support with
additional funds appropriated within Senate Bill 444 (SB444) to support the servic^. In addition,
this request will expand the scope of services to include Juvenile Justice Integration.

The Deporlmenl of Health and Hiimon Services' Mission is lojoin commuhUtes and families
in Jo achieve health and indejMndence.
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SB444 was signed into law by the Governor on June 17, 2022. effective July 1, 2022.
' SB444 was enacted to mrtigate adverse childhood experiences and appropriated the sum of
$1.000.000 to the Department to provide continued support to the PRCs as
work designed to mitigate adverse childhood experiences. ^
better serve families, prepare for "Family Resouic© Center of Quality" (FRC-0) designation,
enhance coordination' with early childhood systems such as Adverse Childhood
Response Team. Community Collaborations and support evidence-based programs including
homevlsiting programs, and support the current critical work of the PRCs.

This request Is also to expand the scope of service to include Juvenile Justice integration
and to add funding for three (3) existing services at the PRCs;

1  .hivftniie Justir-fl integration will continue to advance the Department's Initiative to
transform and improve the.State's Juvenile Justice System by providing ̂
soace at each PRC, as a convenient.location for the youth and their family; enabling the
jSvenile Probation Parole Officers (JPPO) to meet and work vvitti the youth and tami^°
In a community-based setting. In this environment, the JPPO will work to engage with
youth and families in a supportive and collaborative environment.-At the initial point of
intact with law enforcement, the JPPO will work with youth and their families to condud
a formal Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) assessmerit. This
assessment provides law enforcement with recommendations regarding the level of
intervention needed for youth and their families. The Department has determined the
PRCs are supportive and convenient locahoos 'or youth and their families.

0  kin«thtn Navioatlon will expand case management and barrier resolution^supports to
families that are in a kinship relationship. The added furiding will allow the Contractor to
provide addihonal technical assistance, training and support for the ongoing program
evaluation to ensure best practices as Kinship Navigator caseloads continue to increase
statevride. There are currentiy 645 Kinship families participating in this program.

3  1" ̂ ^"'rnf.nitv-hased providers in evidence-based services will be expanded
statewide to providers of Comprehensive Family Support Se^ces.
Motivational Interviewing. Strengthening Families Protective Factors and Standards o
Quality.

4  Health Wofkers will continue to dedver comprehensive suppcrts proM^ by
PRCs and specifically address some of the economic and health impacts re ated to
COVID-19 CHWs will provide resource identification and connections to mental health,
health care, substance use disorder, economic supports, and food and nutntion programs
for families.

Through this contract, the Contractor administers a data system used by This
data platform is now supporting PRCs with consistent, statewide data collection and outwrnesenabHng r Department to rSeasure the posrtive Impact of the services provides to
supporl family strengthening and child well-being. .The
dashboards and reports; incfuding perfodrc, pecfotwance metncs, demographic and dispanties
reports.

Approximately 8,252 families virill be supported, through this amendment;
•  6,400 families will continued to be served annually through the PRCs.
• Approximately 1.000 families will be served annually through Juvenile Justice

Integration;
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•  Approximately 250 additional families will be served annually through Kinship
Navigation; and

• Approximately 602 families will be served annually through the work of the CHWs.
In addition to the families being served:

• Approximately 75 additional community-based agencies will be served annually
with training; and . ' ^

. Approximately 15 CHWs will continue to provide support "under, the Health
Disparities Grant to the statewide network of PRCs.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Section 1 Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions, 3 3.
of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Governor .and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to
renew sen/ices for one (1) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the Department wll be
unable to expand the Kinship Navigator Program, train community-based Providers and address
health disparities due to COVID-19; The Juvenile Justice system will not have
and convenient locations to meet with youth and their familie?. These services to the
development of healthy families, which contribute to the development of healthy communities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds:

CFDA#93136 FA1N#NU17CE924984; CFDA #93.556, FAIN #20011 NHPKINSi
2101NHPKIN; CFDA#93.67. FAIN #90CA1858; CFDA #93.391, FAIN #NH750T000031; CFDA
#93 575, FAIN #2101NHCSC6; CFDA #16.54, FAIN #20l9-JX-FX-0052; General Funds,
Governor's Commission and General Funds.

In the event that the Federal. Other Funds or General Funds become no longer
available, additional General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

lespectfully submitted.

Loi^. Weaver
Interim Commissioner
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Fiscal Detail Sheet Amendment ffS

05-95.04M50010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMIlY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP

100%Conoral Funds

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. Vendor #218449

Stele Fiscel

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current ArrxKjnt

$325,000

Increase

(Decfeasel

|0

Revved Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts (or Prog 45001601 $325,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts lor Prog Svc 45001601 S325.000 $1,000,000 $1,325,000

2024 102-S00731 Contracts for Prog S\c 45001601 To $325.000

Sub Total $650.000 SI .325.000

$325,000

$1.975,000

05-95-045-450010-72160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP

100%Federel Fur>ds

Vendor #218449

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 S199.600 $0 $199,800

2023 074-500569 Grants lor Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 5199.800 $0 $199,800

2024 074-500569 Grants (or Pub Assist and Kelt 45001602 $0 $199,600 $199,800

Sub Total $399,600 $199,600 $599,400

05-095-090-9020-50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION. COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES

lOO^Fodoral Furrds

New Hampsr

State Fiscal

Year

ireuniMrens irus

Class / Account

. inc.

Class Title Job Number Current Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Anvount

$831,618
2022

2023

102-500731

102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90050405 S747.247 $286,222 $1,035,469

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90050405 $0 SO SO

Sub Total S1.578.865 $288,222 $1,867,087

05-95-92.920510-33820000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. Bureau of Drufl 4 Alcohol Svcs, Governor Commission Funds

100%Goneral Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / AccourM Class Title Job Number Current Amount

' increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 92058502 S10C.0O0 SO $100,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts (or ProQ Svc 92058502 SO SIOO.OOO $100,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92058502

o
%/>

so $0

Sub Total S100.000 $100,000 $200,000

I va VVVV « "Wa-sw • I e r>«.air . - . . -

HUMAN SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV. COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

100%Fodora1 Funds'

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Oass Title Job Number Current Amount .

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90070470 S35.00C.00 SO.OO S35.000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc ' 90070470 SO.OO so.oo $0.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90070470 so.oo $0.00 $0.00

Sub Tola! S35.000.00 $0,00 S35.000.00

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.
SS.2022-DEHS-01.NEWHA-01-A03

Page 1 of 1
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Fiscal Detail Sheet Amendment 113

05-09M90.901010.57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH
DIVISION. BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE. PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

100% Federal Funds

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class / Account . Class Title Job Number . -Current Amount

Increase

fOecrease^
Revised AmounI

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc TBD S910.000 SO $910,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc T8D S910.000 S930.000 Sl.d40.000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for ProQ S^« TBD •• SO SO SO

Sub Total 51.820.000 $930,000 $2,750,000

05^5^2-421110-24300000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT. ARPA CHILD CARE STABILIZATION

100% Federal Funds

Stale Fiscal
Class 1 Account ' Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

fOecrease^
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Sw: 42117774 S37.499 SO 537,499

2023 102-500731 Contracts for ProQ Svc 42117774 S112.501 SO S112.501

2024 102-500731 Contracts (or Proo Svc 42117774 SO SO SO

Sub Total $150,000 SO $150,000

05.95-42-421410-79060000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS; HUMAN SERVICES. JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES. OJJDP

100%Fodoral Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 072-509073 Contracts for Proa Svc 42140614 SO.OO SO.OO $0.00

2023 072-509073 Contracts (or Proq Svc 42140614 SO.OO S74.200.00 $74,200.00

2024 072-f»9073 Contracts for Proo Svc 42140614 SO.OO $74,200.00 S74.200.00

Sub Total SO.OO 5148,400.00 S148.400.00

I  Overall Totall S4.733.465l S2.99l.422l S7.724.687]

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.
SS-ZOZZ-DEHS-Ol-NEWHA-Ol-AOa

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality
Soecialist contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc. ("the Contractor').
WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council

'  ̂n Jun^o' 2021 (Item #41). as amended on October 13. 2021 (Item #20), and as amended on April. 6.
2022 (Item'#8), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified, and
WHEREAS pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17. the Contract may be arnended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council, and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term-of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.6, Account Number, to read:
1. 05-095-045-450010-72160000;

2. 05-095-090-9020-50400000;

3. 05-095-092-920510-33820000;

4." 05-095-090-902010-70470000;

5. 05-095-090-901010-57710000;

6. 05-095-042-421110-24300000; and

7. 05-095-042-421410-79060000.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Dale, to read:
June 30. 2024.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$7,724,887.

4. FormP-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to react:
Robert W. Moore, Director.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Sen/ices Amendment #1. by adding Section 1.48, to read:
1 48 The Contractor shall subcontract with the statewide network of Family Resource Centers

(FRO to provide a private, meeting space at designated FRC locations so that the Juven^e
"  Probation Parole Officers (JPPO) can meet and work with the youth and family. The

Contractor shall:

1 48 1 Coordinate a private meeting space that is In a convenient location for the youth
'  " and family and where'the JPPO completing the assessments can engage wi^h

youih and families in a coHaboratlve environment that provides privacy for the
youth and family.

1.48.2. Ensure the meetings are coordinated v^'ith the Department.

• OS

6S
.. ^u-.j . T ..I In/. A-S-l 3 Contraclor InilialsVNew Hampshire'Children s Trust. Inc. ® 1/3/2023
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1.48.3. Have availability during all regular business hours and have extended hours to
meet the needs of the families.

1.48.4. Access to the meeting space and reservation system during evening hours.

6. Modify Exhibit e Payment Terms. Section 1 to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1 24.2% New Hampshire Overdose Data to Action Program (NH 0D2A). as awarded on
January 2021, by the Centers For Disease Control And Prevention, CFDA #93.136,
FAIN#NU17CE924984. ■

1.2 7.8% Kinship Navigator Programs, as awarded on October 2020, by the Administration
for Children and Families, CFDA #93.556. FAIN #20011NHPKIN & 2101.NHPKIN.

1.3 .5% Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families, as awarded on
September 2018, by the Administration for Children and Families. CFDA #93.67, FAIN
#90CA1858.

1.4 35.6% Health Disparities Grant, as awarded on May 2021, by the Center for Disease
Control and Prevention, CFDA #93.391, FAIN #NH750T000031.

'  1.5 1.9% ARPA Child Care Stabilization, as awarded on April 2021, by the Child Care
Development Block Grant, CFDA #93.575. FAIN #2101NHCSC6.

1.6 1.9%, JJ Funds, as awarded on October 2018, by the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention, CFDA #16.54, FAIN #20l9-JX-FX-0052.

1.7 2.6% General Funds, Governor's Commission.

1.8 25.5% General Funds.

7. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms. Section 3 to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
i.. fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-19, Budget.Sheet. Amendment #3.

8. Modify Exhibit C-2. Amendment #1, Budget Sheet, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-2.
Budget Sheet. Amendment #3. SFY 2023. which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

9. Modify Exhibit C-4. Budget Sheet, Amendment #1. by replacing In its entirety with Exhibit C-4.
Budget Sheet, Amendment #3, S.FY 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Modify Exhibit C-8. Amendment #1, Budget Sheet, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-8.
Budget Sheet, Amendment #3, SFY 2023,' which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein."

11. Add Exhibit C-15, Budget Sheet. Amendment #3, SFY 2023.. which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit C-16, Budget Sheet. Amendment #3, SFY 2023, which is attached hereto and
.incorporated by reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-17. Budget Sheet, Amendment #3, SFY 2024. which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein. •

14. Add Exhibit C-18. Budget Sheet, Amendment #3, SFY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

6s
New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. • A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A03 Page 2 of 5 Date
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15. Add Exhibit C-19. Budget Sheet, Amendment #3. SFY 2024, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.

SS-2022-DEHS-01 -NEWHA-01-A03

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 5
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Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

. State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/3/2023

Date

C'
OoeuSlOMd by:

Name;*^®''®" Hebert

Title; Division Director

1/3/2023

Date

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.
0bcu$l9««il by:

Executive oi rector

. (

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.

SS-2022-OEHS-01 -NEWHA-01 -AOS

A-S-1.2 .

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been review/ed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

•  . OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/4/2023

^  Name:''°''y" Guanno 7 ^ ^
Title: Attorney

1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment \ft^as approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

■ OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc; A-S-1.2
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Exhibit C-2. Budget Sheet. Amendment »3. SPY 2023

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:'New Hampshire Chlldrons Trust. Inc.

Project Title: PacilllaOng Organltadon for Pamlly.Resource Centers-

Budget Period: SFY July 1. 2022 • Juno 30. 2023

CDC

.  / • . Total-Program Cost' •  • • ■ ■ ."1.- . •  Fundtra l>y DHHS contract share

•• Direcf^ "•Indirect'~ • Total •  ;OIrect • Indirect"

1. Total Satafy/Waqes $ 278.465.00 S S 278.485.00 S 278.485.00 $ 8 278.485.00

2. EmploYM BeneTils S 66.788.09 S $ 68.766.09 s 68.766.09 $ 8 66.788.09

3. Consultants s 824.00 s 5 824.00 s 824.00 8 8 824.00

4, Equipment: s $ S • s • 8 8 -

.Rental i 833.00 $ $ 833^00 s 833.00 8 8 833.00

Repair and Maintenarce s . - • s S • s - $ S •

Purchase/Depreciation s $ $ s 8 8

5. Supplies: . $ s. • i ■
8 8 •

Educatiortal s 2.312.00 $ s 2.312.00 s 2.312.00. 8 S 2.312.00

Lab $ . $  • $ • 5 • 8 8

s $ $ S $ 8

Medical $ • $ s - $ -
8 S •

Office i 1.305.00 $ s 1,306.00 i 1.305.00 8 8 1.305.00

s 635.00 $ s 835.00 s 835.00 8 8 835.00

7. Occupancy s 7.466.00 s s 7.466.00 s 7.466.00 8 8 7.466.00

d. Current Expenses s - .5 s - s • 8 8 -

Teiephooe $ . 1.024.00 $ s 1.024.00 s 1.024.00 8 8 1.024.00

Posiaqe i 836.00 S s ■ 836.00 s 836.00 8 S 836.00

Subscriptions i . s s - $ •
8 8 • •

Audit and (.eoaJ $ s s • $ • 8 8 ■

Insurance s 145.00 s $ 145.00 s 145.00 8 8 145.00

Board Expenses s s s • s - 8 8
*

9. Software s 1.970.00 s $ 1.970.00 s 1.970.00 8 8 1.970.00

to. MarVeting/Communications s . s $ -
8 S

1t. Staff Education and Training s 2.000.00 s $ 2.000.00 s 2.000.00 8 8 2.000.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ . s • s • - 8 8 -

Proqram Sutxontracts s 66.767.00 $ 66.767.00 s 66.767,00 8 8 66.767.00

PRC Subcontracts s 532.188.00 s $ 532.166.00 % 532.166.00 8 $ 532.188.00

13. Other (specrfic details nianca(ory): s - s s - s 8 8 •

s s $ s 8 S

• s s - $ 8 •
8 •

Indirect As A Percent of Drect i  . - s  69.692.91 i .  69.692.91 $ • 8 69.692.91 i 69.692.91

TOTAL s 965.776.09 S  69.692.91 % 1.035.469.00 $ 985.776.09 8 69.692.91 8 1.035,469.00

2%Indirect As A Percent ot Direct

New Hampshire Children's Trust, inc.
SS-2022-DeHS-01 -NEWHA-OI-A03

Ejchibit C-2. Budget Sheet. Amendmenl #3. SPY 2023
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Exhibit C-4. Budget Sheet. Amendment #3. SPY 2023

V

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's Trust lr>c.

Project Title: Facilitating Organization for. Family Resource Centers • General Funds SFY'23

Budget Period; SFY'23: July 1. 2022 • June 30. 2023

r  ' Total Program Cost, - . •> Funded.tiy DHHS.contract share.

Line item - DIrecf •• *• • ■ ■ -Indirect" ■ Total • ■Direct "f Indirect "

S 103.55S.34 8 S 103.558.34 S 103.558.34 S S IX.558.34

2. Emptoyee Benefits S 25.370.41 S 5 25.370.41 s 25.370.41 s s 25.370.41

3. Consultants s I3$.e57.00 $ S • 136.657.00 $ 136.657.x $ s 1X.657.X

4. Equipment s $ S ■ s -• $ s •

Rental s 1.261.00 $ i 1.261.00 s 1,261.x s 5 1.261.x

Repair arvd Mainterxance — s - $ $ - $ • 5 S -

F>urchase/Oeoreciation s $ s s s S

s . $ 5 • s .
$ 8 -

Educational s 4.266.00 s $ 4.266.00 s 4.266.x $ 5 4.266.x

s - s $ ■- s s 8 ••

Pttarmacy $ s S s s $

Medical s . s s -. s • 5 S '  •

Office $ 2.925.00 s $ 2.925.00 s 2.925.x s 8 2.925.x

6. Travd s 1.713.00 s s 1.713.00 s 1.713.x S 8 1.713.x

s 12.139.00 s s 12.139.00 5 12.139.x $ S 12.139.x

6. Current Expenses $ . s s - s • s s •

Tetephone $ 1.767.00 s s 1.767.00. s 1.767.x s 8 .  1.767.x

$ 657.00 $ s 857,00 $ a57.X s S 857.x

Sut>schptior\s s . s s . $ - s 8

Audit and Leoal s - s s - $ -
s 8 •

$ 230.00 s s 230.00 s 2X.X s 8 2M.X

Board Experises s . s $ . s • $ 5
-

9. Software s 3.191.00 $ s 3.191.x s 3.191.x $ 8 3.191.x

10. Martcetinq/Communications i 78.646.00 $ 5 78.648.x $ 78.648.x s 8 76.648.x

11. Staff Education and TrairRng i • s s s -
s  • • - 8 •

12. Sutxontracts/Agreements $ . s  . • . s - s • 5 8 •

Program Subcontracts s 30.113.00 s s . X.113.X s X.I 13.x i i X. 113.x

PRC Subcontracts s 808.937.00 s s 8M.937.X s 8M.937.X i s 808.937.x

13. Other (specific details mandatory): s $ • •s • s
-

i 5 -

Indirocl As A Percenl of Diroci $ 113.367.25 s 113.367.25 s 113.X7.25 S 113.X7.25

TOTAL s 1.211.632.75 $ 113.367.25 i 1.325.X0.X i 1,211,632.75 1 113,367.25 i .  1,32S,OOI).X

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.4%

New Hampshire Children's Torst. Inc.
SS-2022.OEHS-01-NEWHA-0t.A03
Exhibrl C-4. Budget Sheet. Amertdmenl #3. SFY 2023
Page i of 1

Contractor tnitialsiaIsV

Date
1/3/202J



OecuSi^ Envetope 10: 000034Ft-SS02-4D3C-B79»09CSlEDia8»3

Exhibit C-<. Budget Sh«et Amendment |K3, SPY 2023

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Children's-Trusl. Inc.

Project Tide: Facilitating Organlxation for Family Resource Centers Health Disparities Grant SPY*23

Budget Period: SFr23; Juty 1. 2022 - June 30. 2023

- • ■Total Program Cost •  ■ ■ "1 Funded by OHHS contract shara

Line Item .. - ■ Direct • Indirect • Total ! -• * Direct " " • •• Indirect - - • - Total

1. Total SataryfW ages S 521.000.00 $ $  • 521.000.00 $ 521.000.00 8 8 521.000.00

2. Employee Benefits s 130.250.00 $ $ 130.250.00 8 130.250.00 8 8 130.250.00

3. Consultants s 18.000.00 S $ 18.000.00 $ 18.000.00 8 8 18,000.00

4. Equipment: • $ . $ S - 8 8 S -

Rental $ a.fxn.oo $ s 2.000.00 8 2.000.00 8 8 2,000.00

Repair and Maintenance s $ s • 8 • 8 8
-

Purchase^Oepreclation i 20.000.00 s % 20.000.00 S 20.000.00 8 $ 20.000.00

S. Supplies: s . • s s ...• 8 - 8 8 -

Educational s 2.000.00 s 8 . 2.000.00 $ 2.000.00 8 8 2.000.00

Lab s . s 8 • 8 • 8 8 •

Pfiarmacy s $ 8 8 8 8

Medical $ . 5. 8 . - 8 • S S -

. Office s 3.500.00 $ S  3,500.00 8 3.500.00 s 8 3.500.00

6. Travel s 1.7X.00 $  - 8 1.700.00 8  • 1.7C0.X s 8 1,700.00

$ 28.100.00 5  • 8 28.100.00 S 28.100.00 s 8 28.100.00

8. Current Expenses s - S S - 8 - s S •

Telephone $ 2.800.00 $ 8 2.800.00 8 2.800.00 8 8 2.800.00

Poslaqe s 1.950.00 S 8 1.950.00 8 1.950.00 8 8 1.950.00

Subscriptions s $ S - 8 8 S
-

Audit and Leoai s s $ • 8 ,  - 8 8 •

Insurance % 1,600.00 s 8 1.600.00 8 1.600.00 8 • S 1.600.00

Board Expenses $ s 8 8 -
S 8 •

9. Software s 2,400.00 s 8 2.400.00 8 2.400.00 8 8 2,400.00

10. Madcetino/Communications $ . S  r S . , S - S S •

11. Staff Education arrd Tratnirtq s 7.500.00 S s 7.500.00 8 7.500.00 8 8 7.500.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements 8 . S 8 - 8 - $ 8 -

Program Subcontracts $ 91.045.00 s S 91.045.00 8 91.045.00 8 8 91.045.00

PRC Subcontracts s 800.000.00 s 8 800.000.00 S 800,000.00 8 8 800.000.00-

13. Other (specific details mandatorv): s . s 8 - 8 S S •

Additional Resources for Resource
Navig3tors(salanes and resources to sup^
resource navigator positions) $ 44.771.00 $ S 44.771.00 8 44.771.00 8 8 44.771.00

Irxfirect As A Percent of Direct s .  . S  161.384.00 8 161.384.00 S • $  161.384.00 8 161.384.00

TOTAL i 1,678.616.00 S  161.384.00 i 1,840.000.00 8 1,678,616.00 S  161.384.00 8 1.840,000.00

9Indirect As A Percent of Direct .6%

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.
SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-0t-A03
Exhibit 0-8. Budget Sheet. Amendment #3. SPY 2023
Pago t of 1
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Exhtblt C-15. Budget Sheet. Amendment «3. SPY 2023

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ContractorName: NawHampshlroChlldrensTrust. Inc.

Project TItIo; Facilitating Organiration for Family Resource Centers - Governor Commission Funds

Budget Period: SPY July 1. 2022 • June 30. 2023

Line Item

1. Total SalaryfWages

2. Emptoyee Benefits
3. Consullants

4. Equipmenl:

Rental

Repair and Maintef^arce

Purchase/Depreciation

5. Supplies:
Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

$. TroKl

7. Occupartcy .

6. Current Expenses

Teiephorte

Postage

Sut>scriptions

•Totat Program CosT
Direct indirect' Total

6.286.19

1.947.71

189.00

122.00

334.00

112.00

12.00

1.096.00

150.00

66.00

6.286.19

1.947.71

189.00

122.00

334.00

112,00

12.00

1.096.00

■150.00
66.00

Funded by-DHHS contraci ahare^
Direct-' ■ • •• -Indlfoct ' "

6.268.19
1.947.71

169.00

122.00

334.00

112.00
12.00

1.096.00

150.00
68.00

Total
6.288.19
1.947.71

189.00

122.00

334.00

112.00
12.00

1.096.00

150.00
68.00

Audit and t-egal
Insurarxte

Board Expenses
9. Software
10. Martteting/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements

Program Subcontracts
PRC Subcontracts

13. Other (specific details mandatory):

indireci As A Percent of Orect
TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

21.00 21.00 21.00

269.00 269.00 289.00

11.135.19 11.135.19 11.135.19

1.663.00 1.883.00

65.262.00 65.262.00

9.090.91

90.909.09 9.090.91

9.090.91
twrooo.oo

1.683.00
65.262.00

90.909.09

10.0%

9.090.91
9.090.91

10.0%

21.00

289.00
11.135.19

1.883.00
65.262.00

9.090.91
100.000.00

New Hampshire Children's TarsL Inc.
SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-AD3
Exhibil 0-15. Budget Sheet. Amendment *13. SFY 2023
Page 1 of 1
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Exhibit C-16. Budget She«t. Amendment «3, SFY 2023

New Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Services'

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Chlldrens Trust. Inc.

Project Title: Facilitating Organlzadon for Family Resource Centers • Juvenile Justice

Budget Period: SFY July 1. 2022 • June 30. 2023

.. -  • Totat.Proqram Cost. . . " ' Funded by.DHHS contract sitare. .

Lino item . . - ■ Direct - -  • Indirect • ■ • Total • • - • • Direct • indirect" — — -Total— '

1. Total SatarY/Waqes S 5.000.00 $ s 5.000.00 $ 5.000.00 4 S 5.000.00

2. -Emplovee BeneTiis s 1.250.00 S 5 1.250.00 s 1.250.00 S s 1.250.00

3. Consultants $ . $ S 1. s . S s -

4. EQuipmeni: s S s $ $ s

Rental s $ s s s $ -

Repair and M^nienance s s s $ s s

Purchase/Oepreciation 5 s s s s

5. Supplies: $ s s $ - s s

EducationaJ s s s s $ s

Lab ' $ s s s $ 5

PharmaCY s $ 5 s s $

Medical s s S s s $

Office s s s s 5 S

6. Travel s s s s S $

7. OccuparKv s s s $ S s

8. Current Eid)enses $ s s s S s

Telephone - s i s $ s s

Postage s s $ $ s

Subscriptions s i s $ $ s

Audit and Legal s i s $ s

Insurance $ $ $ $ s

Board Expenses s s s s  . s s

9. Software $ s s $ s

10. Marlcelinq/Communications $ s s s s $

11. St^ Education and Trt^ning $ - s s s • s ■

12. Subcontracts/Agreements s 61.204.56 s  . $ 61.204.56 s •  61.204.56 , s $ 61.204.56

13. Other (specllic details manoatorv): s -  . s - s. • s - s $ •

Indirect As A Percent of Direct. s . s 6.745.44 s 6.745.44 $ -

S  6.745-44 $ 6.745.44

TOTAL i 87.454.56 s 6.745.44 $ 74,200.00 s 67.454.56 S  6.74S.44 5 74.200.00

Indirect As A Percent et Direct 10.0% 10.0%

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.

SS-2O22-OeHS-01-NeWHA-0l-A03

Etdiibit C-16. Budget Sheet. Amendment IV3, SFY 2023
Page i o( i ■
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Exhibit C-17, Budg«t Sheet, Amenctment 03. SFY 2024

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Chlldrens Trust, Inc.

- Project Title: Facilitating Organization for Family Resource Centers • Juvenile Justice

Budget Period: SFY July 1, 2023 • June 30. 2024

.. .. , . • .. . • Total.Program Cost Funded by.DHHS contract share •

Line Item - ■' Direct Indirect " "" • Total" " " - -• -Direct r -• • -Indirect " " "• Total

1. Total SaiaryAV apes S 5.000.00 $ $ 5.000.00 S 5.000.00 5 . 5.000.00

2. Emptoyee Senents S 1.250.00 $ $ 1.250.00 $ 1.250.00 i S 1.250.00

3. Consonants s . S S • S - 5 5 -

4. Equipment: s S s 5  - S S

Flentai 5 $ s $ $ s

Repair ar>d Maintenarv^ $ s 5 S S $

Purchase/Depreciation S s S s s s

5. SuDOires: $ $ s s i s

Educational $ $  • S  •• $ $ s

Lab $ $  • s $ s s  •

Pharmacy $ ,s $ $ s s

Medical $ s s s s $

OffKte $ s s s 5 s

6. Tra<«l s s s $  - $ $

7. Occupancy • $ s s $ s $

6. Currenl Ejpenses $ s 5 $ s $

Telephone $ s S $• i s

Posiaqe s $ s s % s

Subscriptions s $ s s s s

Audit and Legal s $ s $ i s

Insurance % $ 5 s s s

Board Expenses s - $ $ s $ s

9. Software s 1.200.00 s S s 1.2CO.OO i s

10. Markelinq/Communicalions s - s $ s • s

11. Staff Education and Traininq s . s s • s -
s 5 '  •

12. Subconiracis/Aqreemenis s 60.004.56 s i 61.204.56 s 60.004.56 s  - , $ 61.204.56

13. Other (soecific details mandatorvV s . $ . s • s - s s •

indirect As A Percent of Direct > s . s 6.745.46 s 6.745.44 s ■  • S  6.745.46 5 6,745.44

TOTAL s 67.454.56 s 6.745.46 1 74.200.00 s 67.454.56 (. - -6.745.46 1 74,200.00

indirect As A Percent of Direct tO.0% 10.0%

New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc.
SS-2022-OeHS-01 -NEW HA-01-A03
ExhiWl C-17. Budget Sheet. Amendment #3. SFY 2024,
Page 1 ol 1

Contractor Initials
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DtVISlON OF FXONOMIC & HOVSING STABIUTY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, KH 03301

603-2719474 1-800-852-3345 E*t 9474

Fai:603-27 M230 TDD Accm: l-^73»964 wirw.<Ibbs.nb.C0T

March 22. 2022

HIa Excellency, Governor Christopher t. Suhunu
and the Honorable Council
State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTIGN

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economiic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Nevy Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. (VC
.#218449), Concord. NH. for the ongoing support of Family Resource Centers (PRCs) across the
slate to receive the 'Family Resource Center of Quality* (FRC-Q) designation to achieve national
'Standards and to further develop the'Kinship Navigator P^ram. by Increasing the price limitation
by $344,865 from $4,388,600 to $4,733,465 with no change to the contract completion date of
June 30. 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30.'2021, Item #41
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 29, 2021, item
#20.

Funds ere available in Ihe.following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price linhitation and encumbrances between
slate ftscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

For (he past few years, there has been a declining rate of New Hampshire families utilizing
the Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF) assistance, known as the Child Cere Scholarship,
demonstrating the need for a campaign to Improve public awareness of the r^ogram and its
benefits. The purpose of this r^uest Is to modify the scope of work of the contract to Include, the
creation of a campaign to promote awareness of the availability of child care assistance through
the'CCDF Program. The campaign's target audience will Include parents and caregivera of yd.uhg
children, child care centers (tncludtng those not currently accepting CCDF funding), corhmunity
leaders and prospective.recipients and stakeholdore. The campaign will also include benchmarks
and an evaluation to track an anticipated five percent (5%) (naease In enrollment of eligible
children, expansion of the number of child care providers accepting CCDF funds, and the number
of child care slots paid, in part, wtth CCDF funds. Given the state's current workforce challenges
and the Increased cost of child care, the Department seeks to educate the community about the
ava|ldt>ility of CCDF assistance.

The purpose of this request is also to add funding for the l^nship Navigator program' which'
provides case management end barrier resolutiori suj^rts to families that are In a klrishtp
relationship. The added funding will allow the Contractor to provide additional technical

ThttkpvlminiotIttbUh on6 Human St'viiift'Miiildn is io/Qih tam'miinilitt andfamVin
in pToaiiinieppatpiniiits for ciiianM to ochitvt htalDt and indtpendenct.
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assistance, training, and support for the ongoing program evaluation to ensure best practices as
Kinship Navigator caseloads-continue to increase statewide.

The Contractor will continiio to:

•  Support Family Resource Centers (FRC) with applying for. arid acquiring, the
Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation;

•  Ensure ongoing implementation oMhe Kinship Navigator Program; 'and

•  Provide infrastructure and support for the statewide networl^ of Family Resource.
Centers.

The Contractor will support the statewide'network of ̂fifteen (15) FRCs'that will provide
kinship navigation to approximately 500 families anriually.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize (his request, FRCs throughout slate
will experience diminished benefits of effective, research-based frameworks, and will continue to
experience undefutilization of the Child Care and Development Fund program that helps
strengthen families and increase access to resources available In their communities to further
their well-being.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.575, FAIN #2101NHCSC6

Assistance Listing Number #93.136. FAIN #NU17CE9249e4

'  In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lon"^. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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f iicjl Oeuil Sheet Amendmcni B2

05-9W5-450010-72160000 HEALTH AMD SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE. DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, KINSHIP .
iOO%G«neral Funds

NcwHamosr

Siste Flactf

Yew

lire L^ioren ft' i rusi

CUas 1 Acoouni

. inc.

Ciasft TlUe Job Number Current Amouni
incroaso

iDecfcoscl
Revised Amouni

2022 102-500731 Coniractft for Proo Svc 45001601 $325,000 $0 S32S.OOO

2023 102-500731 1 Contracts lor Proa SvC 45001601 $325,000 $0 $325,000

Sob Total S550.000 $0

OS95^)43-<50010'72I60000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION,OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP
100%F*d«fel Funds

SuxoFtsc^
Yonr

Class/Account Class TIUo Job Number Current Amount
Incroaso

(DecreaseV
Revised Amount

2022 074-500589 Grants (or Pub Assist and Roll <5001602 $199,600 $0 $199,600

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pi4j Asshl ond Rod 45001602 $199 600 $0 $199,600

1  . Sub Total £399.600 $0 $399,600

Oi09W»0.9020-50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION. C0A1MUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES

Stole Fbcol
Class / Acccuru Class Tillo. Job Number Currem Amount

Incroase

fDocreosel
Revised Amouni

2022 102-500731 ConUBClS for Proo Svc 90050405 S692.000 $139,616 $831,616

2023 102-500731 - Coriiracti lor Proo Svc 9005t>:05 5692.000 £55.247 5747.247

Sub TOLII Si.364.000 S194B65 $1,578,865

05.95-92-920510.338200PO- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV, Bureeu of Drua & Alcohol Svc«. Governor Comml»»Jon Fiinde

State Fbcoi

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number , CufTcnl Amount

Incroaso

fDecreasel
Revised Amouni

2022 102-500731 Contrscis Icr Proo Svc 02056502 Si 00.000 SO $100,000

5^ib Total S 100.000 SO S 100,000

05-95-090-902010-7(M70000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS; HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH OIV, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION
100%Foderal Furvds

Stele Fb^
Year

CUss/Accounl Class TlUe Job Number Current Amount
increaso-

IDecrciasoI
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts lor Proo $K 90070470 $35 000.00 50.00 535.000.00

Sub Total $35:000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00

0M95-O99.90I019-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS: PUBUC HEALTH
DIVISION. BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH COVID-10 HEALTH DISPARrTIES

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class / ̂ count Class Title Job Numba Currant Amount

Increase

(Decmnso>
Rev4ised .Amount

2022 102-500731 Conlrocli for Proo SvC TBD 5910.000 SO $910,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts la Proa Svc TBD S910000 SO S9I0.000

Sub Total SI.620.000 SO 51.620.000

0«I9W2-42111&-24300900 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN ̂ RVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, ARPA.CHILDCARE STABILIZATION

State Fiscal

•Year
CLns / Account CIWS TiOo Job Numbd Ctirrdnl Arhount

Inacose

(bec'rwso)
Rovlsod Arw^l

2022 ' 102-500731 Coviracis fa Proo Svc 421in74 SO $37,499 -  $37,499

2023 102-5CI0731- ConlracIs la Proo SvC' •42117774 SO S112 501 $112,501

Sub Total SO S1SO.OOO 5150.000

i  OvornllTololl . S4 386.6001. 5344 6651 S4.733.465l

New Hampshire Children's trusi. Inc.
SS-2022-.D£HSk)l-N£WHA pi-AO.2

Page loll
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Amendmenl to the New Hampshire Family Resource .Center Facilitation Organization -and Quality
Specialist contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Hurhan
Services ("Stale" or ■Oepartmenf ) and New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. ("Ihe Contractor").
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreernent (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30, 2021 (Item #41), as ameiided on September 29. 2021 (item #20). the .Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form .P-'37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A. Revisions .to
Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1., Subsection 1.1., the Contract may be amended upon, written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the.parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price lirriitatlon. or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the.foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$4,733,465

2. - Modify Exhibit B Arttendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 1.30., to read:
• 1.30. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall mean Monday

Ihrough'Frlday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00'p.m.. including stale, federal and Contractor holidays'.
1.30.1. The Contractor shall market and promote awareness statewide of the Family

Resource Centers (FRCs) and the Child Care Development Fund scholarship among
the public and potential partners. The Contractor shall:

P  • 1.30.1.1. Ensure public awareness activities are aligned and coordinated with other
statewide family support and strengthening networks;

1.30.1.2. Ensure consistent marketing and branding of FRCs and Family Resource*
Center of Quality designated FRCs (FRC-Qs);

1.30.1.3. Target specific. audiences, includirig, but riot limited to, community
leaders/stakeholders, caregivers with young children, childcare
center/providers, legislators, and funders:

1.30.1.4. Increase public awareness of the Child Care Development Fund scholarship's
existence and parameters using wrap-around multimedia content, collateral and
placement;

1.30.1.5. Establish and increase system-level knowledge of the childcare scholarship to.
Increase the probability of scholarship access, award and maintenance
amongst applicant caregivers. direct service providers and comrnunity
leaders/stakeholders through an awareness campaign and trainings.

1.30.-1.6. Develop additional Childcare scholarship awareness, while directing .referrals
and support toward other resource .services provided by .New Hampshire's
family service agencies.

1.30.1.7. Create a public awareness campaign to promote the existence "and accessibility
of The Childcare scholarship for farriilies with .children who qualify for the
scholarship and for childcare providers with the quality designation.

New HamRshlre ChiWren:# TnJSt.'Inc.
■S'S-'2622-C)£HS-01-NEWHA-01 .A02

A-.S-1.2

Pago 1 of 4

Controclor Iniitals
is

Dale
3/15/2022
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1 30 1 8 increase public awareness of Ihe quality designation amongst childcare centers
and/or providers through content and/or collateral development and targeted
messaging and/or outreach for qualified caregivers and childcare providers with
the quality designation as provided by the Department.

3. Modify Exhibit B Amendment#!, Scope of Services, Section 1.9., to read.
19 The Contractor shall support each Family Resource Center (FRC) with their self-

assessment to determine the level of readiness for each FRC to receive the Family
Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation in accordance with National Family
Support Network (NFSN) Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening and Support
(Standards).

19 1 The Contractor shail collaborate with the Harvard Kennedy Schpol of Government
'  ■ Pertonnance Lab (GPL) to receive Technical Assistance (TA) as part of the Child and

Family Wellbeing Accelerator Inilialive to strengthen FRCs.
*  " 1.9.1.1. The Cpnlraclor shall-ensure TA for the Child and Farnily Wellbeing Accelerator

Inilialive which accomplishes the following:

1.9.1.1.1. Establishes data-driven performance management practices for FRCs
to develop more robust evidence of success.

1.9.1.1.2. Establishes strategies to more effectively engage vulnerable and high-
risk families beyond those who proaclively seek support.

1.9.1.2. The Contractor shall partner with the Department on the Child and Family
Wellbeing Accelerator Initiative by including the Department in collaborative

. meetings with GPL as agreed upon by the pepartmenl and the Contractor.

1.9.1.2.1. The Contractor shall support coordinated efforts with the Department as
the need arises, or as requested by the Department, to promote the
.alignment of family support programs.

4. Add Exhibit C-11 Amendment #2 Budget Sheel, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit C-12 Amendnienl #2 Budget Sheel. which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference heroin.

6: Add Exhibit C-13 Amendment #2 Budget Sheel. which is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-14 Amendment #2 Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

6s
New Hampshire ChiWren's Trust. Inc.

:SS-2022-DEHS-01;NEW.HA^i.A02

A-5:1.2

Page 2 of 4

Controctof IrJtiats,

Date
3/15/2022
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AH terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

3/15/2022

Date

3/15/2022

Date

C'
DecuSlgMld Bf.

Narne: Karen E. Hebert
Title: Director, Division of Economic & Housing Stability

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.

OwMlSlBf

bffsitHmdVwts
(sjame:Cliff simmonds

Title: Executive Director

Now HampshireChiWren's trust. Inc.

SS-2022-OEHS-01-NevyHA'0i-A02

A-S-1.2
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

3/15/2022

Date

OenSivnwl ftr

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor ano Executive Council of
the 'State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (da'® c>f meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Harrips.hire Child.ren> Trust. jric.

SS-2022-OEHS-0i-NEWHA-01-Ab2

A-S-1,2

Page 4 of 4
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STATE OF new HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIViSION OF ECONOMIC <9 HOUSING ST A BJUTy

»19 PtEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH OWOl
6<U-17i'9474 I-800-8S20J45 Eit.9474

Fai:<0>-37MIM TOD Atcrii: I400-7JS-2964 -www.dhhi.nfa^v

September 13. 2021

His Exc«nency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

StatD House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health end Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with New Hampshire Children's Trust. IrK.
{VC#218449). Concord. NH, to support Family Resource Centers (PRCs) across the state to
receive the 'Family Resource Center of Quality' designation, to achieve national standards, and
to 'lrhplemcnt the Kinship Navigator Program. The Oepanmenl is requesting an exparisipn of the
contract with New Hampshire Children's Trust to leverage its role ais the facilitating organization
for New Hampshire's network of FRCs, to address health dispariiies and influencing factors due
to COVID-19 for prioriiy populations, Including racial and ethnic minorities and rural populations,
by Increasing the price limitation by $1,855,000 from $2,633,600 to $4,388,600 with no change to
the .contract completion dale of June 30, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
i31'% Federal Funds 19% General Funds.

The original contract was'approved by Governor end Council on June 30. 2021. item #41.

Funds ere available in the following accounts for Stale Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the eulhority to adjust budget line items ̂ thin the price limiiatlcn and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

.See anached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of .this request is for the Deparimenl to expand the scope of work of the
conlract to increase Commurilty. Health worker staffing to meet the heed for comprehensive
supports provided by FRCs end to address COVID-19 Impacts oKecting families. This expanded
scope work is will address COVID-19 health disparities among populalions at high risk -arid
underserved, Including radal and ethnic minority populalions arid rural communities. Through this
ameridn>enl the contractor will expand the workforce of Comrnunily Health Workers (CHW) and
embed them within the slstewkle network of FRCs to directly serve individuals arid farriilies
impacted by (he COViO-l 9 pandemic such as economic and health Impacts.
CHWs wiD connect-fsmllies-to menial health, health care, substahce use disorder, financial end
budgeting supports; food and nutrition programs. COVIO-19 testing, vaccinatioryimmunlzation.
and resource, i.dentlficalio.n. Additionally the conlract will expand data quality monitoring for
additional family sup'pori programs, such as the home, visiting, Community Collaborations project
(data to, be collected includes economic n^s. social needs, race, eihnidiy. language, and
access to technology .end transportation). This will Include enhanced communication strategies
such es printing materials in. additional languages'and prioritizing engagement of ■femtlies
impacted by Incerceretiori arid.families with young children In order to connect them timely to tfte
services available-through'the FRCs that support poeilive' oiitconies.

aaosEagssaBB
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HU En^oncy. Ooyemof Chrtttophe* T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

F*fige 2 of 2

The Department v^!l continue worthing with the New Hampshire Children's Trust for Its
original centred scope to:

1) continue its support to the PRCs for Quality Designation and perform Individual
assessments of the PRCs epplyirTg for the Pamily Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q)
designation, to Identify, document deficiencies In meeting standards, help correct dendendes,
and assist each PRC with the application process: and

2) implement the Kinship Navigator Program: orxJ

'3) continue to provide Infraslnjclure and support for the statewide network of PRCs.
The Contrador v/ll work with the Wellness and Primary Prevention "Council (established

by the NH Legislature with a goal of creating o eustalnable. qualHy. system of Family Resource
Centers kross tho state) and Family Support NH to assist PRCs to achieve standards of the
National Family Support Network Quality for Pamily Strengthening and Support for the purpose
of acquiring an FRC-Q designation, which inctudas:

•  Providing PRCs with information and trainings on applicable standards .and
explaining how to acquire the FRC-Q designation;

•  Providing technical support to PRCs with the implementation of standards,
development of procedures to document practice of standards, and establishment
of written plans to meet standards:

•  Providing remote or In-person assistance to PRCs with writing the FRC-Q
application or other related needs; and

•  Pa.rticipating In the National Family. Support Nelv^ork through a membership with
Family Support NH.

The facilitated oipanization wit) support PRCs statewide; currently there are fifteen (15)
PRCs that will provide kinship navigation to approximately 1.000 families from July 1. 2021. to

. Juno 30. 2023.

Should the Governor arwl Council not authorize this request. PRCs throughout the stale
will not have the benefit of effective, research-based frameworks to help ̂ rengthen families and
access rwources available inthoir communities to further their well-being.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal P.urids; Assistance. Ljsting Number #93.670, FAIN #90CA1858
Asslsle.nce Listing Number #93.391. FAIN # NH75OT000P31

Assistance Listing Number #93.556. FAIN# 21NHPKIN

In the event that the. Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to .support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

yvo+1

Lori A. Shiblndlte
Commissioner

ThtDeporfmtnlcf/^taUh and Hume* U icjfin nn'miuniiia ond/nm'iliu
in prouidini oppfiflunilitt fcr ci'lixrni U> othitij* heollh ond indtpendenct.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-fl5-045-450010-72lM600 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSiSTANCE. DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP
TOOT. Cenerei Fghd*

State Fiscal ClasaV Accoyni Closs Tliie Job Number CurrerM Amount
increase

(DecresteT
Revised Amount

3022 102*500731 Coniracis 'of Proa Svc 43001601 S524.600 • 1199.600 S32S.OOO

■  2023 102-500731 Contracu for Proa Svc 45001601 S57«.a00 -1199.600 S32S.OOO

Sub Tola! 11.049.600 •S399.600 1650.000

05-95-045-450010-72ieOMO HEALTH AND.SOClAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE.'DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP
100% FedertI Funds

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title -Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074-500589 Grams lor Pub Assist and Reli 45001602 10 1199^600 1199.600

2023 074-500589 Grants lor Pub Assist and Rell 45001602 10 1199.600 1199.600

Sub Total 10 1399.600 1399.600

OS-Ofi5-0»0-9020-S0400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVS.
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION. COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES
luurtrooot

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts (or PiOQ Svc 90050405 5692.000 SO 1692.000

'  2023 102-500731 Contracts lor Proa Svc 90050405 1692.000 10 1692,000

Sub Total- •11.364.000 10 11.364.000

O5-95-92-«2O51O-33026666- HEALTH AMD SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DtV, Buroau of Orup & Alcohol Svc<. Govarner Cemmlialon Funds

State Fiscal

.'Year
Ctais / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase,

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Conlracts (or Proa Svc 9205BS02 1100,000 SO 1100.000

Sub Total $100000 SO 1100.000

0'5-95-09'0-9(
HUMAN SVS

>2010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL'SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH OIV, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION
]| Fund*

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(becroese)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contractl (or Proa Svc 90070470 lO.OO 135.000.00 135.000.00

Sub Total V 10.00 535000.00 135000.00

.0'5:0«5^BO.901010.57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVCS OEPT
OFi HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH OiyiSiON. BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE. PH COVlO-IO .

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class/Accoijni .Dots Title Job Nurfiber- Correjii Amount increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Cenlracls for Proo Svc TBD 50 1910.000 1910.000

2023 102-500731 . 'Coniracis for Proo Svc T8D $0 S910.000 1910.000

Sub Total 10 11.620.000 $1,^620,000

I  OvfBll TotaiT S2.533.6001 .S1.eS5.000r 14 3BB.600I

Govetnor and CovncH Lcuc Auschmcnl

Financial Dciall

Page 1 olI
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Slate of.New Hampshire
Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services

Amendment

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organization and Quality
Specialistxoniracl Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Department') and New Hampshire Children's Trust, Inc. ("the Contractor'.).
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30.2021, (llefn f^l). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideraiioh of .certain sums specified: erxJ

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph t7. the Contract may be amended
upon wf'luen agreement of the parties'Snd approval frorn the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEf^EAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price llmllelion, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in cor)sideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and condKions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as folldy/s:

1. Form P.37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

S4.388.600

2. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services by replacing In its entirely with Exhibit B Arhendmenl 1.
Sccpe of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4. to read:

4. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice arid supporting documents to the Oepartrnent no later
than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month. The Conlractor shall:

4.1. Ensure the Invoice is pre's'enled in a form that is provided by the Department or is
otherwise acceptable to the Department.

4.2. Ensure the Invoice identifies and requests payment for allowable costs Incurred in
the previous month. •

4.3. ' Provide supporting documenlation of allowable costs that may include.-but Is not
limited to. lime sheets, payroll records; receipts for purchases, and proof of
expenditures, as applicable.

4.4. Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the
supporting documentation for authorized expenses, in order to initiate paymersi.

'4. Mod^ Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet, ihrougf) Exhibit C-7.- Budget Sheet, by replacing in its entirety
•with Exhibit C-1 Arhendmenl «1,-Budge! .Sheet through Exhibit C-7 Amendment #1. which Is
atlached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit 0-8 Amendment #1, Budget Sheet, which Is atlached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6. Add .Exhibil C-9 Amendment #1. Budget Sheet, v/hlch is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-10 Amendment # 1. Budg&l Sheet, which is altached hereto and incorporated by
•reference herein.

■uilali V.SS-2022-OEHS-0l-NEWHA-Ot-AO1 New Hompsht/c ChiWrcn's Tnjsl. Inc. Cont/dclw iniuals _
^  9/10/2021

A-S-l 0 3
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All term.s and conditions ol the ConlracI not modified, by this Amendment remain In lull force and effect.
This Amendment shall be cffecllvc'upon ihe dale of Governof and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have sel iheir hands as of ihedaie written below.

Stale of New Hampshire
Departmeni of Heallh arxi Human Services

.9/13/2021

Date

0
Name: "ebert
Title: Division Director

9/10/2021

Date

New Hampshire Children's Trust. Inc.
WwiVMiey:

{g^^''»'CW^'Sioniond5
Title: Executive Director

SS-2622-OeHS:D1 -NEWHA-OV-AOl New H>fnp»Nffl ChiW/en s Trust. Inc.

A-S-1.0 Pose2ol3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. V ' .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

- OilWWtltrHia'.. , w AMirrt-ii
M

9/14/2021

Date
afsHaii

Title: Assistant Attorncjr General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New.Hampshlre at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Name;

Title:

SS-2022-DEHS-OI -NEWHA-Ol'-Api New Hampshif# ChCdren's Trust. Inc.

A-S-l.O Papo'OolS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Rosourco Center Facilitation Organliatlon
and Quality Spbciollst

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contracto

i;2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

r shall provide services in this agreement to the Family Resource
Centers (FRC) in New Hampshire.

The Contractor shall ensure services are available Statewide Ma phone,"
teleconferencing,-arid in person meetings.

For the purposes or this agreement, all references to business hours shall'
mean' Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4;00 p.m.,- including slate,
federal and Contractor holidays.

The Contractor shall subcontract with the statewide network of Family
Resource Centers (FRC) to establish a workforce of Community Health
Workers (CHW) to provide direcl services'to priority populations Impacted by
COVID-19 health disparities.

The Contractor shall provide and support specialized training and technical
assistance as proposed by the Department to the newly developed workforce
of Community Health workers with topics including; but not limited to:

1.5.1. Role of Community Health Workers;

1.5.2. Community Health Workers and Public Health Networks;

1.5.3. Community Health Workers and community coalilion$;.and

1.5.4. Local communily and health resources.

The Contractor shall support FRC Family Support staff and Communily'Health
Worker's with training and technical assistance around data collection, cultural
competency, and accessing state and local community resources. Data will be
collected in the Family Support Data'System (FSDS). Trainings.include, but are
not lirhited to:

1.6.1. Becoming Providers of NH Easy;

1.6.2. Bureau of Farhily Assistance Overview Training; '

1.6.3. Cultural diversity and equity training;.

1.6.4. Ramify Support Data System;

1.6.5. Concrete support and Retrospective Protective Factors Survey;2-
(PFS-2j to determine social deterrninants of health needs and
protective factors skills gained;

•1,6.6. Assessing food Insecurity;

1.6.7.' Allow CHWs to participate on the NH CHW Coalition; and

SS-2O22.DeHS-Ol.-l^eWHAO1-A0l

New Hampchlro Chljdron't Trust. Inc. Page i o( 14

Coniractor Irdiiats
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New Hampshire beparlmcnt of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Family Resource Center Facilitation Organixatlon
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

. I l a i i-i ■!

1.6.8. CHW attendance 'at Department approved training through Area Health
Education Center{.AHEC)) to meet 13 competencies for CHW
fhttos://wNw.snhahec.orQ/communitv-heailth-wo t1ters.html).

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure that Family Support-Workers and Community
Health workers:

1.7.1. Provide case rrianagerheni and connections to community services
•and referrals;

1.7.2. Cornptete PFS-2 ,surveys;
1.7.3. Enter data into the FSDS;

1.7.4. Assist with maintaining and or applying for soda! services within their
community;

1.7.5. Provide and distribute educational information about COVID-19
vaccinations and Department general guidance for Individual
mitigation;

.  1.7.6. Identify and help to miligate barriers in health care access such,as
transportation, language, chiidcare. etcetera; and

1.7.7. Connect clients with community-based agencies and supports
through closed loop and/or warm hand-off referrals for bill riot limited
to:

1.7.7.1. Food insecurity.

1.7.7.2. Mental health supports.

1.7.7.3. Health care referrals.

1.7.7.4. Substance use disorder supports.

1.7.7.5. Educational supports and services.

1;7:7.6. Financial lileracy.

1.7.7.7. Budgelihg supports.
1.7.7..8. COViD-19 testing, vaccination and/or immunization

;  resources.;

1.8. The Conlraclbr shall work with the Department and Communlly Collaborations
project to provide dislrlbuiion of outreach materials and' education to the

^  cornmuriity at>oul the supports'otfered through the Family Support Staff and
Corrimunily Health Workers located at each PRC. which includes.- but is not
limited .to:

l.e.i Printing outreach and education materials in additional langua^|..such
as Spaniish, Nepalese, or other languages;

6S
SS:2022.DEHS-01 .NEWHA-OV-AOI

New Harnpshirp CtilWfon'c Trusl, Inc. Pogo2oI14

Controclor tnllials

Dale
.9/10/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Now Hampshire Famliy'Rcsourco Center Facilltation Organlration
end Quality Specialist

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

1.8.2. Prioritize and implement strategies that provide engagerheht and
- education of early childhood providers about FRC s and the services
provided.

1.0.3. Prioritize and implement sirategies that provide engagement and
education of incarcerated parent families on FRO services provided
through partnerships of activities v/ith the Family Connections Center at
the New Hampshire Departrnenl pf Corrections.

1.9. The Contractor shall support each Family Resource Center (FRC) with their self-
assessment to determine the level of readiness for each FRC to receive the
Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-Q) designation in accordance with

•  National Family Support Network (NFSN) Standards of Quality for Family
Strengthening and Support (Standards).

1;10. The Contractor shall perform an individual assessment of any FRC applying for
FRC-Q designation to identify anddocumentdeficiencies in meeting Standards
and to.assist each'FRC throughout the application process.

I ll The Contractor shall work with the Wellness and Primary Prevention Council
(WPPC) and Family Support NH (FSNH) to provide support to FRC.s in
implementing and meeting the Standards for the purpose pf acpuiring ari FRC-
Q designation. The Contractor shall ensure support includes, but is not linrilied
to; .

Til.1. Providing PRCs with information about the Standards
(htlps://www.nalionalfamilysuppo rtnetwork.org/standards-of-quallty):.

1.11.2. Providing technical support to PRCs with the implementation of
Standards;

1.11.3. Providing technical support to PRCs with the implementation of
.  procedures to document practice of Standards;

1.11 ;4. Providing training and technical assistance lo PRCs with the
development of a written plart lo meet Standards;

1.11.5. Traveling lo any FRC requesting an in-pers6n"consuliation;
T.li.6. Assisting PRCs w'lh completing the FRC-Q application:
■1.11.7. Reviewing FRC-Q applicalionsfor:accufacy;
T.11.8. Participating In the NFSN through a nierhbership with FSNH; and
1.11.9. Providing PRCs with information and trainings on acquiring the FRC-Q

designation.

SS-2022-OEH$-01-NEWHA-01-AOI

New Hampshire Childrert's'Tfusl. i.nc. Pago 3ol 14
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Now Hcmpshiro Family Rosourco Center Facilitation Organization
ond Quality SpocloUst

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

1 12 The Coniractor shall coHaborale with other FRC. technical assistance assets to
' assess the capacity of each FRC relative to the core and optional standards
defined by the WPPC.

1.13.- The Gontractor shall work with the Department and PRCs to delermine culturally
appropriate process and outcome data collection and analysis.

1.14. The Contractor shall assist PRCs with increasing operational efficiencies.
1.15. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance for oversight as well .as

implementation of a quality improvement process.

1.16. The Contractor shall utilize a Community of Practice sharing model that allows
PRC administrators and leadership to establish and strengthen cooperation,
collaboration, and informal mentoring among PRCs.

1.17; The Contractor shall educate policymakers, communilies. and community
groups on PRC best practices.

1.16. The Contractor shall ensure priorily is gl.ven to PRCs providing home services
to;

1.18.1. Families for whom the Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYP)
has issued a letter of concern;

T.18.2. Families with cases reported by DCYP as unfounded but with
reasonable concern; and

1.18.3. Recipients of Temporary Assistance to-Needy Families {TANp) program
services.

1.19. The Contractor shall utilize the Family Support Data System. Quick.Base data
platform for the purposes of supporting quality improvement efforts, capable of
coilecting dala on, but hot limited 10, the following: ^ •

1.19.1. tdenlifying PRC locations, statewide;

' 1.-19.2. Identifying FRC-0 locations, statewide;

• . 1.19.3. Identifying PRC-Q designation expiration dales;

1.19.4. Documenting trainings p.rovided to PRCs through;
1..19.4.1. Notes from the training;

1.19.4.2. The number of training attendees; and

1.19.4.3. identified action items.

1.19.5. Identifying which PRCs have.conipleted the PRC-0 self-assessment; .
1.19.6. Identifying PRCs that have completed the PRC-Q ■ designation

application; oi

1.19.7. Identifying PRCs with plans in place to become an FRC-Q; \
SS-2022-OeHS.0,1-NEWHA.0.1-Aqi
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1.19.8. Identifying individuals who have received Standards certification,
.1.19.9. Documenting FRC and FRC-Q service outcomes;

1.19.10. Documenting FRC prioriiies; and

1.19.11. Identifying shared measurements among FRCs for family outcomes.

1.20. The Conlraclor shall ensure collection of data in the Family Support Data
System and support data quality to include the following demographics:
1.20.1. Race

1.20.2. Ethnicity

1.20.3. .Language

•  1.20.4. Household income

1.20.5. Marital status

1.20.6. Age of parents

1.20.7. . Sexual orientation and/or gender identity

1.20.8. Town '

1.20.9. County

1.20.10. Incarcerated parent'

1.20.11. Receiving benefits that include, but are not limited to:

1.20.11.1. SNAP ■

1..20.11.2. Child Care

1.20.11.3. Medicaid

1.20.11.-4. Social Security

1.20.11:5. TANF

1.20.11.6. WIC

1.21. The Conlraclor shall provide upon request .to the Department summary reports,
Information, and Individual participant outcom'es reporting.

1.22. The Contractor shall coordinate data collection efforts for programs including
but not limited to:

1.22.1, Comprehensive f^amily Support Programs (CFSS).

1.22.2, NK Maternal Infant Early Childhood Home Visiting.

1.22.3, Healthy Families America Home Visiting Programs..

1.2^4. Corhmunity CoUaboralions'to Strengthen and Preserve
Programs.
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1.23." The Contraclor shell provide Technical Asslslance (TA) around data Integrity
and deyelop reppds related to Ihe.data collection.

1.24. The Cdnlraclor'shaii provide training to all new FRC staff who enter data into
the Quick.base platfofm.

V25! The Contractor shall ensure .data- Integrity for the CFSS program andCdmmuhily Collaborations project and provide the necessary reports monthly.

1 26 The Contractor shall work with the Department to plan and align other data
collection efforts for any other new programs administered through Family
Resource Centers.

1 27. The Contractor shall provide quality improvement training and resources to
FRCs and'FRC-Qs. including but not limited to;

1.27.1. Collecting and disseminating FRC-0 best practices and evid.ence-based
program models;

1.27.2. Convening FRCs and FRC-Qs In a Community of Practice sharing
model;

1 27 3 Promoting collaboration through shared learning opportunities and
training with FRCs and FRC-Qs across state agencies in an effort to
improve service outcomes;

1.27.4-. Increasing FRC administrative and operational efiiciencies; and
1.27.5. Providing technical assistance to ensure that each FRC-D has a clear

non-profit business model.

'1 28 The Contractor shall provide funding to each FRC Iri year Iv/o (2) of .the Mnlract,
for their adrhinistraiive needs to support Ihe work of the FRC. which includes
but IS hot limited to the salaries of the Executive Director and Chief Financial
officers and building repairs and maintenance.

1.28.1. The Contractor "shall ensure the distribution of funds be based on a
forrhula with FRC-Q designation.

1.29. The Contractor-shall fund and support positions for the purposes of-.supporling
kinship'caregivers who are caring for kin. The Contractor shall ensure.

1.29.1. Navigators are utilized within FRCs and FRC-Qs to provi.de .support.to
kinship caregivers who-are caring for kin as a result of a placement.

1.29.2. Navigators -connect with kinship caregivers. in-person or by other
elecirpnic means such as FaceTime and Zoom, for the purposes of.

1.29.2.1. Assessing kinship caregiver needs:

1.29.2.2. Providing outreach, engagement, and community support
services and referrals; and

SS-2022-OEHS-0i-NEWHA-0.1-,A01 ' Contfactof ln.lials
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1.29.2.3. Utilizing or creating peer support groups for kinship caregivers.
1.29.3. Provide irainingjo,Navigators to provide consistency across Na'vigatots

through education and training, consistent with:

1.29.3.1, DCYF; and

1.29.3.2, TANF programs.

1.30. The Contractor shall market PRCs to raise public awareness, and raise
awareness among statewide and potential partners. .The Contractor shall
ensure;

1.30.1. Public awareness activities align and are coordinated with other
statewide family support and strengthening networks; and

1.30.2. Consistent marketing and branding of PRCs and FRC-Qs

1.31. The Contractor shall utilize the Boundary Spanning Leadership framework to
■prornote cross-system collaboration between PRCs, FRC-Qs and other child-
welfare and family service agencies, businesses, philanthropic funders and
other organizations providing family support and/or economic support services.

1.32. The Contractor may identify and assist PRCs and FRC-Os in their applications
for additional funding opportunities for PRC and FRCO operations, programs,
or quality improvement activities.

1.33. The.Contractor shall facililale the FRC-Q designation review process, which
includes, but Is not lirhiled to:

"1.33.1. Assembling PRC-Q designation review teams devised of members of
theWPPC;

1.33.2. Providing revlev/ing teams with necessary site review tools;
1.-33.3. Coordinating PRC site reviews;

1.33.4. Recording, publishing, and r'eviewing team minutes;
1.33.5. Developing a form to gather review team meeting feedback; and
1.3'3."6; Communicating results to PRC applicants.

■  1.34. the. Contractor shall attend all Wellness and Primary Preservation Council
(WPPC) meetings.

1.35. The Contractor shall atierid all FSNH monthly meetings and provide progress
reports on the number of PRCs achieving FRC-0 designation.

1.36; The Qorilraclor shall attend any National Family Support Network meelings as
.identified by the Department.

1.37. The Contractor shall utilize project management best practices through^t the
contract term. ,

•SS-2022-DeHS-Oi -NEWHA-OI-AOI Convaclor Iriiiisls :
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1.38. The Contractor, shall demonstrate an implementation of a Community of
Practice sharing model among PRCs and FRC-Qs.

1.39. The Contractor shall document specific trainings, guidance, and supports for
PRCs and PRC-Qs providing home visiting services.

1.40. The Contractor shall.maintain the Family Support Data System data collection
•system in accordance with this Scope of Services.

1.41. The Contractor shall demonstrate en Increase in the number of FRCs.receiving

the PRC-Q designation.

1.42. The Contractor shall maintain the training process and continue to develop the
Kinship Navigation .position, based on evaluation of the program and staff
performance.

1.43. The Conlraclor shall provide evidence of a sufficient number of Navigators
through subcontract to ensure Statewide coverage.

1.44. The Corilractor shall support FRC-Q with the re-designation process every three
(3) years.'

1.45. The Contractor shall provide support to PRC-Q to develop a work plan to
increase best practice standards using the' National standards of quality for
family strengthening and.support, data outcomes, client satisfactory surveys
and other evaluation tools.

1.46. The Contractor in collaboration with the Department shall design a FSNH
• satisfaction survey to ensure the Facilitated Organization meets th'e needs of
the.Pamily Resource Centers.

1.47. The Contractor shall demonstrate an increase in Navigator posilions and kinship
Navigator support in each year of this Agreement.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iderilifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFFt Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Porlabllily
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and In accordance v.nih the attached^
Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage .all confidential data related to Ihis Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by refererice herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

Monthly Reports
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3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department FSNH, WPPC,
■ within fifteen (15) days following the end of the reporting period, to ensure
adequate and efficient service delivery, which Include, but are not limited to
reports detailing the following;

3.1.1. The number of FRC-Q designation applications received;

3.1.2. The number of Vendor FRO and FRC-Q site reviews performed;

3.1.3. The number of FRCs receiving the FRC-0 designation;

3.1.4. Status updates on FRCs applying for the FRC-Q designation according
to the FRCs individual written plan;

3.1.5. A comprehensive training plan for each FRC-Q'within rilnefy (90) days
of receipt of FRC-Q designation;

3.1.6. The number and topics of trainings provided to all. FRCs and FRC-Qs;

3.1.7. The number of PRC and FRC-Q staff iralned;

3.1.8. Progress made in developing shared family outcome measures;

3.1.9. The number of Navigator positions supported and/or funding; and

3.1.10. The number of trainings delivered to Navigators;

3.2. The Contractor shall submit monthly Kinship Navigator report, .within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the reporting period with a final report due thirty (30)
days from contract completion dale.

Quarterly Reports

3.3. The Contractor shall submil quarterly reports to the Department FShJH, WPPC.
within fifteen (15) days following the end of the reporting period, to ensure
adequate and efficient service delivery, which Include, but are not limited to
reports detailing the following:

3.3.1. The Nurnber of CHW posilions supported;

3.3.2. The Number and type of trainings provided to both the Family Support
Staff and Community Health Workers through C0V)D-19 Health
Disparities funding;

"3.3.3. Number of CHW and FRCs enrolled as providers of NH EASY in order
• to .support individual connections to economic supports to minimize
COVID-19 impacts;

3.3.4. Number of improvements to data collection, quality .and reporting
capacity for recipients related to COVID-19 disparities and 'inequllies.
which Include;

3.3.4.1. Workforce support for data colleclion and reporting le-©nsure
collection of complete and representative data (ag^race,
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ethnicity, other populations of focus such as kinship and
. . . incarceration);

3.3.4.2. Implemented strategies to educate CHW and FRC staff oh the
importance of data to address disparities and inequities; and

3.3.4.3. Developed plans for data quality assurance and Impfovemenl;

-3.3.5. Number of cases.by CHW and Number of encounters per CHW;
3.3.6'. Number of COVID-19 encounters indicating mitigation and prevention

through referral of vaccination/vaccine support by each FRC and by
CHW, which includes coordination of activities related to administration
of vaccirtes but hot the actual vaccine administration; .

3.37. Number of encounters to provide communication about C"0VI0-l9 risk
factors, mitigation, and prevention;

■  3.3.6. Number of Other navigation and support services to address COVID-19
risk factors (e.g.. empioymeht. economic, child care, health care);

3.3.9. The Contractor will be required to utilize the NH Division of Public Health
Services Equity Review Toolkit prior to work plan development and/or
implementing any programming. This toolkit 'wiii provide guidance on
ensuring equity, including Race, Ethnicity and Linguistic (REAL) and
Sexual Orientatiori and Gender Identity (SOGI) data collection as well ■
as community engagement as core pieces of the work of the Department
grant-based work.

Annual Reporting.

3.4. The Contractor shall provide, a comprehensive annual report by June 30'h of
(gach year. The annual report must summarize:

3.4.1. Participation

3.4.2. Outcomes

3.4.3. Challenges

3.'4.4, Strengths

. 3.4.5; Identified needs for the upcoming fiscal year

3.5, The Contractor shall provide an annual satisfaciion survey .report, to the
■ Departmeni within thirty (30) days of calendar year.

4.'Performance Measures

4* 1 the .Contractor shall demonstrate an increase in the number.of PRCs rec.eiving
FRC-.Q designation by al least four (4). from .an established baseline as of the
contract effective date. Annual baselines are as follows: ■ ^
■4.1.1. ' Three (3) in State Fiscal Year 20.22.. (J^
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4.1.2. Three (3) In State Fiscal Year 2023.

4 2. The Contractor shall provide a summary of PFS-2 surveys completed for the
CFSS program. ttSe COVID Health Disparities and Community Collaborations
projects.

.4.2.1. Surveys will show percehiages of types of concrete needs identified for
the families served by race, ethnicity and language when available;

4.2.2. Surveys will show percentage of increased protective factors using the
retrospective survey.

4.3. The Contractor shall actively and/eguiarly collaboraie with the Deparlment to
enhance contract managerneni, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy bdsed on successful outcomes.

4.4. " The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, .in the aggregate and de-identified, including client-level
demographic, performance, and service dala.

4.5. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department, in the aggregate and de-identified, in a formal specified by the
Departrnerit.

5. Additlona) Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5^1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services.
desaibed herein, the State has the right to modify Service pridrilies

and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
•  compliance Iherevnlh.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Cohiraclor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract
•effective date, a detailed description of the communica.tion access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or servi.ces to individuals with
limited English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing
ibsl; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and Individuals who,,
have spe.ech challenges. ,

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All d.QCuments, notices, press releases, research reports and other
fhatefials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contr.act shall include the following stalerT|eTTf:*''The

6S
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II

preparation of (his (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Cpnlrsci with (he State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the. State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United Slates Depanment of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have,
prior approval from the "Department before printing, production,
disl/ibution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.13.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories:

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5:3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation 6f Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations
5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor

shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility .or
the provision of the services at such" facility. If any gpvemmetilai
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the .said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor shall procure
said license or permit, and shall at ail limes comply with the terms and.
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
.foregoing requirerhenis. the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Stale .Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire prbleclion agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determlriations

5.5'.1. If the Contractor is permitted to delerNne the eligibility of individualssuch eligibility determination shall be made in accordcp^' with
•SS-2022-OEHS-01-NEWHA-01-A01 Coriirocior Wlials
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applicable-federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Depariment for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the delenminalion forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintaih a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder. which file shall Include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department
svith all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations
lhat the Deparlmenl may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands thai ail applicants for services
hereunder, as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a

■fair hearing regarding lhat determination. .The Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be
permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in
accordance with Department regulations.

6. Records ,
6.1. The Contractor shall keep records lhat include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in (he performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses; and which are acceptable to the Deparlrnent, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and origlnaj

'evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of In-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipieril of
■services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to detemriine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and •all
invoices submitted to the Department to obiain payment for such
services.
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6.1.4. Medical records on each palieni/recipient.of services.

6.2. During the .term of this Contract and the period for retenlioh hereunder. theDepartment, the United Slates Department of Heallh and.Human Services, and
any of their designated represenlaiives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and iranscripls= Upon the purchase by 'the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all (he obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
terrnination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon

■  review of the Final Expenditure" Report the Departrnenl shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder Ihe Department shall,
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the arhount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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LeH A. SlilWaclK
Ce'o'Mutencr

ChibtlM I.. &i«UA>rn*
Dlr«TMr

SI ATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMVXl" OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/mio/^OF£Comvt/c^ //ot/s/A'CsrAfl/urE

1211 plkasantstrf.et; Concord. NH ojjoi
M>-27l-9J74 ■| M0-852-3145f_tt.9-l7J

f».<; 60J-27I-4H0 TOD AtCCAi: l-S00-7JS-:9W »»».'.dhhs.nh.|«T

April 16.2021

His Excellency. Governor Chrisiopher T. Sununu
anO the Honoreble Council

State House
Concord, Now .Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depanment ol Health and Human Services, Division ol Econornic and
Housing Stability, to enter inlo a Sbte Source contract v/ith New Hampshire Children's Trust
(VCff218449). Concord. NH. Jn the amount ol S2.533.600 to support each Family Resource
Center wilh their sell-assessment to determine their level ol readiness lo receive the Family
Resource Center o| Quality designation in accordance with National Family Support Network
Standards dl Quality lor Family Strengthening and Support, wilh the-option to renew for up lo four
(4) additional years, ellective July 1. 202i, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later, through June 30.2023. 7i% Federal Funds. 29% General Funds'. r

Funds are anticipated to be available in ihe loHowir\g accounts (or Slate Fiscal Years 2022
and 2023ufX)n Ihe availabilily and continued appropriaiion pl lunds in the future operating budget,
with Ihe authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
stale liscai years through the Budget OMice, if needed and justified.

See attached liecat details.
EXPLANATION ^

This request Is Sole Source because there are no known- viable aiternativeS;,lo the
services provided by the vendor. The Contractor will continue to support system building arid,
.inlraslruclure developmeril lo support and assist Family Resource Centers (FR.Cs) stalev/ide to
provide programs that encompass evidence, inlormed siandards cl family sire.ngtherting.
Additionally, this contract will ensure primary prevention is provided through a system 61 quaWied
centers and will continue.to-build upon the investment that the. State has made in the Resource
Centers. The Contractor previously esiablished evidence' inlormed program and serMces to
kinship lamilies siatowide. This program is mveluable lo the nearly 12,000 eligible families In the
state who are raising children ol lamily members vrho have experienced and/or may be vulnerable
to child malireatrneni. Tli/ough this coriiraci, the vendor administered a data system thai all FRC s
use. This data plaiform Is now suppcijng PRCs wilh consisteni, siatevrido r data coileclion and
outcomes, criabling the Depariment to measure ihe positive impact of the PRC's and-the.senrices
they provide for family strengthening and child well-being,

The purpose of this request is lor the Coniraclor to i) continue iis support to the PRC's (or
Oualiiy Designation 2). to Iniplemeni the Kinship Navigator Rrr^ram and 3) to continue 10 provide
inlrastfuclure and support the statewide netwp^ of PRC's. Through the FRC Quality Designatldri,
•the NHCT will perform Iridividual assessmenls of the PRC's applying lor 'theiFamliy Resource
Cenier ol Qualily (FRC-Q) designation, lo identily, documenl deficiencies in meeiing standards.-
support Ihe correction of any delicjencies, and to assist each FRC throughout Ihe applicatipn
process.

TlifDr/vnm/Hta/ff/alili null llurum Si-n itfi' Alltt'M it in join ntwtuniii<t o-d fainllin
ill ifOiidingopporifniil-'t lorfllirfnt lor»fr.iVi:< hi'iillli u'nd InilftA-ndrne*.
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h1» ExcoOency. Govemoi Chilitophe/T. Sunixxi
'And IW HonwWo CocwD

Poge2pt2

The facUitelod orgenziation will support PRCs siatewide; currently there ore fifteen (15)
'PRC'S to will provide kindshlp navigation to approximately 1.000 families frc^ July 1, 2021. to
Juno 30,2023;

Tho Coolractor v»rtll wortc with the Weltncss end Primary Prevention-Council end Family
SuDOort NH to provide support to PRCs with imptementing and meeting the NaUor^l Family
Support Network Quality for Family Strengthening and Support standards for the purpose ofacquiring on FRC-0 designation, which includes:

.  Providing PRCs with information . about the stendards:http87/www:nationalfamilyiupportnetwork.org/standards-pf-<jualily;
•  Providing technicel support to PRCs in the impicmcntalion of standards;
.  Providing technical support to PRCs in Ihe Implemonlation of pfocoduros to

.document'practice of standards:

•  Providing training and technical assistance .to PRCs in the development of d. written
plan to meet standards;

.  Traveling to any PRC requesting ah in-person consultation;
• Assisting PRCs with completing the FRC-Q application;
•  Reviewing FRC-0 applications for accuracy;
«  Participating in the National Family Support Network through a membership with ■

Family Support NH; and

•  Providing PRCs with information and trainings on acquiring the FRC-Q
desigriation.

As referenced iri Exhibit A, Provisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1.1.. of
the attached contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up (our (4)
■additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available fundmg. agreementof.the parties artd Governor and Council approval. -

'Should the Governor and .Council not aulhorize this request PRCs throughout the state
will not have the benefit of research-based frameworks of family support arid subsequently lack
resources to help families'buikJ on their own sirsngths and access to resources lhal are available
in their'communities to further their well-being.

' Area served; Stelewide ■
Source of Funds: »CFDA .93,136. FAlNfWU17CE924934.

#CFDA93.556, FAiNfll.9lNHPKIN.

In the event Ihafthe Federal Funds becor^io no longer availablo. General Funds will not
be requested to support Ihis program.

Respectfully submitted.

JiJ^
Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FINANCIAL DETAJL

05-W-045-4W610-?2160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSmONAL ASSISTANCE. DIVISION OF FAMILV ASSISTANCE. KINSHIP
60V* General Funds, 40% Federal Funds

New"Hampshire Childfcn's Trust. Inc. ver>doi fl

Siaio Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Curreni

Budoet

2022 102-500731 • Contracts lor Proo Svc TBO S  924.600

2023 102-500731 Conir&cis lor Proo Svc TBO S  524.800

Sub Tola! S  1.049.600

OS-095-090-9020-50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SEflVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS; PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION. COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES

Siato Fiscal

Ynar
Class /.Account Class Tiiio Job Number.

Current

2022 102-500731 Conitacis lor Pioo Svc 900S040S 5  692.000

2023 102-500731 Conl/acls for Proa Svc 900S0405 S  692.000

Sii> Total S 1.384.000

0S-9S:S2-d20SIO<33'820^- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV, Buiceuol Drug A Alcohol Svcs, Covernor'Commlsslon
Funds

Stale Fiscal

"Year
Class /Accouni Class Tiilc Job Number

Current

Modiliod

Oudaoi

2022 102-500731 Coniiacis lot PtoQ Svc 92058502 S  100.000

Sub Total S  100.000

Ovorail Tolalj S2.533.6W

Much'nSeni

financial beuU
Page 1 oi >
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SubjKt: New Hampshire Family Resource Cenicr Focilitaiion Orijanlzfliion and Quality Specialist (SS-2022-
DEHS-OI-NEWHA)

Notice This afirccmcni and all of iu anachmcois shall become public upon submission to Ooxynof and
executive Council for approot. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly IderMified lo the agency and agreed to in uilting prior to signing ibc-contriCt.

ACREE.MtNT

The Siaie of New Kampsh'ire and the Conttacier hereby muluatly agree as follo«-»:
CKNERALPKOVISIONS

I.I State Agency Name

New Hampshire Departmeni ofHcalih and Human Services

1.2 StaicAjcncyAddre.es

129 Pleasant Street
CortcOfd.NH 0.3.301-JSiT

1.) ConiractorNime

New Hampshire Chlldrcn'.s Trust, Inc.

1.4 Contractor AddreU

10 Ferry Succi, Suiie'307
Concord. NH,03301

1.5 •Contracior Phone
Number

(603)224-1279

1.6 Accou.H Number .

05-095-090-9020-

50400000
05-095.045-4500-

72160000

05-95-92-920510-

33820DO0

1.7 Completion Date

June JO.202J

I.S f'rKC Limitation

S2.533,600'

1.9 Contracting OfTieci for Sia

Naihan 0. White, Director

e Agency I.IO State Agency Telephone Number

(60))37I-'96JI

l.ll ContaciorSignaiurc
Owrtlgree

ra.ffs.ws

1.13 Name and Tiile of Com/actor Signatory

Cliff Siraaonds

Executive Oirecto.r

■■ ■ ^ <*o»i**«e'aijtj
1.13 State Agency Signsiure 1.14 Name end Tiilc of State Agency Signaiory

Christine SantanieTlo

Director

1.15 Departmeni of Adminisiratioii. Division ot Personnel (t) eppitcfiwe)

pirtcior.On; 6/3V7021

1.16 AppTCN^l^W'Xttfefney General (I'orm. Substance find exccui.on) (!/ap/>tia'Me)

By: 0"'

1.17 Approval by the Governor nnd Executive Council (j/«;jplieriblef ,

. GSiC Item number: C&C Mcciinp Date: /—»
Pauc I ofS

Controcior Iniiiols
Dote
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2. SERV'JCeS TO,BE PERFOKAlEp. The .Siaic of Neu
HiiT^hire. »ciif>g'ihfobgh Jhc agency.ideniified in bioci: 1.1
("Stale"!, cngigej coniriciof Wcmincd in block 1.3
("Coniraetof" ) lo pcrfomi, and the Contractor ahal! perform, the
work Of mU of goods, di both, identified and more panicularly
described in the wiachcd EXHIBIT B w-hich is incorporated
herein by teftrence cServiecr).

y EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notttiihsueding. any provision of this .Agreement to the
corurary. and subject to the approval of ibc Oovcrnor and
executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applieiblc.
this Agr«fneni, and all obHgaiions of the parties hcfeundcr. shall
become efTeait* on the date the Governor and E.tccoiivc
Council approve this Agreement'as indicated in bloct 1.17,
unless r»o such ipprovil is required, in which case the AgtecctKni
thsll become effwtive on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in Wock M) C Efrcetive Date
3.2 If the Contractor coramefKcs the Services prior to the
Effeetlve Date, ail Sernccs performed by the Contractor prior to

•the Effective Daicshail be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
efrccti^Y. the State -shall have no liability to the Comrartor.
itKludirtg withovi limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services perfonncd.
Cevtiiartor must complete oil ScA'iccs by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. condition.nlnatureokacreement.
Noiuiihsiarsding any pronsion of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercundcr. including,
without limitation, the continuantt: of payments hercundcr. arc
coitiingent upon the tvillabiliiy and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or-federal legislative or e.xccuiivc
aciion ihet reduces." elimir\iics or. otherwise modifies the
appropriotion or ovailability.of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for-ScA-ices,provided in liXHlUIT D. in whole or in
pan. In rw e\*nt shall the .State be liable for any payments
hercundcr inc.xcessof such available appropriated funds. In the
e«-em of a rcdixiion or teiniiruiion of appropriate funds, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become as-oilaWe, ifever. and shall havx the right to rcdiicc or
tcffnirioie the ScA-icc's ij.ndcr .this Agrc.cmeni immediately upon
giving the Coniracior ttoiiee of such reduction or termination.
The Siatc-shall not be required to iransfer funds from any other
account'or source to the Account iJcniific'd in block 1.6 in the
ewiit funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
pavment;

5.1 TIk cotttrtet price, method of payment, and terms of pa>;meni
aue identified ai^ more puri'.ic'ularly dcKribed in EXKIDIT C
w+iieh is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The paymenl by Ihc "State of the conirtci price shall be the
only and ihrcpmpleie reimbursement to the Coniracior for all.
e.spenses. or.whaievcr nature incurred by the Contractor in the
jxiformarKc hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compc'r^'sation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
3.J The State fcscA-es the. right to offsei from any amowntj
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounuc required or permitted by N.H. RSA M:7
through RS A S0:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 N6t«*iihsiariding any provision in .this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding urK.rpeeied circumsiaiKCS, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually rnad.e
hercundcr. c.xcccd the Price (.imitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LaWS
AND regulations/ EQUaL EMPLOYMENT
.OPPORTUMTV.
6.1 In eonneciion with the performarice of the Services, the
Contrxior shall cotriply vriih all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligaiion or duty upon the
Corvtractor. including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any pan by monies of ihc-United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal e.xeeutive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulaiiorts.
The Coiitractor shall also couiply with all applieiblc intellectual
property law.*.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin end will take affirmBtivc action to
prevcni.such discrimination.,
6.3. The Coniixior agrees to permit the Si.ate or United States
neeess to .tny of the Contractor's books, records and accourvtj for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with ell rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms end <ondiiiOft.e, of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own e.vpcnse prpnde all personnel
neees.ary to perform the Services. The Contractor wan ants that
all personnel engaged in the Services ;shall be-qualified to
perform the Scn-ices. and shall .be properly l!ccn.<cd and
otherwise authorized to do so under, all applicable lows.
7.2 Unless othcrwi.ee ooihorizcd in writing, during the term of
this Agreerriehi. and fo; a period-of sj.v (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor .or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined-effort to
perform the Sca icc.* lo hire, any person who is o State employee
or official, who i.< rhaierially involved in 'the .procptcmchi.
administration or performance .of this Agreement. This
provision shall Survive termination of this Agreement. •
7.3 The Contracting OITteer .vpecificd in block 1.9. eu his or her
successor, shall be the Stntc's rcptcsentailve.. In.ihe event of tny
dispute concerning the interpretation of ihi.s Agrccmcni. the
Coniiacting Officer's decision shall be final for ihe Staie.

Page 3 of 5 EConiracior Iniiiols
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S. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDItS.
gll Any one Of more of ihe following eci$ or.brnisjions of ihc
Coniractor Jh*il comtitute en c^'<fii of (Jefiuli hcfconder (• i-.veni
ofbcf«oU""j:
8.1.1 foilufc 10 pefform the Services MUsfecionly or on
scheduk;

8.1.2 failute lO submit «ny rcpofl fcquired hcrwnder; ewL'or
8.1.3 failufo to pcrfofonny other covcnatit. term or condition of
ihis Ajreemeni.'

S.2 Upon the occurrence of flfty Event of Default, the State may
taVe tny one. or more. Of all. of the follOMing DCiions:
8.2.1 CooireciOf a written npiicc specifying the Evcni of ^
Dcfauirond requiring it to be rctnedieeJ within, in the absence of
Q greater or leiser ipeeification of time, ihiny f 30) *)•>'* f'®'" '.I*®
date of the mkc\u\i ifihc Event of Default is not timely cured,
lerminaic this Agreement, effceuv* two(2) days aAer giving the
Contractor notice of terminal,ion:

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending *11 pnyfricni.s to be made umJcr this
Agrecnicnt and ordering ihai the porricin of the eontraci price
which would otherwise accrue to the Coniracior during the
period from the date of such notice .until such time as the State
determines that the Conirxior has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Coniractor;-
8.2 J give the Contractor a wifiiico notice specifying the Event of
Default and set ofT againp any Other obligations the State may-
owe to the Coniraeior any damages ih< State suffers by rca.<on of
any Event of Default: and/pr
8.2.4 give the ContQCior a written notice specifying the Event of
Default., treat the Agreement as brctschcd. terminate the
Agreement and pur.eue any of ii.s rcmcdic.< at law or in equity, or
both, ■ -

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard lo thai E\*m of pefauli. or any subsequent Event of
Dcfnuli. No e.xpres.t faiiurc to enforce any; F.vxnt of Dcfeuli .shall
be deemed a svaiver of ihe.rlghi of the State to enforce each and
alj of the prqvisiofis hereof upon any further or other Event of
•Default on iIk pan of the Contractor.

9.TERiM,lNAT10.N.
9.1 Noiw'iihsianding paragraph 8, the State ihay. at its .sole
discretion, terifliniie the Agreement for «ny rc^.son. in whole or
in pan. by ihiny (30) days written r>otiec to ihc Coniracior that
the S.tete is c.sereising ils option to terminaic the Agreement.
9.2 "in the event of an early tefminoiion of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
"Contractor shall, at the State's .discretion, deliver to the
Coniroeting Oflicer. not jatcr than ril3ccn{l3) days ofler the date .
of termination, n report ("Termination Report ■) describing in
detail all Services "performed, end the contmci price earned, to
and including the daic of termination. The form", subject mailer,
content, and number of.coptes of ihe Termination Report shall
.be identical loihose.ofany Final Kep,ori.dw.rib,cd in the attached
lixillDlT D. In addition, tii ihe State's discretion; the Contracior
shall, within 15. days of notice of early termination, develop and

Pogc

submit to the State a Transition Plan for scAiecs under the
Agreement.

Ifl. data/access/confidentialitv/
PRESERV.aTION.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "dm#" shall mean si)
information and things devxlopcd or obisincd, during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agrecmcm. ir\elodIng. but not limited to. all studies, repoets.
files, formulae, surveys, maps, ehanj. sound fe;cofdings. videp
recording.*, pictorial reprodoeiions. drawings, analyses:graphic
representations, computer programs, computer prinioui.s. notes.
IciiecS. memomndd. papers, arid documenis. all whether
finished or unfinished.
10.2 All tiaia and any prbpcny which has been received from
the State Of purchased with funds provided lor that purpose
under this Agrce.mcni. shall be the piopcny of-ihe State, and
.<hall be returned to the Slate upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confrdcnilaliiy ofdaia .shall be governed by N.H. RSa
chapter 91-A or other e.xisting law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written nppros-al of the State,

11.CONTR,vCTOR"SRELaTIONTOTJIESTaTE. Inihc
performance of this Agreement the Coniracior is in.all respects
an independent coniracior. and is neither an agent nor en
employee of the Stale. Neither the Contraelor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have auiSorily to
bind the State or rveeivv any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNiMENT/DELECATlON/SUBCONTR/kCTS.
12.1 i hc Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agrcemcm without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifieen{lS) days prior to
ihc ftssignmeni. and a wriiien consent of the State. For purposes
of thi.x paragraph, o CKingc of Control shall coasiituic
assignment. "Change of ConifOl" means (a) merger,
consolidation, ot a irans-iciion or series of related transactionis in
which a third pany. together with its alTiliates. becomes the
direct Of indirect oumer of fifty percent (50%) or rnote of the
voting sharc-t or siniilaf equity lniefe.sis, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale .of all or .subsianilatly all
of the Jisse.iiof the Comraeior.
12.2 None of the iScrx-ices .xhall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior ix-riiien notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subconirocis and assignment
.igrcemenis and shall not be bound by any provisioiis contained
in a subeontfxi Of fi n flssignmeni agreement-to which it it not a-
pany- ?

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unlc.s.xothcfw;.xcc.scmplcd bylaw,
the Contractor sh.ill Indemnify and hold harmless.the Stale, its
officers and employees, from and against any .and all claims,
liabilities and costs for uny personal injuo"©' pfbpeny dBimages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asscned against
the State, its officers or employees, wh'rch arise puj of (or which
may" be claimed to arise out oO 'he acts or omif-iioaiof the
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Conirscior. d» wbconlrticidnj. including buj nb» limiicd lo ibc
ftogiigenc'e. reckless or inicniioMl conduci. The Su'e sJuil noi
be liable for any cojis incurred by (he Conifocior arising under
ihis parajnph 13. No(*iihs'iandiflc ihc foregoing, noihing herein
coftiaiftcd shall be deemed lo coMiiiute a wai»-er of ihe sovereign
immuniiy ofthe Stale, which immOniiy is hereby retefved lo ihe
Siaic. This covenani in paragraph 13 shall sun-ivc ihe
lermituiioin of ihis Agreemeni.

N. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Comraciof shall, ot iis sole .expense, obtain end
ceniinuouVly rnairMoin in force, and' shall reooire any
lobcomrociof or ossignec lo obiain and mainiain in force, ihc
follovWng injiirance:
14.1.1 commercial i^cnera) liabilii)' ln.<unince against all claims
of bodily injury, death oi property damage, in amouni.< of noi
Ic.es ihan Sl.OOO.OOO per eccunence and S2.000.000 aggregate
orc.eecss:and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
lubjeci to subparagraph 10.2 herein. In oh amount not less ihan
8034 of ihe whole rcplacemeni value of the prdpeny.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 1 «•. I herein shall be
on policy forms ortd cndorsemems approved for use in the State
of New Hampsltirc by the K.II..Dcpartm<hi of Insurance, and
-issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Mampshirc.
14.3 The Coniracinr shall furnish lo the Coniractirtg Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or kr successor, a certificaicls) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Ajrecmcni.
Conuaeior shall also furnish lo ihc Coniraeting Ofiicer identified
in block 1.9. or his or her successor, ccrtificaicfs) of insurance
for all tcoe>kal{s) of insurance required under this Agrcemchi no
laicr than ten (10) days prior to ihc c.tpiraiion date' of each
iruurancc policy. The cenif)caic(.«) of insunncc and any
rcncwal.s ihcrrof shall be aiiaehed ortd arc incor^'oicd herein by
refcrcncc.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION..
15.1 Dy signing iliis agreement. ihe.Comracior agrecx. ccnific.s
and wi/ranis ihai ihc Contraetor i.s In eomplianee wilh or e.vcnipt
from, lite tcqulrememsofN.II. RS A chapter 2SI*A f' li'orkrs'
Cofiipeivaiioii"/.
15.2 Toihc c-Slcnl ihc Cooi'rocior if subject to the requirement.*
of N.H;. kSA chapter 281-A. Coniractor shall maintain, and
requite any subconiractor or assignee to secure and mainiain.
pa^-nieni of W'orfcen" Conipcniaiion in connection with
aeiiviiirs which ihc person proposes lo.undenakc pursuant to this
Agreement. TheComrietorshall furnishtk Contracting OfTicer
identifietj in block 1.9. or his or her lucccsiof. proof of Workers^
Compen.*a'lion in the manner described in N.ll. RSA eh.ipicf
381-A and ony opplkoble rcnewalfs) thereof, which, shall be
aiiaehed and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be tcsponsiblc for paymehi'of any Workers'
Compensaiion premiums or for any'olher claim or benefit for
Contractor; or any lubconiraciOf or emplo)'ee of Contractor,
which might arise ui^der applicable State of New Hampshire
AVorfcrrs" Compensation -laws in connection with the
pcrformirKc of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hercir> to the other pany
shall be deemed iq have been duly deli vcrcd Of given at ihc iime

''of mailing by ccnificd .maii. postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the patties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

\T. .AMEjNDMENT. This Agreement maybe omcisded. waived.
Of discharged only by on insifumcru in uTiiing signed by the
parties hereto and only after .opprD\*al of such amendmetii,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and E.vecviive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval ij required
under the circurnstanccs purstiant lo Sisic law. rule or policy.

It. CHOICE OR LANN' A.^■D ROttUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in Kcordtncc with the
laws ofthe State of New Ilampshire.-and Is binding upon and
inures (0 the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and a.*sign5. The wording u.«d in (his Agreement is ihc wording
chosen by the panics lo c.spress their mutual intent, and no rule
ofeonsiruetion shall be applied againsi or in favor of any pany.
.Any action.* ari.*ing oui of this Agreement shall k brought and
maintained in New Mamp.*hlre Superior Couri which shall have
e.vclusivc jurisdiciioti thereof.

19. CONRLICTINC TERMS. In the event of a conPici
between the terms of this P-37 form fa.* rnodtfied in CKHIBIT
A) and/or snachmcnis and amcndmeni thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIOIT A) shall eomrol.

20. TlllRf)'Parties. The panics hereto do noi intend to-
benefit any .third panic.* and ihi.* Agreement shall i>ot be
coanrucd to confer any.such berKfii.

21. HEADINGS. Tkheadings thiooghoui the Agrcemciu are
for reference purposes only, snd ihc «-ofds eomained therein
.shall in no way bv held to c.vplaln. modify, amplify or.aid in ik
interpretation, ronsirueiion or meaning of the provisions of this
Agrfement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set fot^h in ihe aiiaehed EXHIUIT A arc irKorporaicd
herein by refcrchCe'.

23. 'SKVERiVb! LIT^'. In the event any of ik provisions Of ihis
Agreement trwheld by 0 court of compcieni jurisdiction to be
contrary (o any slate or federal law, the remaining prorisions.of
ihi.* .Agreement will remain in full force artd effect.

24. ENTIRE ACKEEMENT. This Agrccmcni. which may be
c.\ccuicd in a number of counterparts, each of tvhich shall be
deemed an original, constitutes ihc entire agrccmcni and
underviandiiig bawccn ik panitL*. and supersedes all prior
ngrccineni.t and understandings u-ith respect to the Subject matter
hereof.
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Now Hampshire Oopartment of Health and Human Services
Now Hampshlro Family Resource Ccntof Facimailon Oroanliallon
and Quality Spbdallst

EXHIBIT A

RFVlRiONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Rovlsions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
-  subpara'graph 3-3 as follows:

3.3. The parlies may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additiorial years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of ihe parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph"l2. Assignment^Delegalion/Subcontracts. is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as foHovys:

■12 3 Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as th.e
•Contractor and the Conuactor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have wntt^
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be perform^
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractors
performance is Inadequale. The Contractor shall manage he
-subconiracior's performance on an ongoing basis and take wrreclive
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide Ihe State vw h
a list of all subcontraclors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the Stale of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-2022-bEHS^)'l -NEWHA-Oi E.vVbli A • Rivtjiiw lo Con'.taji
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Now Hampshird Deparlrheht of Health and Human Services
Now Hampshire Family Resource Cer^ter Faclllratlon OrganUation
and Quality Specialist

EXHIBITS

Scope of Services

Statement of Work

1.1. The Contracto

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

r shall provide services in this agree/Tient to the Family Resource
Centers (FRO) in" New Hampshire.

The Coniractor'.shall ensure services are available Statewide.

For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall
mean Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. Io 5:00 p.m., including stale,
federal and Coniraclor holidays.

The Conlfaclof shajl suppod each Family Resource Center (FRO) with iheir self-
assessment to determine the level of readiness for each FRO to receive the
Family Resource Center of Quality (FRC-0) designation in accordance v/ilh
National Family-Support Network (NFSN) SiandardS'of Quality for Family
Strengthenir^ and Support (Standards).

The Conitraclor shall perform an individual assessment of any FRC applying for
FRC-Q designation to Identify arid document deHciencles in meeting standards
and to assist each FRC throughout (he application process.

The Contractor shall work with Ihe Wellness and Primary Prevention Council
(WPPC) and Family Support NH (FSNH) to provide support to FRCs in
implementing and meeting the Standards for (he purpose of acquiring an FRC-
Q designation. The Conuaclor shall ensure support Includes, but is not limited
to:

1.6.1. PfO^nding FRCs with information about the Standards:

hlips://www.naUonalfamilysupportnetworlt.or9/slandafds-of-quaiiiy:
1.6.2. Providing technical support to FRCs in the implementation of Standards;

1.6.3. Providing technical support to FRCs in the implementation of
procedures to document practice of Standards:

1.6.4. Providing training and technical assistance to FRCs in the development
of a written plan to meet Standards:

1.6.5. Traveling to any FRC requesting an In person consultation;

1.6.6. Assisting FRCs with compleiifig (he FRC-Q application;

1.6.7. Reviewing PRC-Q applications for accuracy;

1.6.8. Participating in the NFSN through a membership with FSNH; and

1.6.9. Providing FRCs with Information and trainings on acquiring the FRC-Q
designation.

SS2022-OeHS.Oi.NEWHA.pi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and, Human Services
Mew Hampshire Family Rqsov.rco Cofiter Facllltallo.n Organliailon
and Ouality Spociallsl

EXHIBIT B

1.7. The Conlractor shall collaborate with other FRC technical assistance assets to
assess the capatily of each FRC relative to the core and optional standards
■defined by the WPPC.

1.8. The Contractor shall work with the Departmeni and FRCs to determine culturally
appropriate process and outcome data collection and analysis.

■  1.9. The Coritfaclbr shall assist FRCs in increasing operational efficiencies.
1.10. The Conlractor shall provide technical assistance for oversight as well as

implemenlatjon of a quality improvement process.
1.11. The Contractor shall utilize a Community of Practice sharing model that allpws

FFtC'administrators and leadership to esiabtish and, strengthen cooperation,
collaboration, and Informal mentoring among FRCs.

1.12. The Contractor shall educate policymakers, communities, and community
.groupsonFRCbeslp.factic.es.

1.13. The Cofitractor shall ensure priority is given to FRCs providing home services
to:

1.13.1. Families for whom ihe Division of Children. Youth and Families (OCVF)
has issued a letter of concern;

1.13.2. Families vrilh cases reported by DCYF as unfounded but with
reasonable concern; and

1.13.3. Recipients of Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) program
services.

1.14. The Contractor shall utilize the Family Support Data Syslem.Quick Base data
platform for the purposes of supporting quality improvement efforts, capable of
coHeciirig data on. but not limited.to. the following:
1.14.1. Identifying FRCIocations.statewide;
1.14.2: Ideritifying FRC-Q locations, statewide;
1.14.3. Identifying FRC-Q designation expiration dales;
1.14.4. Documenting trainings provided to FRCs through; .

1.14.4.1. hJo.iesfrom the training;

■  1 .■14.4.2. The number of training atterldees; and .
1.14.4.3. Identified action items;

1:14.5. Identifying which FRCs have completed the FRC-0 self-assessment;
1.14.6.' Identifying PRCs that have completed the Ff^C-0 designation

application;

1.14.7.' Identifying FRCs wilh plans In place to become ah FRC-0;
SS-2022-DCHS';0l-NEWHAr0l .ConlfXtOf InJlial?
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
N«w Hampshire Family Rosourco Center Facllliailon Organization
and Ouality Spdclaiist

EXHIBITS

1.14.8. Identifying individuals who have received Standards certincalion;

1.14.9. Documenting FRC and FRC-Q service outcomes;

1.14.10. Documenting FRC priorities: and

1.14.11. Identifying shared measurements among PRCs for family outcomes.

1.15. The Contractor shall provide upon reguesi to the Department with aggregate
data. Information, and ouicomel

1.16. The Contractor shall coordinate data colieclion efforts programs including but
not limited to: . . .

1.16.1. Comprehensive Family Support Programs (CFSS).,

1.16.2. NH Maternal Infant Early Childhood Home Visiting-

1.16.3. Healthy Families America Home Visiting Programs.

1.16.4. Community Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve Families
Programs.

1.-17. the contractor shall provide Technical, Assistance (TA) around data Integrity
and develop reports relatied to (he data collection.

1.18. The contractor shall provide training to all new FRC staff who enter data into the
Quick base platform

1.19. The contractor shall ensure data Integrity for the CFSS program and provide the
necessary reports monthly.

t.20. the contractor shall work with the Oepanmeni to plan and align other data
collection efforts for any other new programs administered through Family
Resource Centers

t.2l. The Contractor shall provide quality improvement training and resources to
PRCs and FRC-Qs. including but not limited to:

, 1.21.1. Collecting and disseminating FRC-Q best practices and evidenced
based program models;

1.21.2. Convening PRCs and FRC-Qs in a Community of Practice sharing
model;

1.21.3. Promoting collaboration through shared learning opportunities and
training with PRCs and FRC-Qs across slate agencies in an effort to
Improve service outcomes;

1.21.4..Increasing PRC administrative and operational efficiencies; and

1.21.5. Providing technical assistance to ensure that each FRC-Q has.a clear
non-profit business model.

S5-2022-DEHS-01-NEWHA-OI
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New Hampshire Oeparlmem of Health and Human Services
New HBmpshlro Family Rccourco Cooler FacitiUlion Orgnniiation
.and Qiiallty Specialist

EXHIBIT B

V22. The contractor shall provide funding to FRC in year ly/o.ol the contract, tor their
administrative needs to support the work of the FRC, including but not limited
to:

1.22.1. Executive Director Salary

1.22:2. CFO salary

1.22.3. building repairs and maintenance

1.22.4. Distribution of funds shall be based on a formula with FRC-Q
designation

1.23. The Comracior shall fund and support positions for the purposes of supporting
kinship caregivers who are caring for kin. The Contractor shall ensure.
1.23.1. Navigators are utilized within FRCs and FRC-Qs to provide support to

kinship caregivers who are caring for kin as^a result of a placement.

1.23.2. Navigators connecl with kinship caregivers. in person or by olher
electronic means such as Facetime and Zoom, for the purposes of:

'  1.23.2.1. Assessing kinship caregiver needs;

1.23.2.2. Providing outreach, engagement, and community support
services and referrals; and

1.23.2.3. Utilizing or creating peer support groups for kinship caregivers.

1.23.3. Provide training to Navigators to provide consistency across Navigators
through education and training, consistent with:

1.23.3.1. DCYF; and

,  ■ 1.23.3.2iTANF programs.

1.24. The Contractor shall market FRCs in order to raise public awareness, arid raise
avvareness among statewide and potential partners. The Contractor shall
ensure;

1.24.1. Public awareness acliviiies align and are coordinated with olher
statewide family support and strengthening networks; and

1.24.2. Consistent marketing and branding of FRCs and FRC-Qs.

'1.25. The Contractor shall utilize the Boundary Spanrilng Leadership frame^ork'to
promote .cross-system collaboralion between FRCs. FRC-Os and other child-
welfare and family'Service-agencies, businesses, philanthropic funders and
other organizations providing family support and/or economic support services.

1.26. The Contractor may identify and assist FRCs.and FRC-Q.s in lheif applications
for additional funding opporiuniiies for FRC and FRCO operaiions. programs,
or quality improvement activities.

SS.2022-OEH S-01-N EWHAe 1
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EXHIBIT B

1 ;27. The Contractor shall facilitate the FRC-Q.designaiion review process, including
but'nollimited to:

i.27.t. Assembling FRC-Q designation review teams devised of members of
iheWPPC;

1.27.1 Providing reviewing teams with necessary site reviey/ tools:
1.27.3. Coordlhaling FRO site reviews:

1.27.4. Recording, publishing, and reviewing team minutes:

1.27.5. Developing a form to gather review team meeting feedback: and

1.27.6. Communicating results to FRC applicants.

i;28. The Contractor shall allend all.Wellness and Primary Preservation Council
(WPPC) meetings.

t .29. The Cohlractor shall attend all Family Support New Hampshire (FSNH) monthly
meetings end provide progress reports on the nurriber of FRCs achieving FRC*
0 designation.

1.30. The Contractor shall attend any National Family Support Network meetings
OHHS Identifies as required.

1.-31. The Contractor .shall utilise project management best practices throughout the
contract term.

.1.32. The Contractor shall demonsirate an implementation of a Community of
Practice sharing model among FRCs and FRC-Qs.

|.3l The Conlractof shall document specific trainings, guidance, and supports for
FRCs and FRC-Qs providing home visiting services.

1.34. The Conlractof shall maintain the Family Support Dala System data collection
system in accordance with this Scope of Services.

1 .-35. The Contractor shall demonstrate an Increase in the nurnber of FRCs receiving
the FRC-0 designation.

1.36. The Contractor shall maintain the training process and conlinuB to develop the
KinVilp Navigation position based on evaluation of the program and staff
performance.

1.37. The Gonlractbr shall provide evidence of sufficient number of Navigators
through subcontract.

1.38. Contractor shall support FRC-Q with the re-designalion process every three (3)
.years.

'1.39. 'Conlraclor shall provide support to FRC-Q to develop a work plan to Increase
best practice standards using the National standards of quality for^i^ily

cs
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EXHIBIT B

strengthening and support, data outcomes, client satisfactory surveys.and other
evaludiion tools.

1.40. The Contractor in collaboration with the Department shall design a Family
Soppon NH (FSNH) satisfaction survey to ensure that the Facilitated
Organization meets the needs of the Family Resource Centers.

1.41. The Contractor shall demonstrate an increase in Navigator positions and kinship
Navigator support In each year of the contract term.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. the Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Ir^formatlon in compliance
viith the. Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and I64) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in "accordance with the attached .
Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confideniial data related lo this Agreenieril In
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department FSNH, WPPC,
within fifteen (15) days following the end of the reporting period, to ensure
adequate and efficient service delivery, v/hich Include, but are not limited lo
reports detailing the following:

3.1.1.. The number of FRC-Q designation applications received:

3.1.2. The number of Vendor FRC and FRC-0 site reviews performed;

3.1.3. • The number of FRCs receiving the FRC-O designation;

3.1.4. Status updates on FRCs applying for the FRC-Q designation according
to the FRCs individual written plan;

3.1.5. A comprehensive training plan for each FRC-0 within ninety (90) days
of receipt of FRC-Q designation;

3.1.6. The number and topics of trainings provided to all.FRCs and FRC-Qs;

3.1.7; The number of I^RC and FRC-Q staff trained;

3.1.8. Progress made in developing shared family oulcome.measures;

3.1.9. The number of Navigator positions supported and/or funding; and

'  3.1.10. The number of trainings delivered to Navigators.

SS-2022-OEHS-OVNeWHA.Ol
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3.2. The Conlraclor shall provide a comprehensive annual report by June .30®» of
each year.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit quarterly project progress reports, within fifteen (15)
days following.the end of the reporting period, with a final report due thirty (30)
days from contract completion dale.

3.4. The Conlraclor shall submit monthly Kinship Navigator report, within fifteen (15)
days follONving the end of the reporting period with a final report due thirty (30)
days from contract completion dale.

3.5. The Conlraclor shall provide an annual satisfaction survey report to the
Department within thirty (30) days of calendar year.

3.6. The Contractor shall demonstrale an increase in the number of PRCs receiving
FRC-Q designation by at least four (4), from an established baseline as of (he
contract effective date..Annual baselines are'as follows;

3.6.1. Three (3) in 2022;

3.6.2. Three (3) in 2023

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborale v/ith the OepartmenI to
enhar>C€ contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.2. The Conlraclor may be required to provide other key data and metrics, to the
Department, in the aggregate and de-identified, including client-level
demographic, performance, and service data.

4.3. Whcro applicable, the Conlraclof shall collect and share data with the
Department, In the aggregate and de-idenllfied. in a format specified-by the
Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or l.eglslativc Changes •

5.1.1. The Conlraclor agrees that., to the extent future stale or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities .
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Conifaclor shall submit; within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a delaiied dpscription of the communicalion access
,and language assistance services to be provided to jST^re

CoftUacto/ Iniliolj. ' ■.SS-2022-OEHS=0t-NEvyHA01
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rrieaningful -access lo programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency.-individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech chalier)ges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5:3.1. All documents, notices, pr

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

ess releases, research repons and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement. "The
.preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the Stale of New Hampshire, Oeparlment of Health and
Human .Services, with funds prodded in part by the Stale of Nevy
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available, or
required, e.g.. the United Slates Oepartmeni of Health and Human
-Services."

All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1., In the operation of any facilities for providing services; the Contractor
shall cornply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, slate,
county .end municipal authorities, and with any direction of any Public
Officer Of officers pursuant to lav/s which shall impose .an order or'
duly upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmeriial
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, .the Contractor shall procure
said license or permit, and shall at ail limes.comply vviih the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In conneclio.n with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby cpvenants and ̂ oies

5.3.4.

SS-2072-0EHS-01 -NEWHA-01
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.  EXHIBIT 8

.  . that, during,the term of this Contract the taciliiies shati comply wiih all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire' protection agency, and shall be in
.conformance with local Ouiiding and zoning codes, by'riaws and
regulations.

S.5. 'EllgiPlllty Oeterminatjohs

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permiued lo determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibiliiy delerminalion shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and stale laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinaiions shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
timesas are'prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall mainlain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which Hie shall include all information necessary lo
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requesis. The Coniroctbr shall furnish the Department
with all forms and documenialion regarding eligibility determinations
that the Department may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that ail applicants lor services
hereunder. as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a
fair hearing regarding (hat. delerminalion. The Conlraclor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be
permiltc.d to fill out an application form and thai each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right lo a. fair hearing in
accordarice with Department regulations.

6. Records

;  6.1. The Conlraclor shall keep records that ir^clude. but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documenls and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the perforrhance.of the Cdniraci. and all income received
or collected by the Conlraclor.

6.1:2.- AH records must be mainiained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect ail .such
cosis and expenses, and v/hich are acceplable to the Department, and
•to include, wiihoul. (imitation, all ledgers, books, records, and orlgirial
evidence of costs such as.purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions formalerials. inventories.-valuations of In-kind contrib^t^gs,

6S
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labor .lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.1.3. Statislical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipieni of
services, which records shall include all records of appllcaiio.n and
eligibility (IrKluding all forms required to .determine eligibility for each
such redpieni), records regarding the provision of services and -all
invoices' submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
seArices.

6.1.4. Medical records on each paiienl/recipienl of services,

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Oepaiynenl. the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services." and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
•records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum .number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of

•  .the price limitation hereunder. (he Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obtigalions as. by the terms of the Contract are lo be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of" the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon
review of (he Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disaltovy any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall'
retain the right, at its discretion, lo deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

.  This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 52% New Hampshire Overdose Data to Action Program (NH 0D2A), as
awarded on January 2021, by the Centers For Disease Control And
Prevention. CFDA 93.136. FAIN#NU17CEg2<984.

i.'2. 15% kinship Navigator Programs as awarded on October 2020, by the
Administration for Children, and Families. CFDA .93.556,

• FAIN«20011NHPKIN&2101NH'PKIN

2.

3.

•4.

5."

6.

7.

1.3. 32% General Funds

For the purposes of this Agreenieni:

2.1.

2.2.

The Deparlnient has identified (he Contractor as a sub-recipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

The Department has identined this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

2.3. The dc minimis Indirect Cost Rale of 10% applies in.accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
Incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with
the approved line item, as spedfied in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-
8. Budget Sheets.

The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form salisfaclory to the Doparlment
by.the fifteenth .{'isth) working day of the following month, y/hich identifies and
requests-reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month,
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and relurped to the
Departmenl.in order to initiate payment.

The Contractor shall provide backup documenialion for all reimbursement
requests.

In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed, to BFAinvolces@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be rnaited to:

Financial Manager
.Dcparlmenl of Health and Human S.eiyices
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the.submitied invoice and

•New Hampshire CWW/on's Trust'lnc.

.SS-2022.b£HS-6»-N6WHA-0t

EKhtbirc

Paqo 1 0(3

CeN'AClOr iritlNj

Dale.
5/27/2021



DocuSIgn Envelope ID: OOSE576 l-i22C'C-4 \'y 5-A7EA-69667B8C1424

ppCySipn Envel^ D: ̂05077i^)qP3-(rF&-»207-AT040CC tFfiOS
OocwSignEnv«lop«ID:1(273'F'CF-U6$-'44}A»eM>07.5299^COM .

New Hampshire Department of Health arid Human Services
Now Hampshlro Parhlly Resource Center Feclli'tMion Organization
and Ouality Specialist

EXHIBIT C

if .'sutOcienl funds are aydilable. subject to Paragraph -4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement. .

8. The final invoice shall be due to the Deparimeni no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion dale specified in Form P-37. General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

9. The CohlVaclor must provide the services in Exhibit 0. Scope of Services. In
cornpljance vnlh funding requirements.

10. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in pan in the event pf non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under (his agreement may be vyithheld. in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have-not been
satisfa'ctorlly completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price lirhitaiion and adjusting
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years and budget class lines through Ihe
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parlies, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, If needed and
justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Conlraclor is required lo submit an annual audit to the Oepartmeni
if any of the following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750i000 or more In
'federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to"2 CpR
'200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition 8 - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the.
requirements of NH RSA-7;28. Ill-b, pertaining to charitable,
organizations .recei.ving support of $1,000,0.00 or rnore.

13.1.3. Coridilion C • The Contractor is a public company and required
by" Security and Exchange'Commission (SEC) regulations lo
submit an anri.ua) financial audit.

13.2. ilf Condition A exists. ihe'Coniraclor shall submit an annual single, audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the

New Hampjhif.e ChilcJren't Tnju. Inc.
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EXHIBIT C

Department within 12,0 days alter the close ol the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the repuirements of 2 CFR Part

13.3. 200. Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirernents for Federal awards.

13.4. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an. Independent CPA within 120
days after the close ol the Contractor's fiscal year.

13,'5. In addition to. and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the
Contract. It is understood and agreed by the Co'ntractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department ail payments made under the
Contract to Which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed .because of such an .exceplion.

New Hompjhirc'ChlJdtorfs Trust. Inc.
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Now Himpshiro Ooptftm'orit 61 Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATtCIH Re'qARDINO DRUO-FflEE WORKPLfl|CE REQUIREMENTS

ThV VervJor kieniificd in Sectlon l.S ol the General Provisions agrees 'o^ornplyjwih the pro^
Seciions 5151-'5160 oMhe Drug-Free Workplace Act o( 1988 (Pub. L. iOD-690. Tiije V. SubtttleO. 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). ond (urthw agrees lo nave the Contractor's represenlalive. as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Gcncrat Provistoni oxaculo the foliowing Certification:

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US OEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US.'OEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ■ CONTRACTORS

Th'is certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 6151-5160 ot the Owg-Frcc
Workplace Act ol 1988 (Pub. L. 1OO-6S0..Tiile V. Subtitle 0: 4i U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The Janua^ 3'.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part It of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691) and require certificaiion by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to owa/d.-lhat they win maintain a drug-free y/orkplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the -
regulation provides that o grantee (and by inference..sub-grantees ond sub<onifaciors) ihai is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year In lieu of cernfeales for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by fhe certificatibn. The certificate set out below Is a
material represeniation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certificaiion or violation of the certification shall bo grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination ol grants, or government wide suspension or debarmcni. Contractors using this.lonn s^o"^
tend it to:

Commisstoner

NH Department of Health and Human Scn-ices
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord.-NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies lhat it win Ol will coniinoclo provide a drug-free workplace by; '
1.1. .Publishirig a slaiement notifying empfoyees that the unlawful rnangfacture, disifibulion,

dispensing possession or use of a controlled subsiartce is prohibited in the grantee s
workplace and specifying the actions that v/iil be taken against employees (or violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. ' Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers ol.dfug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy clmatniaining a drug-lrcesvorkploce;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabililation. and employoo assistance pr^rams, and
1.2.4. The penatiies that may l>e imposed upon eniployees lor drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making ft a.requiremeni that each ernployee lo be engaged in the performance of.lhe grant be

.given a'copy of the sialcmcnt required by paragraph (a); ,
1.4. Nolilyirsg Vho employee in Ihe siatement required by paragraph (a) that, as o.condition of

cmpjoyrheiit.under the grant, tho crnptoyiio v/ifl
"1.4.1. AbWe'by the terms of the sielemenl:,-end
1.4.2. Notify the emp.l^ef in writing of his 6i her conviction for o violation of a cnrnlnaldrog

sleiute occurring In the v/orKplace no later than five calendar days after such
convlclion: . .

1.5. Notifying Ihea'goncy in svriling. within ton calendar days oiler reco'ving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2.ffom an employee or otherwise rece'iving'actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees m'usl provide r^olicc. including position bile, lo eycry grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Fc^aj agency

'CmOh^uoti)

gxhtoii 0 - CcnCiuSon legirdhp Onq Free
WorXpiace Rc<a»re«T»ena

Pago 1 ol 2

Vendor intUaU

Dole
.5/27/2021
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New Mempehire Ocpirtment of Health and Human Services
EihlbliO

has designated d central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the.
Identification numbcr'ls) of each affected grant;

1.S. Taking one qf the foDowirvg actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving nolice under.
subparagraph 1 .e.2. with respect to any emptoyee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking epprbpriale personnelociion against such en employee, up to and including

termination, conslsteni with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as -
amended: or

1.6.2. Reqqihng such employee to participate satisfactorily in a dri/g abuse assisiarKe or
rehabHiiation program approved for such purposes by e Federal. Stale, or locei heollh,
law iefnforcerhenl. or olher appropriate agency.

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue lo maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implemenltiion of pprpgrnphs 1,1, 1.2.1.3. '.4. 1,S. er*di.6,

2, The grantee may Insert In the space provided belov/ the siie(s) for the performance qf work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Perforrtiartce (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are v/orkplacos on file thai arc not identified here.

Vendor Name:

5/27/2021

Date

1 (i'/F
Name'f^'^ ll^f^'stranonos
Title: Executive Director

CU^tiViWi)

Emidh 0 > Ccniri-,2tlof« i^sr^Orup f^ree
woitFrxf Requtiemervs

P*9e 7 or 2

Ucnooi irwusU
5/27/2021

0»ie
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Now Hamoshlro Ocporlfnoril of Hcalih and Human Services
Exhibit E

nERTlPICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendv kJeniined In Section 1.3 of the General P/ovisions agrees to comply wiih the prcvlswns of
Section 319 of Public Lew ldl-l2'l. Govemmeni wide Guidance for New Rcstriciions on Lobbyi^. and
31 U.S.C. 1352. ond further agrees lo have the Conlraciof's fcprewnlaiivo. os ide.itlfied in Sections 1.11arxJ 1.12 of iho General Provisions execute the foyoWing Cortificalibn:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
UiS DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Progroms (indicate opplicablo program covered):•Temporary Assistance to Needy Famaies undet Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcemcnl Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Tilte XtX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Oevelopmeni Block Gram under Titte iv

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge ar^d belief, lhai:

1  No Federal oppfoprialed fundshavobcen poidor willbc paid by or on behalf of the undersigried. to
any person for influencing or altempting to Influence an,officer or employee of any agency. a'Member
of Congrefss. an ofHcer or employee of Congress, or an employee ol a Member ol Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, a.-ncndment. or
modiflcaiion of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative ogreemeni (and by specific mention
sub-granicc of sub-contractor).

2  If any lunds other than F^eral appropriated funds have been paW or vaii be paid to any person for
innucncing or altempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a K^mber of Cor>grcss
an officar or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Qongress in corwiecUor} with this.

'  Federal co/ilract. gronl. toa'n. or cooperative agreement (aixl by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigried shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance.wiih Its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-t.)

3 ■ Tho undersigned shall require that the language of Ihls certificalion be included in the award
docomenl for sub-awards al oil licrs (including subcontracts, sob-grants, and conlrads under grants,
bans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly,

This certificalion is s rnalerlal representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a pferequisiie (or making or cntenng into this
IransDCiion imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certificalion shafl be subject to a civil ponarty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name;

5/27/2021

Date

[Ml
TTatffbT'CTIYrsievnonds
Title:

Execuiivc Ofrcccor

.t^xNo'n E - Ccni&uiion'RegarOino totOylng

Peje t ol!

Vendor iNltsls

O'ete.
5/27/2021
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New Hampshire Oepartmeh! of Health and Human Services
exhibit F

CERTiFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESFQNSIBILITY MATTERS

the Conirxtof idenlifted in Seclion 1.3 ol the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive OKtce of Ihe'Prciideni. Executive Order I25<9 and flS CFR Pan 76 regarding Debarmenl.
Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and i.12 ol the General Provisions execute the Wtowing
Certification;

instructions FOR CERTIFICATION .

1. 8y signing and submitting this proposal (coniract). the prospective primary participant Is provrding the
certificoiion set out below.

2. The Inatxlily ol a person lo provide the certification requited below wil not necessarily result In denial
of participaiion In this covered l/ansaclion, If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation ol why II cannot provide the certification. The cenificaiion or cxplanafon will be
considered in connection with the NH Ocpanmenl ol Health and Human Services' (OHMS) '
determination whether to enter into this transaction. HoNS-ever. failure ol the prospective primary •
partlcipani to furnish a certification or'an explanation shall disqualify such person from participaiion in
this transaction. .

3. The certificaiion In this clause Is a material representation ol fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHMS dclermined to enter into this Irartsaclion. If it is later determined that Ihe prospective
primary pari'icipanl knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4  The prospeclive primary participant shall provide immediate v/rliien notice to the O.HHS agency to
whom this proposal (comracij is submitted ii at any lime the prospective primary panldpani learns
thai its cer^flcation was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason ol changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'debarred.' 'suspended.* 'ineligible.* 'lower tier covered
tronsoclion; ̂partlcipani.* •person.': -pfimary covered transaction." 'principal/ 'propdwl,* ar^
'volunlarily excluded.* os used In this clause, have the meanings set out In the Ocfinltions and
Coverage sectiohs of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
eiuiched'de(ihliiof\s.

6  The prospective primary participant agrees by submitl'mg this proposal {contraci) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter imp any lower tiw covered
transaction with a person who is debarred; suspended, declared Ineligible, or volunlarily excluded
from participaiion In ihis covered Ironsaciion. unless authorized by OHHS.

7. Tfie pfOSpecti.ve primary panicipani further agrees by sutjmiiting this proposal thai it \vill include the'
Clause,titled •Certir^iJon Regarding Oebarmeni, Suspenslon.-lneligibility and Volunlary Exclusion •
Lower Tie' Covered Transaclions.' provided by OHH^ wlihool modification, in all lower lief covered
(ransactioris and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A parllclp'aht in a'covercd transaction may rely upon a certification of a prosf^ciive participant Iri a
lowor'ticr covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or Involunlarilyr excluded
frorp the covered Iransaclion. .unless It knows that the certificoiion is erroneous. A part'rcipam may
decide the mclliod and frequency by \%+iich it determines iho oUgibiHiy of its pr'uic'pals. Each
partlcfpam may. bul is not required to, check the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parties).

9. .htothing contained In the foregoing shalt be construed lo require cslabllshmenl.of a system ̂ cwfds
.In order to" render in "good faUhthe certificatloh required by this clause. The knowledge

Exhibit F -CenifiuiioA R^»cdie CretumDcni. Sutdemton Conuxcior rnli'oli
5/27/2021

Dik
CUOrott/i Kri>

Aa4 0lh«'n«ipOAflMi()r Mjllcr»
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informatiori of 8 participant is not foijuired to exceed that which Is normally possessed by 6 pfudenl
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for iransacliorts outhcrUed under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if o partidpant In a
covered transaction kr>owlngly enters Into a lower tier covered tronsaclion with a person who Is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or vohmiarity excluded from participal'ion tn this bansac^. in
addiliort to other lamedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may tetminalfi this IfansacDon
for cause or defaull

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS , . . w.
11. The prosp«llye primary participani certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, ihat lt ond its

prtncipals: ' '
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmeni. declared inecglbte, or

vdunlarily excluded Ironi covered iransacOons by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a crimlrial offense In
corvneciion with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a pubSc (Federal. Stale or local)
iransactior* or a conl/aci under a public transaction; violation of Fcdefsi or State anbtrusl
statutes or commission of cmbez2lcment. theft, forgery, brtbery. falsification or dcstrucUon of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolon property.

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l){b)
of this certificabon; and

11 A. have not wiihiri a three-year period preceding this applicalton/proposai had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participani is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certifiulion.iSuch prospective participant shall attach an cx^anaiion to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By Signing ond submitting this lower Oer proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participanL os
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it ond Us principals:
13.1. are r>ol presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarmcnt. declared ineligible, or

.voluniarfly excluded from participation In this tronsaction by ony federal department or ogency.
13.2. where the prospective losver tier participani is unable to certify lo ony of (he obovc. such

prospecbve participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (controcl) that it will
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Oebarmenl. Suspension. incilgitHlily. ond
Voluntary 'Exclusion • lower Tier Covered Transoctions.* without modificalibn in all lower Her covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

5/27/2021

Oato raHi^'\!TfVf^far.ond$
Title;

gxecuclvc Director

C(«oi«iV)ier>>

EUdbii F - Cenifution R«*n|in{i Debtrmeni, Suspcntton
And Oihci Rcibohtiblity Matten

PogeZot; ■

Co.itiaclor InlUah

Dat«.
5/27/2021
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rPPTIPlCATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMFNTS PERTAINING TO
ccnPBAL NQNDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND.
h  wHisTLeBioyfg'^ protections

TheConlraclot identified in Section 1.3 bl the General Provisions agrees by signature ol
repreieniaiive o» tden-tificd in Sections i.i i and i.t2 of me General ProviSKjns. to execute the (oltowing
certiricaiion:

■Cqnlracior wHI comply, and will requite ony sut>9fantee5 or subcoriiraciors to comply, w-ih ariy appficablc.
(edcralnondiscriminalion rcquircmenis. which may incMe:
. the Omnibus Crime Control on6 Sale Strocls Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C Section 3769d) prohjWs
recipients of federal funding under this statute irom discrxmnalmg, either in empVsyment pracbces v Iq
the delivcrv ol scrvices'or benefits, on the basis of race, cotor. religion, national bngin. and sex. The Act
requtres certain recipients to produce an Equal Empioymenl Opportunity Plan;
- me Juvenile Justice Delinquency Preveniion Act of 2002 {«^.S.C. S-^ciion 5672(b)) which by
reference, the civil rights obtigalions of the Sale Sireeis Act. Reop-ents of ^
statute arc prohibited from discriminating, either in employment pracix^s or in the deW^ of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes tquai
Emptoymonl Opportunity Plan requirements;
. me Civil Rights Act of 1964 [42 U.S.C. Section 20000, which prohibits rwipienls of federal financial ,
assistance from discfjminialjng on the basis of race, color, or national ongm in ony program or acUvity).
. me Rehabilitation Act ol 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients ol Federalfinancial .
assistance Irom discrimlnalir^ on the basis Of fl iscbility. in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or bcnefils. in ony program or activity:
-mcArnc^ConswithOisabililies Actof 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 1213104). which prohlbils
discrimination end ensures'equal opportunity (or persons with disabilities m emptoyrnent. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- me Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections I68i. 1683. 1685-86). which prohibits '
discrirrtnation on the basis of sex in federally assisted oducalion programs;
- me Age Disc/lmlnalion Act ol 1975 (42 U.S.C. SecUons 6106O7). which prohibits dis^mination on the
basis of age in prograins oi ectiviiies receiving Federal fi t^ncial assistance, it does not include
employment discrimination:

■ 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs): 28 C P-fJ-
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrlmlnalion: Equal Empioymenl Opportunity: Polictes
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal prolectiori of the laws (or faith-based and co^umty
organltalions); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making;
criieria for pani^erships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations.

. 28C F.R. pt: 38 (U.S. Oepartmeniol Justice Regulatiorss- Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organlzalions)- and Whl5Ucblowcr'proteciions4ru.$.C. &4712 end The NoUonai Defense Author ration
'Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 20l3 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 20i3) the Pilot Program for
Gnhanccmerii of Contract Emplpyoe vyhlsUebfov/er Pro.tecllons. which protects .employees agalnsj
reprisal for certain whistle blowing actlvlilos in connection v>lih federal grants and contracts.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the.
agency mvards thd orant. False certification or violation of iKo certification shall be grounds, for
suspension of payments, suspension or terminaUon of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmcnL

ExAlbitC
CoAifKior i/iUlah&

VMJW

■(l4r.'iWUl'« PaSC I of 7 Date.
5/27/2021

SEC
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In Ihe event a federal or Stale couil or Federal or Slate.adminisliative agency makes a finding ol
discriminaliori after a"due process hearing on ihe grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
egainsi a recipient of funds. Ihe recipient wilt forward a copy.ol the finding to the Office for avil Rights, to

applicable corSlraclihg agcrycy or dMsion within (hp Oeparimeni of Health and Human Services, and
io the Dcpanriient of Health and Human Services Office of Ihe Ombudsman.

The Gonireclor Identified in Section 1.3 ol the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Conuacioi's
fCpres'eniaiiv'e as ideniified In Sections i ,n and 1.12 of ihe General Provisions, to execute the (ollowing
certificatiori: •

I. By signing end submltUng this proposoi (conireci) ih« Cor^itocior egrees lo comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name;

5/27/2021

Date

{m
*  I V^\

(li/f St's'^au./l
Nai^? Ynr'Si offlond s
Tiuc: Execucive O'ireccor

Mint

n«.. icoi/K

EihibU C

>**««<»«»a.ir.n —

Pa9e2 8'2

Contraciw inUUb
«.r »trxl <vM Of

DSK

(i
5/27/2021
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Pert C -Envwonmental Tobacco Smoke, aiw known as the Pfo-Chiidren Act o( 1994
(Act), fcquifcs that smoking not be perfnittcd in any pon'on ol any indoo' facility owned Of leased or
contracted for by an enliry and used roulinety Of regulafiy (oi the provision ol health, day core, educalron.
Of library services'to children under Ihe age of 18. il the services ore funded by Federal programs either
dlreclfy or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does rtot apply lo children's services provided in private residetKes. facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Mcdicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatieni drug or picohc) treatment. Failure
to cortiply with the prov'islons of Ihe law may resuB in the Imposition of a civil monetary perialiy of up to
SiOOO per day ond/or the impoti:ion of an a'dminlsifaiivt compfiancc O'der on the responsible cr^hly.

The Contractor identifjed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as idenUfied In Section l.n and 1.12 ol the General Provisions, to execute the follcwing
certificaOon'.

1. By signing and 5ubmillir>g this contracL the Goniractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-ChiV3ren Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

5/27/2021 (m
Date

Nam^'TTTTF^TTeoonHT'
Title: Executive Director

curoHnSiitorn

EiMbk H - CeitifiCJlion rteo*rir<ne
Envtionmentil Tobacec Smoke

Pegt 1 or i

.dCenuatior If^tah^- ■■ "
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
euSlNESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Conlraclof Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the AgreemenI agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 end
with the Standards for Privacy and Security ol Individually identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and t64 applicoble (o Crusin'ess ossociaies. AsdeHned herein. 'Business
Associate' shall rriean the Contractor arid subcontractors and agents of the Contractor thai
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agfocmenl and-'Covered
Entity' shall rriean the Staie.of New Hampshire. Deportment of Health end Human Services.

(1) Doflnltlons.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 4$,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'pesionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Oaia AoorcQation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Qoeraiioris' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Itiformalion Technotogy lor Economic and Clinicai Health
Ad. TitleXlll. Subtitle p. Parl 1 & 2 of the American Rkovery and Reinvestment Act of •

• .2009. • .

h. "HIPAA' mpans the Heallh.lnsurarice Porlability and Accouniability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160. 162 and 164 and arhendmenls thereto.

i. 'Indtviduar shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuaf in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a,person who qualifies as a personal repre'scnlalive in accordance wilh.45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

1-, 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually IdenVifiabl© Health
Informaliori at 45 CFR Paris 160 and 164, promulgated under Hlf^AA by the United Stales
Department ol Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Informntion' shall hove the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or recelv^by
Business Associate from or on behalf^of Covered Enlity. I

3/30M EtMsai Conlraeiar WliibS' —'
Hoft&n insuierice PortalNlity.Aci
BuslneiiXstod*ieAg'i>ei7teni 5/27/2021
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I. •RftQuifod bvLaw* shall have Ihe same nneaning as Ihe term 'required by law' in 45 CFR
Section I64;i03.

m. 'Secretary' shall rriean the Secreiary of Ihe-Deparlmem of Health and Human Services or
his/her designoo.

\  •

n  -qeciifiiv Rule* shall rhean the Security Standards for the Prolcclion.of electronic Protected
Health InformaUon at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments ihcrcto.

O  ■Un<i>euf0d prftif'Oftd Health infQfmfltien* means protected heolih Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health informalion unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthoiized individuals arxJ is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
institute.

n Other Deliniltons • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. i62 and 164. as amended from lime to time, aryl Ihe
HITECH
Act.

(2)

a.

b.

c.

d.

Business Afisoclale Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Infofmation.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Informalion (PHi) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibil A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited Ic all
its direciofs. officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or iransmii
PHI In any manner thai would consliiute a violation of ihe Privacy and Security Rule.
Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;

I. For the proper management and adminislralion of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. porsuanl to the terms set forth in paragraph d. belov/; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for Ihe health care operations of Covered

Enlily.

To the extent Business Associate is permilted under Ihe Agreement to disclose PHi to a
third party Business Associale must oblain. prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances fiom the third party lhal such PHI will be held conridehlially and
used or further disclosed only as required by lavr or for the purpose for which l( was
disclosed to the third party: and {ii)'on agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Nolificalion
Rules of any bve.aches ol the confldcnliailty of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A ol the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for-disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdo^^f r^f
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busj^«*

2/2014 EiNWI
Keaim iiwuwc® PonaWUiy Act
Bvtl/ieu Asioclil.e

P^2ol6

Conu*aw InliMi;

0»le.
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.Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional rcsiriclions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PH) in violation of
such addiUonai rcsiriclions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obtiflations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Busiriess Associate shati notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident thai may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immedialely perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above silualions. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

,0 The nature end extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected he.alih information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health Inlormalion was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health inlofmalion has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hpurs of the
breach and immedialely report the firxJings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply v/ith all sections of the Privacy. Securliy, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Asspciale shall make available all of its intcrna! policies and procedures, books
arxJ records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes ol deiermining Covered Entity's compliance with HiPAA.and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that rec'eivo, use or have
access to PH) under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restfictions.ond coriditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duly to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (i). The CoVere.d Entity
sttall t>e considered o direct third parly beneficiary of the Contractor's business oisgplale
agreements with Coriiraclor's intended business associates, who will be rcceivir

c.

d.

e.

V20I4 EU^Dlti
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9-

h.

k.-

a/2oi4

pursuant io (his Agreement, with rights ol enlorcemer^t and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #t 3 of the standard
contract provisions (p47) oI this Agreernent for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

V\llhin five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make availat>le during normal business hours al its offices all
records.- books, agrecmcnis. policies ond procedures relaUng lo the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business AssocJale's compliance wlih the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request frorp Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requifcmenis under 45 CFR Section 164.524. ^

Within ten (10) business days of receivir>g a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an indK/idual conlained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI 8vailat)!e to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enablc Covcred Entity to fulfill its
obligations Ondcr'45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related lo
such disclosures as would be required (or Covered Enlliy lo respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within teri (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
10 Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to futfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHi In accordarice with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Assodaie shall within hr/o (2)
business daiys forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However; if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or ihc Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Assodaie
shall instead respond to the indh/lduars request as required by such law end notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. •

Within ten (10) business-.days ol termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall reiurn or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ail RHl
received frorn..or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement. ar>d shall riot retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. H return or

■ destruction is not feasible, or tho disposition of the PHI has been olhervrlse agreed lo In
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to eartend the proieclions of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to
•purposes that make the return or destruction infoasible. for so long as Business

gxNbni Coftg>ctw lnniat»^ ■ '
tisaith buurxrcc PotabiCt/ Ka
0u»lnc»> Aiwdatc Ayccfwnl 5/27/2021
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Associalo maintains such PHI. if Covered £r>iiiy. in its sole discretion, requires thai the
Business Associate.destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Enlily that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4J Oblioatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limiiationfs) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CPR Section
154.520. to the exteni that such change.or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Enlity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
ol pertTtission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or

■  disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 154.'508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosufO of PHI that Covered Enlity has agreed to-in occordonce v/ith 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate s use or disclosure of

. PHI.

(5) Tonnlnatton for Cause
/

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P.-37) of this
Agreerncnt the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covorcd
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreernenl set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement oi-provkJe an opportunity for Business Associate to euro the
alleged breach within a limetrame specified by Covered Enlily. If Covered Enlity
deierrrxnes thal neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6)

a.

b.

c.

d.

V»14

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory Roferences. All terms used, but not Otherwise defined.herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to lime. A.reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
'a Section in the Privacy .arid Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Enii^ and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amor\d the Agreement, from time to lime as Is necessary for Covered .
Emily to comply with the changes In Ihe fcqulremenls of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Inieroretolion, The parties agree lhal any ambiguity In the Agreerncnt shall be
lo permit Covered Enlily to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule

be

Heikn P«n«t»qy Aci
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SeoreQation. If any terrri or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
personfe) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terrns or
conditions which can be given effect wiihout the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severabie.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the us© and disclosure ol PHI. return or
destfii'cHon ol PHI, exiensions-of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section <3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS VvWEREOP, the parties hereto havo duly executed this Exhibit I..

Dcpon'menlofHeaitherxJHumBnSetvicos new Hampshire chiuoren's trust

Jh©«&taid n: Contractor

j  iJjff
Signature of Authorized Representative Signalijre'^rX'uthorized Representative

Christine Santaniello cliff slnwon'ds

Name ol Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/14/2021 S/27/2021

Date Date

VTOW CiTiieil I

HeanMAiurince PonaMiii/Axj
Outtrtost AstX'dK AgrecfiicN

PagAOotO

Conuaow IriiiahQ
Date

iI
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CERTtFlCATfON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILiTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAt COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awaroccs of ifrdivioual
Federal grants equal lo or greaier man S2S.OOO and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related (bcxeculivobompcnselion and associated Tit sillier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. M (he
initial award is below S25.000 but subsequent grant modjrica lions result in o total award equal to or ever
$25,000. the award is su^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, os of the date of the oward.
In accordance wtlh 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sutjaword artd Executivo Compensotion Inlormaljon). the
Oepartnient Of Health and Human Services (DHHSj must report the following Information for any
cubDward or contract ovrard sut^l to the FFATA reporting requirements:

. 1. Nemo of entity

2. Amount of Dw^rd
3. Funding agency ' .
A. NAICS code for contracts fCFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
$. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action '
7. Location of Ihd onlily
8. Pfinapla place of performance
9. Unique ldenlir«f of the entity (OUNS d)
10. Total compensation end names of the top five executives if:

10:1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are irom' the Federal government, and those
fcvonues are greater than $25M annually end

10.2. Compensation informotion is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
•the award or award amendment is rriade.
The Conlr«lpr Identified in SocUon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with iho provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 end Public Lew 110-2S2.
end 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), end further agrees
lohave the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections l.i 1 and i.i2 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
Tho below named Contractor agrees lo piovWc needed informafion as outlined above to the NH
Department of Hoallh and Human Services and to comply sMth ad applicable provisions of the Federal
Financiai'Accounlabilily and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name;

5/27/2071 I
'

Date
 N^wWrr^YTmSSnSr
Title:

txccuttvc Director

CUOt»4VUOM>

Eihibh J-CeniriuUon R^irUUvpltH Fc^crsl Fuiyjine
AcCMinlabdy And Transporincy Art (FFATA) C«inp<idAM

P«g« 1 ol 2

Contmctor tnlUtb
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FORMA

As the Cohtraclor identified In Section 1.3 d the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

i0420Ull

,1. The OtJNS numt>er-fof your entity is:

2. In your business or 0(fl®r>iialiof>'8 preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more ol your annual gross tevenue In U.S. federal conlracts. subcqntracis,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) S25,000.00p or more,in annual •
gross revenues from U.S. (ederal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrartls. and/pr
cooperative agreomonU?

NO YES

If the answer to 92 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 92 above Is YES. please ans-wer the foiiowing:

3. Does the public have access to Inlormation about the compensation ol the oxocotives in your
business or organizalion through periodic reports tiled under section 13(a) or 15(d) ol the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78cld)) or sociion 6i04 o) the internal Revenue Code of
1986?'

NO YES

If the answer ip 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

A. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as fottows:

Narhe;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amounl:

Amount:

.cuor^o/nA'o

i - CentfiMiion ResaiS-rifi th« pedccsi
Accbuntsbillly A;^ Trsnspjrencjr Act (FFaTA) C«rnpl«rieo

Pi0(2^2

CoflUsclw tntsUbI if I
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

■A. Oefiniiions

The loHowing icrms may be reflecled and have ihe described meaning in ihis document:

1. *8feach* means the toss of control, compromise, unauihorized disclosure,
unauthorized ecquisiiion. ur»duthofized access, or ariy similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for on other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information. * Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* in section
164 A02 of title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Compuler Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer SecurJly
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce. , '

3. "Conridenital Information* or *000110601131 Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse' Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Heallh Information and
Pcrsorialiy Identifiable information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information o\vned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Heallh and
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed in the course of pefformir>g conlroclod
senrlces - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulalion. This Information includes, but Is not limited to
Prolecied Health information (PHI). Personal Information (Pi), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal, Tax Information (FTl). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential tnformalion.

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractors employee,
business associate, subconlraclor. other dosvnslream user, etc.) lhat- receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the lerms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of i996 end the
rogulalions promulgated thereunder.

6. "IrKidenl' means an act that potentially violates an expllcii or Implied security policy,
which includes atlempls (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service. Ihe unauihorized uw of
a system for the processing or storage of data: and charlgc's to sysierh hardware,
firmware, or sofhvare characteristics withoui the owner's knosviedge. lnsiruciion, or
consent. Iriciderits include iho loss of data through ihcft or device mispla'cemenl, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, arid misrouling of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
. access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. ."Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that is
not deslgnaied by the Siaie of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, end
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or cpnndenlial DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or 'PI') means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Indrvidual's identity, such as their name, social security rtumber. personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information v.^ich 1$ linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, rnother's maiden

.name. etc.

•  9, "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information si aS C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services.

"ib. "Protected Health Information- (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Infomialion" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Prelected Healih Information at 45 C.F.R. Pah 16,4. Subpari C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information* means Protected Health Information that is

rwl secured by a lechnology siandard thai renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or- indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a siandards developing organization that Is accredited by

.  tho Arrierican National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use end Disclosure of CorSridential lriformaiion.

1. T7)e Conlraclor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit ConrKJcnliat Informafion
except as reasonably r^ecessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including bul not limited to all its directors. oHIcors. employees and agcrits. must rKtl
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitule e violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential information In response" to a
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request for disclosure on the basts that li Is-required by law.'in response to a
subpoena, etc.. wiihpul first notitying DHHS so that DHHS has an oppojluniiy to
consent Of object to the disclo'sure.

3. II DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by oddittpnal
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards ol PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Securiiy Rule, the Contractor rnust be bound by such
additional restrictions and rnusl not disclose PHI in violation ol such additional
restrictions end must abide by any additional securiiy safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that OHMS Data or derivativo there from disctbsed to an End
User must only l>e used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5.' The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Coritract may noi be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Corilraclor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of ihspec.ling to conftrm compliance with the terms ol this

.• Contract.

It. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. II End IJser is IransmllUng DHHS data containing
Confidential Gala behveen applications, the Contractor attests ihe applications have
been evaluated by an expen knowledgeable in cyber security and that , said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internot.

2. Computer Disks and Ponabte Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confldehtial Data if
email Is encrvoted and being sent to and tieing received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site, if End User is employing the Web to transmil Confidenllal
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or 6opgte Cloud Storage, to Iransniii
Confidential Data.'

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceiHried ground
mail within the continental U.S. and v/hen sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. tf End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Conndeniial Data said devices must be encrypted arrtJ password-protected.

8. Open WifOtess Networks. End User may not transmit Conndentlal Data via an open
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wireless network, ErxJ User must employ a virtual privale network (VPN) when
- remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If Gr^d User is employing remote communication to
occess or ironsmii Confidential Data, o virtual private network (VPN) must bo
Installed on the End User's.mobile device($) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed. .

10. SSH File Transfer Prolocol (SFTP). also known as .Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transrnit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Fotdcr and access privileges to prevent inapproprialo disclosure of

!  information. SFTP fokfers and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data v^U
be coded for 24-hour auio-delelion cydo (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User is iransmitiing Conridenijal Data via wireless devices, all
data niusl be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and a.ny derlvalive of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the ConlVacior v/in have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derlvalive In whatever form It may exist., unless, otherwise required by taw or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The .Contractor agrees it svill not store, transfer or process data cofiecied In
conneciion with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Stales. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, arxl includes'backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events thai can impact Stale of NIH systems
erxl/or C)epartmer^t confidential Wormailon for coniraclor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness end education for its End
Users in support of protecting Oepartmenl confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Coofidenliat Data
In a secure location and idenilfied in seclion IV, A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Corifidenllal Data stored In a Clbud must be In o
FodRAKAP/HlTECH compliant soluUon and comply-with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the.privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
curfcnily-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anii-viral, anti-
hacker,.anti-spam..anii-spyware, and anii-malv/are utilities. The environment, as a
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'whole, must havo apsircssiv© InUuslon-delcction end rirewail proletiion.

6. The Conlraclor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief 'informalion Officer in Jho detection of any security vulnerability of tho .hbsling
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential-Information on ils syslcms (or its .
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract terminatior); and will
obtain written certification for any Slate of New Hampshire data dcstroybd by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing Stale of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure vnpe program
in accordance with indusiry-bccopted standards for secure delelioo and media
sanitizalion. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-08. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanllizailon. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Oeparlmenl .of Commerco. The Contractor will document and certify in vniiing at
lime of the data destruction, and will provide wrltlen certification to the Department
upon request. The written certirtcation will- include all .details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and vaiidaied. W.here applicable,
regulatory arKl professional standards for retention requirements will be" Joinlty
evaluated by the Stale a^^d Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within ihirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding,

3. Unicss otherwise specified. v»iihin ihirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Conlractor agrees to compleloly destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEO.URES. FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard" the OHHS Data received under this Conlracl. and any
derivative data or files, as foliovrs;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls lo "protect Departrrienl
confidential inforrnation collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
;of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
corindential Information throughout m.e information lifecycle. where appiicab)©. (from
creation, .transformation, use. storage and secure destru^ion) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc,),
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3. The Conlraclof will maintain appropriate authentication end access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department conndeniial intormalion
where appt'cable.

4. The Contractor wfl) ensure proper security monitoring capabilities ore >n place to
detect potential -security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or

•  Department confidential informalion for cpntrador provided sysiems.-

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Departmeni confidenlial Information.

6  If the Contractor will be sub-conlracling any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Slate of New Harhpshirc. the Contractor v/ill maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that dcrmes specific security
expectations, and moniloring compliance to security requiromenis that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor. Including breach noiiricalion requirements.

7. The Contractor wit! work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
.  Stalo of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization .policies

and procedures, systems access terms, and computer use agrbefnents as part of
obtaining and mainiaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be
completed end signed by the (Contractor and any applicable sub-coritractors prtor .to
system access being aulhorized.

8." If tho Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103,. the Contractor sviB execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreemont
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance swith the
agreement.

9. The Conlraclor will work with the Department at its .request to complete a Syslern
Management Survey. The purpose of tho survey is to enable the iDepartm.enI and
Contractor lo rhonitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over -the life of the Contrador engagemorii. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement py
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when tho
scope of the engagement between the Departmcnl end the Conlraclof changes.

10. The Contraclor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly. anyState of N^v Hampshire
or Oepartmeril data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unlpss
prior express written consent is obtained frorh the Information Secunly Ofiice
leadership member wilhin the. Department.

11 Data Security Breach Liability, m the event of any security breach Contraclor shall
make efforts lo investigate the causes of the breach, pforripily lake measures to
prevent future broach and minimize any damage or loss resutung from the breach.
The Slate shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including bul noi limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due Ip
the. breach.

M. Contractor must, comply v/ith ail applicable statutes end regulattons regarding ihe-
privacy Pf>d security ol Confidential information, and must in alt other respects
maintain the privacy and security ol Pt and PHI at a level and scope that Is riot less
than the level end scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but no; limfled to. provisions ol the Privacy Act of 197'1 (5 U.S.C. § 552o). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for indivkJually identifiable heailh
information and as applicable under Stale law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data end to
prevent unauihorized use or'acccss to it. The safeguards musi provide a level and
scope of secu/ily thai is not less than the level and scope of security roqulremenis
esiablished by the Slate of New Hampshire. Depanmenl of Informaiion Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https;//wvAV.nh.90v/doil/vondpr/index.him
for the bepartmeol of informaiion Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
prbcuremcnl Informaiion relating to vendors.

14 Conlracior agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will noiify the Slates Privacy Officer and the
Stale's Security Officer of any security breach Immediaiely, ol the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidenlial information breach, computer
security incident, or suspeclcd breach which affects or includes ariy Slate of Nesv
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of Nev-r Hampshire n€lworl<.

15. Conlracior must restrict access to the Confidenlial Data .obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in conneclion with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidenlial Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

safeguard this information at all times.

ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing :phi. PI. or
PFi are encryptod and password-protected.

"send emails containing Confidential fnlormation only If eiScrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons a.uthofjzbd to.
receive such information. :
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)

e. timli disclosure of the Confidential information to ihe extent permlTied by law.

f. Ccnnde'ntial Information received under this Conlracl and Individually
identifiable clala derived from DHHS Oaia. musi'be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as' non-duty' hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biomelric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized-End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
dertvalive files coniainir^ pcrsonoHy klentlliable information, and In all cases.
5uch--daia must be encrypted at all times Nvtien In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section iv above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data musi be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate sefeguards. as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and-password) must nol bo
shared with anyone. ErkJ Users will keep their credential Inforrhalion secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
8 third party application.

Conlractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliar^ce with this
Conlracl. including ihe privacy and securily requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations unlil such lime the Confidential Dala
is disposed of in accordance vrith this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor most notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Offcer of any
Si^rily Incido'nis .and Breaches immediately, at Ihe email addresses provided in
Section Vl.

The Cotilractor must further handle and.rep'ort Incidorils and Breaches involving PHI in
'accordance with iho agency's doournonted lf>cid_eni Handling or>d Breech Nolificalion
procedures end in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligaiions and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must olso address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:

-  2. Delermlne If personalty Identifiable Information is Involved in incider^ls:

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents'as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify arxJ convene a core response group to determine the risk level of incidenls
and:delermine risk-based responses to Incidenls; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. tf so. kJentify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among ditfcrenl
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable.-In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Olficcr;

OHHSPflvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.90v

B. OHHS Security Officer; '

OHHSlnIormalicnSecuriiyO(rtce@dhhs.nh.gov
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